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PART |
ltem 1. Business
GENERAL

Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatiogdtber with our consolidated subsidiaries, the "Gany," "ACRE," "we," "us" and "our") i
a Maryland corporation that was incorporated ont&aper 1, 2011, and was initially funded and comredrinvestment operations on
December 9, 2011. We are focused primarily on paijng, investing in and managing middle-market owmrcial real estate, or "CRE," loans
and other CRE-related investments. We completechttial public offering, or the "IPO," of our comwn stock on May 1, 2012. We are
externally managed by Ares Commercial Real Estaaddement LLC, "ACREM" or our "Manager," a Secastand Exchange Commissi
or "SEC," registered investment adviser and a whmlNned subsidiary of Ares Management LLC, or "Aksnagement,” a global alternati
asset manager and also a SEC registered invesateser.

Our target investments include: "transigibsenior" mortgage loans, "stretch senior" morégilagns, subordinate debt mortgage loans
such as Biotes and mezzanine loans and other select CREaddhireferred equity investments. "Transitionai@® mortgage loans provit
strategic, flexible, short-term financing solutians transitional CRE middle-market assets thattegesubject of a business plan that is
expected to enhance the value of the property. @hewsually funded over time as the borrower'snesgs plan for the property is executed,
and have a lower initial loan-to-value ratio as paned to "stretch senior" mortgage loans. "Stretafior" mortgage loans provide flexible
"one stop" financing on quality CRE middle-markssets that are typically stabilized or near-staddiproperties with healthy balance sheets
and steady cash flows, with the mortgage loansigalvigher leverage (and thus higher loan-to-vadti®s) than conventional mortgage loans
and are typically fully funded at closing and n@tourse to the borrower (as compared to conventinaegage loans, which are usually full
recourse to the borrower).

We intend to elect and qualify to be tagsch real estate investment trust, or "REIT," utidennternal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, or the "Code," commencing with the Comigaayable year ended December 31, 2012. To tlemettat we annually distribute at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income (which doesaegual net income, as calculated in accordande géherally accepted accounting
principles, or "GAAP") to our stockholders and cdynpith various other requirements as a REIT, weggally will not be subject to U.S.
federal income taxes on our REIT taxable incomeerdd@ned without regard to the deduction for divide paid and excluding net capital
gains.

Our Investment Strategy

Our investment objective is to generatmative risk-adjusted returns for our stockholderanarily through dividends and distributions
and secondarily through capital appreciation. Dtespcreased liquidity in the broader CRE capitalrkets, we believe the availability of
capital in the CRE middle-market is limited aseifates to our "target investments" and borrowedssmonsors have the greatest need for
customized solutions in this segment of the maikkt.act as a single "one stop" financing sourcprbyiding our customers with one or
more of our customized financing solutions. Ourtemszed financing solutions are comprised of oardét investments,” which include the
following:

. "Transitional senior" mortgage loans that provittategic, flexible, short-term financing solutioms transitional CRE middle-
market assets. These assets are typically propéhet are the subject of a business plan thadpieated to enhance the value
the property. The mortgage loans are usually furtded time as the borrower's business plan foptbperty is
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executed. They also typically have lower initisdeto-value ratios as compared to "stretch semmttgage loans;

. "Stretch senior" mortgage loans that provide flexilone stop” financing on quality CRE middle-mdr&esets. These assets
are typically stabilized or near-stabilized projeertwith healthy balance sheets and steady casis floith the mortgage loans
having higher leverage (and thus higher loan-taraétios) than conventional mortgage loans andyaieally fully funded at
closing and non-recourse to the borrower (as coetpbtir conventional mortgage loans, which are uguadlourse to the
borrower);

. "Subordinate debt" mortgage loans (including sulvate tranches of first lien mortgages, or B-Notw®) mezzanine loans,
both of which provide subordinate financing on gyaCRE middle-market assets; and

. "Other CRE debt and preferred equity investmenitgy&ther with selected other income producing gdoitestments.
Commercial Real Estate Mortgage Loans

. Commercial Mortgage Loans and A-Notes. These mortgage loans are typically secured Bylfans on commercial propertit
including the following property types: office, aflt multifamily/manufactured housing, industriaiiiehouse and hospitality.
some cases, first lien mortgages may be dividadantA-Note and a B-Note. The A-Note is typicallgravately negotiated
loan that is secured by a first mortgage on a corvialeproperty or group of related properties tisagenior to a B-Note
secured by the same first mortgage property orpgrou

. Subordinated Mortgage Loans and B-Notes:  These loans may include structurally subordinéitettmortgage loans and junior
participations in first mortgage loans or parti¢ipas in these types of assets. As noted abovelNatB is typically a privately
negotiated loan that is secured by a first mortgaga commercial property or group of related propg and is subordinated
an A-Note secured by the same first mortgage ptgpergroup. The subordination of a B-Note typigadl evidenced by
participations or intercreditor agreements witheotholders of interests in the note. B-Notes abgesi to more credit risk with
respect to the underlying mortgage collateral tt@ncorresponding A-Note.

. Mezzanine Loans. Like B-Notes, these loans are also subordinaiRE ©@ans, but are usually secured by a pledgeeof th
borrower's equity ownership in the entity that ovlms property or by a second lien mortgage on thpeaty. In a liquidation,

these loans are generally junior to any mortgagyesion the underlying property, but senior to amefgsred equity or common
equity interests in the entity that owns the propdnvestor rights are usually governed by inteditor agreements.

Other CRE Debt and Preferred Equity I nvestments

To a lesser extent, we invest in other $oamd securities, including but not limited to Isao real estate or hospitality companies, debtor-
in-possession loans, preferred equity and selasttezt income producing equity investments, suchiple net lease equity.

Direct Origination
We focus primarily on directly originatimgir target investments, which allows us to:

. take a more active role in underwriting and strrintyinvestments,

. have direct access to our customers' managemens &ad enhance our due diligence process,
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. have meaningful input into our customers' pro forapital structures,
. actively participate in negotiating transactiorcprgy and terms, and
. generate structuring and origination fees.

Our direct origination strategy gives us flexibility to originate a broad and flexible phact that meets the specific needs of our
customers and drives portfolio composition in res@oto changing market conditions. Our Manageragifortunistically adjust our asset
allocation, with the proportion and types of inveshts changing over time depending on our Managiewgs on, among other things, the
then existing economic and credit environment. Bagecurrent market conditions, we expect thag btkir current investment portfolio, the
majority of our investments will be senior mortgdgans secured by cash-flowing properties locatettié United States and directly
originated by us. These investments will typically interest at rates that are determined peritigioa the basis of a floating base lending
rate (primarily LIBOR plus a premium) and have gethyear term and an expected duration betweeamahéive years.

Opportunistic Strategy

In pursuing investment opportunities wittractive risk-reward profiles, our Manager incorgies its views of the current and future
economic environment, its outlook for real estatgeéneral and particular asset classes and itssisset of the risk-reward profile derived
from its underwriting. Our Manager's underwritirtgredards center on the creditworthiness of thedwar and the underlying sponsor of a
given asset, with particular focus on an assesfiss plan, competitive positioning within the kedy existing capital structure and potential
exit opportunities. All investment decisions ared@mao that we maintain our qualification as a R&tifl our exemption from registration
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as antgratehe "1940 Act."

In addition, as part of our investmenttetgg, we may from time to time engage in discussiwith counterparties in respect of various
potential strategic acquisition and investmentgaations, including potential acquisitions of otfirance companies or loan portfolios. In
connection with evaluating potential strategic asijon and investment transactions, we may inggmificant expenses for the evaluation
due diligence investigation of any potential traotiga.

Our investment strategy may be amended fiora to time without the approval of our stockhes if recommended by our Manager
and approved by our board of directors. We expedidclose any material changes to our investiesieg)y in the periodic quarterly and
annual reports that we will file with the SEC.

Our Manager and Ares Management

We are externally managed and advised byamager, a SEC registered investment advisesuaint to the terms of a management
agreement dated April 25, 2012 between us and @umadger. Our Manager is responsible for adminiggesiir business activities and day-to-
day operations and providing us our executive mameagnt team, investment team and appropriate suppmonnel. Pursuant to the
management agreement, our Manager is entitleccve a base management fee, an incentive feensgpeimbursements, grants of equity-
based awards pursuant to our equity incentive thlanwas adopted on April 23, 2012, or the "201Riggncentive Plan" and a termination
fee, if applicable.

Our Manager is an affiliate of Ares Manageit a global alternative asset manager and SE&eegd investment adviser founded in
1997. As of December 31, 2012, Ares Managementpadoximately 560 employees in over a dozen offieeddwide, including over 235
investment professionals with significant expereeimt CRE, private debt, capital markets, privateitygtrading and research. We believe
the significant experience of our Manager's ancsAfanagement's
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investment professionals, our Manager's backgraudeveloping customized financing solutions forECRiddle-market borrowers and our
Manager's efficient and comprehensive credit undéng process position us to be a preferred lefdieborrowers seeking flexible CRE
middle-market financing. As of December 31, 2012 $AManagement managed approximately $59 billiocoaimitted capital on behalf of
large pension funds, banks, insurance companidsvanents, public institutional and retail investarsl certain high net worth individuals.

The following chart shows the structure &adous investment strategies of Ares Managemeof ®ecember 31, 2012:

() ARES

Platforms Ares Private Equity Ares Capital Markets
Group Group

Ares Private Debt Ares Commercial
Groop Real Estate Group

Commitied = 4 hillion —~ %25 billion ~ 523 billion ~ %2 billion

Capital

Primary Area of  ULS, Flexible Capital  Leveraged Loans U5, Corporate Debt U5, Real Estate Debt
Focus China Growth Capital High Yield Euro Corporate Debt

Structured Credit
Special Situations
Multi-Strategy Credit
Credit Opportunilies

Personnel — 400 investment - 50 investment = 120 investment = 25 investment
professionals professionals professionals prolessionals
Current Portlolio ~ 25 companics ~ 55() companics ~ 525 companics ~ 100 properties

Ares Management is organized around foumgmy investment platforms: Private Equity, Capitdrkets, Private Debt and Commercial
Real Estate. Ares Management's senior principdleatively possess an average of approximatelyedry of experience in CRE, leveraged
finance, private equity, distressed debt, commere&d estate, investment banking and capital ntarked are backed by a large team of
highly disciplined professionals. We believe that Manager's access to the insights of Ares Managésinvestment professionals in the
Commercial Real Estate, Private Debt, Capital M@rked Private Equity Groups provides us with adtle of market knowledge that
differentiates us from many of our competitors. Manager has adopted Ares Management's rigoro@stiment process that is based upon
an intensive, independent financial analysis, &ifbbcus on preservation of capital, diversificatéond active portfolio management.

As of December 31, 2012, ACREM, which istjd the Ares Commercial Real Estate Group, ha@@pmately $2.0 billion of total
committed capital under management in CRE-relatedstments and an origination, investment and @lartihhanagement team consisting of
approximately 25 experienced investment professsomad approximately 25 administrative professisnicluding legal and finance
professionals. This team is led by the senior imaest professionals and has significant experielirgetly originating, underwriting,
financing, and managing CRE middle-market loans@hdr CRE-related assets throughout various masiaés, including the severe
economic downturn that began in 2007. For a motaildd discussion on how the current economic d@m may impact us, see "Risk
Factors—Risks Related to Our Investments—A proldrngmnomic slowdown, a lengthy or severe recessidarther declines in real estate
values could impair our investments and harm oeratons."
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Our Manager also works closely with othmfeistment professionals in the Ares Private Debu@ywhich as of December 31, 2012,
approximately $23.0 billion of total committed cgbiunder management. The Ares Private Debt Gnebgh includes an origination,
investment and portfolio management team of appratély 120 U.S.-based investment professionalsstdton investments in the
"corporate middlenarket,” which the Ares Private Debt Group defiassompanies with annual earnings before intei@stdepreciation ar
amortization, or EBITDA, between $10 million and5®2million. The Ares Private Debt Group primaribctises on the direct origination of
non-syndicated first and second lien senior seclo@us and mezzanine debt in the corporate mid@leet. The Ares Private Debt Group
also manages Ares Capital Corporation, a publielgidd specialty finance company with approxima®&yt billion of total assets as of
December 31, 2012. We expect to leverage the AteatE Debt Group's skill and experience managipglaic company and Ares
Management's investor and lender relationshipseasperate the Company and increase scale.

MARKET OPPORTUNITY

We believe that our target investmentsentty present attractive risk-adjusted return pesfiwe believe that the U.S. CRE markets are
currently in the early to middle stages of a recg¥mm the severe economic downturn that bega@0bi7. Following a dramatic decline in
CRE lending in 2008 and 2009, debt capital hasinecmore readily available for select stabilizeghhjuality assets in certain locations s
as gateway cities, but remains limited for manyeotigpes of properties. For example, we currentljcgpate a high demand for customized
debt financing from borrowers or sponsors who aokihg to refinance indebtedness that is matuninpé next two to five years or are
seeking shorter-term debt solutions as they repadiheir properties.

We believe that as a result of the afordaroead economic downturn and the subsequent bamkimglatory reform, a number of lenders
and finance companies who traditionally servedGRE middlemarket, are burdened with legacy portfolio issb@dance sheet constraints
have otherwise exited the market. We believe thiatdecreased competition will create a favoraiestment environment for the
foreseeable future. We also believe that we arépusitioned to capitalize on the expected demaerated by the estimated $1.7 trillion of
CRE debt maturing between 2012 and 2016 (as reporteommercial Real Estate Outlook: Top Ten Issuesin 2013 published by Deloitte &
Touche LLP).

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES
We believe that we have the following cotitpe advantages in originating and acquiring &s#er our investment portfolio:
The Ares Management Platform

We benefit from Ares Management's extensreglit-focused culture and investment platformiclithave contributed to its reputation as
a leading corporate credit manager. We believe Masagement's existing investment platform provigesvith extensive access to capital
markets relationships, deal flow and an establisheelstment evaluation process, as well addpth market information, company knowles
and industry insight that benefits our investmamt due diligence process. Furthermore, in souraimjanalyzing our investments, we ber
from access to Ares Management's substantial piortibinvestments in over 1,100 companies acro®s 80 industries and its extensive
network of relationships focused on middle-marl@hpanies, including management teams, membergdflestment banking community,
private equity groups and other investment firmthwihom Ares Management has long-term relationstWes also benefit from Ares
Management's experience managing a public compaahjtsiwell-developed infrastructure as we opettaeCompany and increase scale.
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Seasoned Management Team with Significant Real E$taExperience

Our Manager's senior investment profes¢oimave extensive experience investing in and imgnCRE across market cycles over the
last two decades. In particular, our senior investiprofessionals have substantial experienceeilifect origination, structuring and
ownership of investments to provide attractive mesuwithout exposing investors to an inappropretel of risk. Over the course of their
careers such individuals have been part of teaathtve invested, owned or managed over $10 bififddRE investments. Our senior
management team also has significant experienaatipg and building public and private companies|uding real estate and specialty
finance companies, and has demonstrated its atmlityptain access to public and private credit equity capital throughout various market
cycles.

National Direct Origination Platform

Our Manager employs a nationwide team of@danvestment professionals who have an averdgemroximately 20 years in the
origination and credit underwriting of CRE loanse\helieve having a network of experienced persoimigty local markets such as Dallas,
Chicago, New York, Washington D.C. and Los Ange&ekances our focus on fundamental market and @ediyses that emphasize current
and sustainable cash flows. We believe this insigigether with the deal flow to be provided bytsociginators, enables us to originate lo
with proper risk-adjusted return profiles. We atsdieve our national platform of originators heigsmaintain relationships with our
borrowers and their sponsors, which can lead toréubr repeat business.

Established Portfolio Management Functions

Our Manager currently acts as portfolio ager for a portfolio of CRE-related investmentsjuding senior and subordinated loans, and
had approximately $2.0 billion of total committeabétal under management as of December 31, 20kEA€Tportfolio management activities
include primary and special servicing functionsfpened by a team of experienced professionals titr@mur Manager's servicer, which is a
Standard & Poor's-ranked commercial primary senacel commercial special servicer that is includedstandard & Poor's Select Servicer
List. We actively monitor and manage our investradrdam origination to payment or maturity. Our getportfolio management, which
includes the use of our special servicing subsidi@iows us to assess and manage the risk inantfiopjo more accurately, build and
maintain strong relationships with borrowers aralrtiponsors, control costs and ensure operataumdtol over our investments.

Flexible "One Stop" Transaction Structuring

While maintaining our focus on credit aigkrassessment, we are flexible in structuring stments, including the types of assets tha
originate or invest in, and the terms associatdd sich investments. We leverage Ares Managemeg&rience investing across a capital
structure and its "buy and hold" philosophy, whésthances our ability to provide "one stop" finagcamd to tailor an investment to meet the
specific needs of a borrower. We believe that hgliexibility with our transaction structuring, whimaintaining our underwriting standards,
rigorous investment approach and target investmeditmarket focus, enhances our competitive positidhe CRE middle-market by
providing a strong value proposition to borrowesslsng financial solutions that cannot typicallygyevided by traditional "senior only" or
"mezzanine only" lenders or those lenders intentbrgecuritize the underlying investment. Our &piio tailor investments in turn allows us
to drive increased earnings through premium pricinga risk-adjusted basis. Furthermore, we belileatthis flexible approach, coupled with
Ares Management's market visibility and sourcingadalities, enables our Manager to identify atirsctnvestment opportunities throughout
economic cycles and across a borrower's capitadtsire, and allows us to make investments congistiéh our stated investment objective.
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Middle-Market Focus

We believe that we are one of the few actiapital providers operating nationally that fasien the CRE middle-market and has the
benefit of a quality asset manager such as Aresalglament and its affiliates. We believe the avditgtof capital in the CRE middle-market
is limited and borrowers and sponsors have thetggeaeed for customized solutions in this segroétite market. Our access to a permanent
capital base will assist us in growing our busiress allow us to maintain a consistent presentieeinmarket across economic cycles, which
provides us with a competitive advantage over fonashagers or other finite life investment vehiclassping investment opportunities in the
CRE middle-market. We also believe the expecte@ ph€RE debt maturities creates a strong driveleofiand for CRE middleyarket loan
in the short to medium term. Based on our Managepgrience, we believe that we are well positicioetdke advantage of this market

opportunity.

OUR INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

As of December 31, 2012, we have origin@tedo-originated 15 loans secured by CRE middleketgroperties. The aggregate
originated commitment under these loans at clogiag approximately $405.7 million, of which $356n7atal principal remained outstandi
as of December 31, 2012. For the year ended Deae3db2012, we had funded approximately $351.9ioniland received repayments of
$180 thousand on our net $405.7 million of commiite&t closing as described in more detail in #idets below. Such investments are
referred to herein as our investment portfolio. Tdilowing tables present an overview of our cutriemestment portfolio, based on
information available as of December 31, 2012. Refees to LIBOR are to 30-day LIBOR (unless othsengpecifically stated).
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Investment Portfolio
as of December 31, 2012

(amountsin millions, except percentages)

Total Carrying Unleveragec Paymeni
Commitment  Outstanding LTV At LIBOR
Amount  Origination Interest Effective Maturity Terms
Loan Type Location (at closing) Principal (1) (2) Rate Floor Yield(3) Date(4) (5)
Transitional
Senior
Mortgage
Loans
Apartment  Brandon, $ 49€  $ 434 $  42.46) 71% L+4.80% 0.5% 5.6% Jan 201 110
FL
Office Austin, TX 38.C 30.¢ 30.t 69%  L+5.75%: 1.C% 7.5% Mar 201¢ 1/0
L+5.25%(7)
Apartment  New York, 36.1 30.¢ 30.5 81% L+5.00% 0.8% 6.1% Oct 201" 1/10
NY
Office Cincinnati, 35k 26.€ 26.7 67% L+5.35%(8) 0.2% 6.C% Nov 201¢ 110
OH
Apartment  New York, 26.2 22.7 22.t 81% L+5.75% 0.2% 6.5% Dec 201! 1/10
NY L+5.00%(9)
Apartment  New York, 21.¢ 18.4 18.2 72%  L+5.75%: 0.2% 6.5% Dec 201! 110
NY L+5.00%(9)
Apartment  New York, 21.¢ 18.€ 18.2 83% L+5.75% 0.2% 6.5% Dec 201! 110
NY L+5.00%(9)
Apartment  Avondale, 22.1 20.€ 20.4 74% L+4.25% 1.C% 5.8% Sep 201 110
AZ
Office Denver, 11.C 8.3 8.2 38% L+5.50% 1.C% 7.3% Jan 201 1/10
CcO
Stretch Senior
Mortgage
Loans
Office Miami, FL 47.C 47.C 46.€(6) 7€6% L+5.25% 1.(% 6.6% Oct 201! 110
Office Boston, 35.C 34.¢ 34.€ 88% L+5.65% 0.7% 6.8% Mar 201¢ P&l
MA
Apartment  Arlington, 13.4 13.4 13.2 80% L+5.15% 0.2% 6.1% Dec 201« /10
VA
Subordinated
Debt
Investments
Apartment  Rocklin, 18.7 18.7(10) 18.t 72%(13) L+6.40%(11) 1.C% 10.(% Dec 201: 110
CA
Office Fort 15.((12) 8.C 7.¢ 51%(13) L+10.75% 0.8% 12.1% Feb 201! 110
Lauderdale (14)
FL L+8.18%
Office Atlanta, 14.2 14.2 14.2 75%(13)  10.50%(15) — 11.C% Aug 2017 110
GA
Total/Averag $ 4057 % 356.1 $ 353t 7.5%
(1) The difference between the carrying amount anathstanding principal face amount of the loans fieldnvestment consists of unamortized purchase

@

©)

4

®)
(6)
@)
®
©)
(10)

(11

discount, deferred loan fees and loan originatiost

LTV At Origination is calculated as the initial standing principal at closing divided by the vaioatof the property underlying the loan based omyapraisal
of the property based on market conditions atithe bf origination.

Unleveraged Effective Yield is the compounded dffecrate of return that would be earned over ifeedf the investment based on the contractuatésterate
(adjusted for any deferred loan fees, costs, prenuudiscount) and assumes no dispositions, eaelygyments or defaults.

The Boston and Arlington loans are subject to denbnth extension option. The Miami, Austin, Avoted@randon, Cincinnati, New York (the loans with a
Maturity Date of December 2015) and Fort Lauderdizd@s are subject to two 12-month extension opti@he Rocklin loan is subject to one 6-month
extension option.

P&I = principal and interest; /O = interest only.

The Carrying Amount of this loan is above 10%, leas than 20%, of total assets of the Company.

The initial interest rate for this loan of L+5.75%eps down based on performance hurdles to L+5.25%.

The initial interest rate for this loan of L+5.35%eps down based on performance hurdles to L+5.00%.

The initial rate for this loan of L+5.75% steps dolbased on performance hurdles to L+5.00%.

This loan was cariginated with a third party using an A/B strueuwith a cumulative interest rate of L + 4.10% andBOR minimum rate ("LIBOR Floor'
of 1.00%. The fully funded A-Note (held by a thpdrty) has an interest rate of L + 2.75% with nB@QR Floor and our B-Note receives the full benefithe
LIBOR Floor on the full $50.5 million balance ofetthoan, which would result in an interest rate anB®-Note of 9.10% if LIBOR was equal to 0.0% and
7.40% if LIBOR was equal to 1.0%, with the intereste on the B-Note equal to L + 6.40% if LIBORyigater than 1.0%.

The B-Note has an initial interest rate of L + 8#8ubject to a 1.00% LIBOR floor (with the benefitany difference between actual LIBOR and the LEBBO
floor on the /-Note and I-Note accruing to the-Note).



(12

(13

(14)

(15

The total commitment we co-originated was a $37lbam first mortgage, of which a $22.0 million Adte was fully funded by Citibank, N.A. We funded a
$15.0 million B-Note.

LTV At Origination for this subordinated debt inweent is calculated as the sum of outstanding jpa@t closing for the senior interest (held bipiad party,
and the subordinated interest (held by us) dividethe valuation reflected in the property appiaiSae Note (2).

This loan was co-originated with a third party @san A/B structure, with a cumulative interest raté. + 5.25% and a LIBOR floor of 0.75%. The fully
funded A-Note (held by a third party) has an inserate of L + 3.25% with the LIBOR Floor, resuffim an initial interest rate on our B-Note of 118.75%
with the LIBOR Floor. As we fund additional procsezh the B-Note, the interest rate will decreasktha fully funded B-Note ($15.0 million) will haxan
interest rate of LIBOR + 8.18% with the LIBOR Floor

The interest rate for this loan increases to 110096 eptember 1, 2014.
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OUR FINANCING STRATEGY

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaaREIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes andegemption from the 1940 Act, we expect
that our primary sources of financing will be, be textent available to us, through (a) credit, sstfunding and other lending facilities,
(b) securitizations, (c) other sources of privataricing, including warehouse and repurchase fasland (d) public offerings of our equity
debt securities. In the future, we may utilize otbeurces of financing to the extent availabledo u

Secured Funding Facilities
WEells Fargo Facility

We are party to a $172.5 million securedhang funding facility arranged by Wells Fargorda National Association, or the "Wells
Fargo Facility," pursuant to which we borrow furidginance qualifying senior commercial mortgagans and A-Notes, subject to available
collateral. Advances under the Wells Fargo Facditgrue interest at a per annum rate equal touttmeod (i) 30 day LIBOR plus (ii) a pricing
margin range of 2.50% - 2.75%. The initial matudgte of the Wells Fargo Facility is December 181 2and, provided that certain
conditions are met and applicable extension feepaid, is subject to two 12-month extension optidks of December 31, 2012, the
outstanding balance on the Wells Fargo Facility $26.2 million.

Citibank Facility

We are party to a $86.2 million securedhewng funding facility arranged by Citibank, N.Aor the "Citibank Facility," pursuant to
which we borrow funds to finance qualifying send@mmercial mortgage loans and A-Notes, subjectadlable collateral. Under the
Citibank Facility, we borrow funds on a revolvingdis in the form of individual loans. Each indiv@dlban is secured by an underlying loan
originated by us. Advances under the Citibank Rgalccrue interest at a per annum rate based BORL The margin can vary between
2.50% and 3.50% over the greater of LIBOR and 0&d6ed on the debt yield of the assets contriintedACRC Lender C LLC, one of our
wholly owned subsidiaries and the borrower underGitibank Facility. The maturity date of each widual loan is the same as the maturity
date of the underlying loan that secures such iddal loan. The end of the funding period is Decent) 2013, and may be extended for an
additional 12 months upon the payment of the applie extension fee and provided that no event fafulteis then occurring. As of
December 31, 2012, the outstanding balance onitimak Facility was $13.9 million.

Capital One Facility

We are party to a $50.0 million secureddfag facility with Capital One, National Associatioor the "Capital One Facility," pursuant to
which we borrow funds to finance qualifying semiemmmercial mortgage loans, subject to availablitarhal. Under the Capital One Facili
we borrow funds on a revolving basis in the forningfividual loans evidenced by individual notesckandividual loan is secured by an
underlying loan originated by us. Amounts outstagdinder each individual loan accrue interestmdraannum rate equal to LIBOR plus a
spread ranging between 2.50% and 4.00%. We magséqdividual loans under the Capital One Factlipugh and including May 18,
2014, subject to successive 12-month extensiogptt the lender's discretion. The maturity ddeach individual loan is the same as the
maturity date of the underlying loan that secureshsndividual loan. As of December 31, 2012, théstanding balance on the Capital One
Facility was $32.2 million.

For more information about our secured fngdacilities, see "Management's Discussion anélysis of Financial Condition and Resi
of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Sedufunding Arrangements."
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2015 Convertible Notes

We have outstanding $69.0 million aggregatecipal amount of unsecured 7.000% Convertildai& Notes due 2015, or the "2015
Convertible Notes," the terms of which are goverbg@n Indenture, dated December 19, 2012, orltidehture,” between us and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee. As of Decembe2812, the carrying value of the 2015 Convertidges was $67.3 million. The 20
Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 7.0p@%year, payable semiannually in arrears on 16rend December 15 of each year,
beginning on June 15, 2013. The effective interatst of the 2015 Convertible Notes, which is eqadhe stated rate of 7.000% plus the
accretion of the original issue discount and asgedicosts, was approximately 9.4% for the yeaeémkcember 31, 2012. The 2015
Convertible Notes will mature on December 15, 2@k3he "Maturity Date," unless previously convdrte repurchased in accordance with
their terms. We do not have the right to redeen?0is Convertible Notes prior to the Maturity Daggcept to the extent necessary to
preserve our qualification as a REIT for U.S. fadl@ricome tax purposes.

For more information about our 2015 ConbégtNotes, see "Management's Discussion and Aisabfd-inancial Condition and Results
of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—2Qbmvertible Notes."

Other Credit Facilities, Warehouse Facilities and Rpurchase Agreements

In the future, we may also use other saiofdinancing to fund the origination or acquisitiof our target investments, including other
credit facilities, warehouse facilities, repurchéaglities, convertible debt, retail notes andestecured and unsecured forms of borrowing.
These financings may be collateralized or noncadidized and may involve one or more lenders. Wxeetxthat these facilities will typically
have maturities ranging from two to five years amaly accrue interest at either fixed or floatingesat

Capital Markets

We may seek to raise further equity cagital issue debt securities in order to fund owrutnvestments. For example, we may seek to
enhance the returns on our senior commercial mgetiggan investments, especially loan originatidmsgugh securitizations, if available. To
the extent available, we intend to securitize #r@a portion of some of our loans, while retainthg subordinate securities in our investment
portfolio. The securitization of this senior portiwill be accounted for as either a "sale" andlda@s will be removed from our balance sheet
or as a "financing" and will be classified as "s#@zed loans" on our balance sheet, depending tipestructure of the securitization.

LEVERAGE POLICIES

We intend to use prudent amounts of levetagncrease potential returns to our stockholdesghat end, subject to maintaining our
qualification as a REIT and our exemption from ségition under the 1940 Act, we intend to use lwirmgs to fund the origination or
acquisition of our target investments. Given curraearket conditions and our focus on first or seniortgages, we currently expect that such
leverage would not exceed, on a debt-to-equityshas#-to-1 ratio. The amount of leverage we vélpldy for particular investments in our
target investments will depend upon our Managessssment of a variety of factors, which may ingJadnong others, the anticipated
liquidity and price volatility of the assets in dawvestment portfolio, the potential for losses amtension risk in our portfolio, the gap
between the duration of our assets and liabilitreduding hedges, the availability and cost offiging the assets, our opinion of the
creditworthiness of our financing counterpartiég, health of the U.S. economy and commercial mgegaarkets, our outlook for the
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level and volatility of interest rates, the slogete yield curve, the credit quality of our ass¢he collateral underlying our assets, and our
outlook for asset spreads relative to the LIBORveur

INVESTMENT PROCESS
Our investment strategy is implementedugtoa highly disciplined underwriting, investmentigortfolio management process.
Step 1: Origination

Our Manager identifies investment oppottiesithrough its extensive network of relationshipthin the real estate and finance
industries. In addition, our Manager may estaldishtegic alliances with third parties in ordeetthance our access to opportunities. The
efforts and sourcing relationships of our Managag@icated team of real estate investment profeaki@re complemented by those across
Ares Management's broader team of investment (siofeals. Given Ares Management's long-term expeeién the finance and real estate
sectors, strong relationships exist with public pridate real estate owners, investors, develogedsoperators with expertise across all real
estate asset classes, as well as key intermedsaribsas mortgage brokerage firms, commercial baa&ding investment banks and servic
We believe these relationships dramatically impriineescale and scope of our senior loan origingtlatform. Our Manager is focused on
originating, evaluating, structuring, investingand managing customized CRE loans and other CRHleaidarket financings.

Step 2: Screening/ Initial Analysis

As soon as a potential investment oppotyuanises, our Manager performs an initial creddlgsis, including a quantitative and
gualitative assessment of the investment, as waktsearch on the market and sponsor, to detemtiether our Manager believes that it is
beneficial to pursue the potential investment. fidwew is conducted by the investment team, whiatoimprised of the investment origina
a senior credit professional, an investment anadyst other investment professionals. Our Managaliuates each investment opportunity
based on its experience and expected risk-adjusteth relative to other comparable investment ojymities available to us. Additionally,
the investment is screened by our Manager to déterits impact on maintaining our REIT qualificatiand our exemption from registration
under the 1940 Act. Prior to making an investmeislon, our Manager determines whether an investmi cause the portfolio to be too
heavily weighted to any specific borrower, assass| or geographic location. As part of the riskagement process, our Manager employs
portfolio monitoring services, loan servicing ogéras and finance and accounting policies. If oardger determines that the proposed
investment meets the appropriate risk and retuteri, as well as appropriately complements oustayg investment portfolio, the
investment team completes a preliminary investraaatysis to be presented for initial review by Blanager's investment committee, or the
"Investment Committee."” The Investment Committeeoisiprised of senior professionals from Ares Managrg and executive officers of
Manager, including the following individuals: MraBling, the Chairman of the Investment Committe®] Messrs. Arougheti, Choulochas,
Cohen, Jaekel, Sachs, Smith and Yoon. Our Managgttains an ongoing pipeline of investment oppdties and the members of the
Investment Committee are notified about the progaseestment opportunities on at least a weeklysbas

In addition, as part of our initial congidtion of each asset, we apply our proprietary lmdcing methodology, which incorporates ing
from different parts of the CRE lending market,liriing banks, commercial mortgage backed securibie€CMBS," and our competitive
landscape in both primary and secondary markes.|d@dm pricing methodology takes into account guraginic cost of capital and is basec
credit risk tiering as well as the leverage perageatfor each individual loan within each propery aroduct type.
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Step 3: Preliminary | nvestment Committee Approval

Once initial analysis is complete and tineestment team has negotiated a term sheet, anpratiy investment brief is presented to our
Manager's Investment Committee. Our Manager's tmest Committee reviews the investment opportuaityl directs the investment team
to perform additional diligence.

Upon completion of a preliminary investmanalysis by the investment team, our Manager'ssiment Committee meets to review and
discuss the investment to determine (i) whethfitsitwithin the investment strategy, (ii) whetheekhibits the appropriate risk/reward
characteristics, and (iii) whether to continue toque the investment or to pass on the investment.

Step 4: Due Diligence/ Underwriting / Documentation

Our Manager employs a valdeven approach to underwriting and due diligermmsistent with the historic experience of our Mger&
real estate investment professionals and Ares Managt's historical investment strategy. Our Manageploys a rigorous, credit-oriented
evaluation towards determining the risk/return peadf the opportunity and the appropriate pricargl structure for the prospective
investment, with specific reference to the stremajtthe transaction sponsor(s), the underlying estdte and the structure of the investment.
Detailed financial modeling and analysis is usedssess the cash flow and debt service coveragacothastics of the properties as well as
interest rate and prepayment analysis. Our focaa surrent cash flows and potential risks to d&ski such as those associated with tenant
credit quality, lease maturities, reversion to neatkvel rental rates, vacancy and expenses. Gaglahalysis and market comparables are
used to determine the current and projected steblilvalue of the underlying collateral, assessépacity to repay or refinance upon
maturity, as well as understand sensitivities tdous potential changes in asset performance, mérkdamentals and real estate capital
markets. Our Manager performs extensive propertyraarketlevel due diligence, including, where appropriaepmpetitive analysis, ten:
profile and credit reviews, delinquency and defaatés, market and industry research, supply anthdd trends, shape of yield curves,
recovery of various sectors and due diligence erbtirrower and its sponsor(s), including meetintpwie borrower's and sponsor's
respective management teams, checking managerhaokgrounds and references and analyzing the ganeerstructure of the borrower.
The market research incorporates analysis of despbigs, key fundamentals such as employment gramdhpopulation growth, comparable
transactions and the competitive landscape, asaselh investigation into any legal risks. Our Mgaras underwriting focus is also on
understanding the broader capital structure ofrdmesaction and ensuring that we have the apptepe@ntrols and rights within its
prospective investment. Our Manager visits the erigp tours the market in which the property islied, reviews their borrower and sponsor
(s) experience and capabilities in managing thiateohl and executing the specific business plathé event that our Manager is considering
the acquisition of CMBS, our Manager will undertakeextensive analysis of the underlying loanscardful review of the bond terms and
conditions.

Our Manager enhances its due diligenceuawl@rwriting efforts by accessing Ares Managementisnsive knowledge base and indu
contacts. Ares Management has a long history imgsicross a number of industries that supportcamect with the real estate sector, such
as retail, logistics, residential real estate brage and hospitality/leisure. Our access to Aresadament's deep industry knowledge and
relationships add an extra dimension to our Maragerspective when evaluating the fundamentakdsiunderlying the real estate. Ares
Management is a broad participant in the capitaketa through its capital markets businesses aatkgies. As Ares Management develops
its views of the real estate markets and macrognanoonditions and determines investment strategyManager will benefit from Ares
Management's insights into the broader capital etarand investment themes across the economy.
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Step 5: Final Investment Committee Approval

Upon completion of due diligence, the irtwaant team will formally present the investment oppnity to our Manager's Investment
Committee. All investments made by us require apglrby a majority of the members of our Managenektment Committee, although
unanimous consent is sought in each case. Our M&asdgvestment Committee meets regularly to evalpatential investments and review
our investment portfolio. Additionally, the memb@efsour Manager's Investment Committee are availatuide our Manager's investment
professionals throughout their evaluation, undegmgiand structuring of prospective investmentsn&ally, the investment team is
responsible for presenting to our Manager's InvestrCommittee a credit memorandum on the investmgmortunity that provides an in-
depth overview of the collateral, borrower, duégdihce conducted, key financial metrics and analyae well as investment considerations
and risk mitigants.

Step 6: Final Due Diligence/ Closing

After the investment is approved by our Eiger's Investment Committee, an extensive legabdigeence process is employed in
combination with our final credit review. As paftthe closing process, our Manager deploys memddfdts investment team, along with
outside legal counsel, to complete legal due diloge(including title and insurance review) and doeut each investment. Our Manager may,
as appropriate, engage third party advisors amtfiasultants to conduct an engineering and envirotasheeview of the collateral and provi
a property condition report, Phase | environmeasakessment and appraisal. Once we have deterrhateal prospective investment is
suitable, we work with the borrower and its spo(sato close and fund the investment.

Step 7: Portfolio Management

Upon closing an investment, our Manager @diately begins proactively managing the asselydtiieg detailed compliance monitoring,
regular communications with borrowers and sponantsperiodic property visits depending on the eirstance. Our Manager's portfolio
management team has significant prior experiened espects of primary and special servicing oEdRvestments, as evidenced by the
ranking by Standard & Poor's of our Manager's sargisubsidiary as a commercial primary servicel @@ammercial special servicer that is
included on Standard & Poor's Select Servicer M&t.believe that having the primary and specialisgrg functions performed for us by o
Manager enhances our portfolio performance by hglps control costs and ensure operational cootrl investments.

Our investment process focuses on activalgitoring and managing an investment from origorato payment or maturity. Our
proactive approach to portfolio management incluadask rating system based on a uniform set ¢éiia, review of monthly property
statements, active compliance monitoring, regubanmunications with borrowers and sponsors, momitptihe financial performance of the
collateral, periodic property visits, monitoringsbamanagement and reserve accounts and monthiyrmeigtings to review the performance
each investment. If securities are acquired, irfohm of CMBS or corporate bank loans or bonds,Manager is responsible for interacting
with the servicer and/or trustee and reviewingatad the monthly reports from the issuer. Withpet to CMBS, if an investment
underperforms the borrower's business plan, ourdgenmay access the loan servicer's portfolio mamagt capabilities and will also be
able to capitalize on Ares Management's experiéndestressed credit and restructurings. Any matdéoian modification or amendment to a
security requires the approval of our Manager'estment Committee. We believe our proactive andlaegortfolio management approach
allows us to more accurately assess and managgskha our portfolio, and to build and maintaimastg relationships with borrowers and
their sponsors. We can provide no assurances thatilvbe successful in identifying or managing@lthe risks associated with originating,
acquiring, holding or disposing of a particulareass that we will not realize losses on certaisets See also "Investment Guidelines" below.
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Investment Guidelines

We currently adhere to the following invaent guidelines:

. our investments will be in our target investnsent
. no investment will be made that would cause usitdd qualify as a REIT;
. no investment will be made that would cause usgrad our subsidiaries to be required to be regést@s an investment

company under the 1940 Act;

. pending indication of appropriate investments intanget investments, our Manager may invest oailae cash in interest-
bearing, short-term investments, including moneykeitaaccounts or funds, CMBS or corporate bongs,dhe consistent with
our intention to qualify as a REIT; and

. all investments require the approval of our Managerestment Committee.

These investment guidelines may be chafrged time to time by our board of directors withautr stockholders' consent, but we expect
to disclose any material changes to our investmeitelines in the periodic quarterly and annuabrepthat we will file with the SEC. In
addition, our Manager is not subject to any linpitroportions with respect to the mix of targetdstments that we originate or acquire other
than as necessary to maintain our qualificatioa BEIT and our exemption from registration under1840 Act.

We do not have a formal portfolio turnopeticy, and currently do not intend to adopt ongbjBct to maintaining our qualification as a
REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes and aengtion from registration under the 1940 Act, werently expect that we will typically
hold assets that we originate or acquire for betvie® and ten years. However, in order to maximiarns and manage portfolio risk while
remaining opportunistic, we may dispose of an asasier than anticipated or hold an asset lorigan fanticipated if we determine it to be
appropriate depending upon prevailing market camustor factors regarding a particular asset.

On October 31, 2012, our board of directorended our investment guidelines to reflect oandgjer's proposed consolidation of its
Underwriting and Investment Committees into onesBtinent Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As part of our risk management strategy,Manager closely monitors our portfolio and adiveanages the financing, interest rate,
credit, prepayment and convexity (a measure ofémsitivity of the duration of a debt investmenth@anges in interest rates) risks associated
with holding a portfolio of our target investments.

Portfolio Management

We recognize the importance of active mlidfmanagement in successful investing. Our Mariag®rtfolio management activities
provide not only investment oversight, but alsdicai input into the origination and acquisitioropess. Ares Management's portfolio
management process creates value through carg&dtment-specific market review, enforcement ofilaad security rights, and timely
execution of disposition strategies. In additiom; Manager seeks to leverage Ares Managementarodsimsights into macroeconomic
leading indicators. This interactive process cauatés underwriting assumptions with direct knowkedglocal market conditions and costs
and revenue expectations. These critical assungptimn become the operational benchmarks by whilagset managers are guided and
evaluated in their ongoing management responsdsiliEor mortgage investments, annual budgetsaiewed and monitored quarterly for
variance, and follow up and

15




Table of Contents

guestions are directed by the asset manager bdbk tmwner. For securities investments, monthlyittammce reports are reviewed, and
guestions are prompted by the asset manager sethizer and trustee to ensure strict adherentteeteervicing standards set forth in the
applicable pooling and servicing agreements. Ounddar services our self-originated investmentsutincour Manager's servicer, a
Standard & Poor's-ranked commercial primary senacel commercial special servicer that is includedstandard & Poor's Select Servicer
List, which allows us to assess the risk in outfpio more accurately. All materials are submittecbur Manager's Investment Committee
for review on a periodic basis. One of the key comgnts in the underwriting process is the evalaatiopotential exit strategies. Our
Manager monitors each investment and reviews thodition strategy on a regular basis in ordee#dize appreciated values and maximize
returns.

Interest Rate Hedging

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaaREIT, we engage in a variety of interest rateagament techniques that seek, on the one
hand to mitigate the economic effect of interest chhanges on the values of, and returns on, sboé @ssets, and on the other hand help us
achieve our risk management objectives. Under ti$e féderal income tax laws applicable to REITs gererally are able to enter into
certain transactions to hedge indebtedness thatayeincur, or plan to incur, to originate, acquirecarry real estate assets, although our total
gross income from interest rate hedges that doneet this requirement and other non-qualifying meaenerally must not exceed 5% of our
gross income.

We may utilize derivative financial instrants, including, among others, puts and calls car#ées or indices of securities, interest rate
swaps, interest rate caps, exchange-traded dewsall.S. Treasury securities, options on U.S. Stmasecurities and interest rate floors to
hedge all or a portion of the interest rate rissoasated with the financing of our portfolio. Sdazally, we may seek to hedge our exposure to
potential interest rate mismatches between thedsteve earn on our investments and our borrowarsgisccaused by interest rate fluctuations.
In utilizing leverage and interest rate hedges,afjectives are to improve risk-adjusted returnd, arhere possible, to lock in, on a long-term
basis, a favorable spread between the yield omsgets and the cost of our financing. We rely arianager's expertise to manage these
risks on our behalf.

The U.S. federal income tax rules applieablREITSs, may require us to implement certaitheée techniques through a taxable REIT
subsidiary, or "TRS," that is fully subject to Uf8deral corporate income taxation.

Market Risk Management

Risk management is an integral componepuoftrategy to deliver returns to our stockhadd&ecause we invest in senior commercial
mortgage loans and other debt investments, invedtlngses from prepayments, defaults, interestualtility or other risks can
meaningfully reduce or eliminate funds availabledistribution to our stockholders. In additionchase we employ financial leverage in
funding our portfolio, mismatches in the maturitt#our assets and liabilities can create riskhsrneed to continually renew or otherwise
refinance our liabilities. Our net interest margimependent upon a positive spread between thmsetn our portfolio and our overall cos
funding. To minimize the risks to our portfolio, \eetively employ portfolio-wide and asset-specifik measurement and management
processes in our daily operations. Our Managesksmianagement tools include software and servicesded or purchased from third parties,
in addition to proprietary analytical methods depeld by Ares Management. There can be no guartdraethese tools will protect us from
market risks.
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Credit Risk Management

While we seek to limit our credit lossesotiigh our investment strategy, there can be naasse that we will be successful. However,
we retain the risk of potential credit losses drofthe senior commercial mortgage loans and atbermercial real-estate related debt
investments that we originate or acquire. We seekdnage credit risk through our due diligence @ssqrior to origination or acquisition
and through the use of non-recourse financing, vamehwhere available and appropriate. In additidth respect to any particular target
investment, our Manager's investment team evaluyatesng other things, relative valuation, comparauialysis, supply and demand trends,
shape of yield curves, delinquency and defaulsatxovery of various sectors and vintage of teiid.

Our investment guidelines do not limit #raount of our equity that may be invested in ampetgf our target investments. Our
investment decisions depend on prevailing marketlitions and may change over time in response popnities available in different
interest rate, economic and credit environmentsa Assult, we cannot predict the percentage oequity that will be invested in any
individual target investment at any given time.

OPERATING AND REGULATORY STRUCTURE
REIT Qualification

We intend to elect to qualify as a REIT ecoemcing with our taxable year ended on Decembe?@12. Our qualification as a REIT
depends upon our ability to meet on a continuingi)ahrough actual investment and operating resuétrious complex requirements under
the Code, relating to, among other things, theassiof our gross income, the composition and vadfiesir assets, our distribution levels and
the diversity of ownership of our shares. We bdithat we have been organized in conformity withréquirements for qualification and
taxation as a REIT, and that our manner of openatitl enable us to meet the requirements for djgalion and taxation as a REIT.

As long as we qualify as a REIT, we genenalll not be subject to U.S. federal income taxaur net taxable income that we distribute
currently to our stockholders. If we have previguglalified as a REIT and fail to qualify as a RHifTany subsequent taxable year and dc
qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, w&l be subject to U.S. federal income tax at lageorporate rates and may be precluded
from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent faxatle years following the year during which we lmsr REIT qualification. Even if we
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subjeatértain U.S. federal, state and local taxes arirmome and property and to U.S. federal
income and excise taxes on undistributed income.

1940 Act Exemption

We intend to conduct our operations so tieggther we nor any of our subsidiaries are reguioeregister as an investment company u
the 1940 Act. Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the 1940 Acfides an investment company as any issuer thathslds itself out as being engaged
primarily in the business of investing, reinvestorgrading in securities. Section 3(a)(1)(C) af #9040 Act defines an investment company as
any issuer that is engaged or proposes to engape business of investing, reinvesting, owninddimy or trading in securities and owns or
proposes to acquire investment securities havivejwe exceeding 40% of the value of the issuetd &ssets (exclusive of U.S. Government
securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated,lmaghe "40% test." Excluded from the term "istraent securities,” among other things,
are U.S. Government securities and securities dsbyanajority-owned subsidiaries that are not thelies investment companies and are not
relying on the exception from the definition of @stment company for private funds set forth in ®ac8(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the 1940
Act.
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We are organized as a holding companydbiadlucts its businesses primarily through whollyned subsidiaries. We intend to conduct
our operations so that we do not come within tHedien of an investment company because less ## of the value of our adjusted total
assets on an unconsolidated basis will consisheg$tment securities." The securities issued lyyvemolly owned or majority-owned
subsidiaries that we may form in the future thatexcepted from the definition of "investment compabased on Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7)
of the 1940 Act, together with any other investmsaturities we may own, may not have a value ieexof 40% of the value of our adjusted
total assets on an unconsolidated basis. We wiflitooour holdings to ensure continuing and ongaiompliance with this test. In addition,
we believe we will not be considered an investnoamtpany under Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the 1940 Aatahese we will not engage primarily
hold ourselves out as being engaged primarily énfthsiness of investing, reinvesting or tradinganurities. Rather, through our wholly
owned subsidiaries, we will be primarily engagedthi@ non-investment company businesses of thesidsaries.

If the value of securities issued by oursidiaries that are excepted from the definitiotlimfestment company" by Section 3(c)(1) or 3
(c)(7) of the 1940 Act, together with any otherdstment securities we own, exceeds 40% of our edjustal assets on an unconsolidated
basis, or if one or more of such subsidiariestéaihaintain an exception or exemption from the 184€ we could, among other things, be
required either (a) to substantially change themeaim which we conduct our operations to avoicheequired to register as an investment
company or (b) to register as an investment compaaler the 1940 Act, either of which could haveadwerse effect on us and the market
price of our securities. If we were required toisegy as an investment company under the 1940wetould, among other things, be requ
either to (a) change the manner in which we conducbperations to avoid being required to regiatean investment company, (b) effect
sales of our assets in a manner that, or at aving®, we would not otherwise choose to do so, Joregister as an investment company, any
of which could negatively affect the value of oontmon stock, the sustainability of our business ehaghd our ability to make distributions
which could have an adverse effect on our busiardghe market price for our shares of common stock

We expect that certain of our subsidiatiieg we may form in the future may rely upon theraption from registration as an investment
company under the 1940 Act pursuant to Section(3)(€}) of the 1940 Act, which is available for diets "primarily engaged"” in the business
of "purchasing or otherwise acquiring mortgages @her liens on and interests in real estate.” €hemption generally requires that at least
55% of these subsidiaries' assets comprise quadifigal estate assets and at least 80% of eableiopbrtfolios must comprise qualifying
real estate assets and real estate-related assetsthe 1940 Act. Specifically, we expect eachwfsubsidiaries relying on Section 3(c)(5)
(C) to invest at least 55% of its assets in morgagns, certain mezzanine loans and B-Notes drat otterests in real estate that constitute
qualifying real estate assets in accordance wit@ Staff guidance, and approximately an additio®8b2f its assets in other types of
mortgages, securities of REITs and other real estdated assets. We expect each of our subsislisfiging on Section 3(c)(5)(C) to rely on
guidance published by the SEC staff or on our asalyf guidance published with respect to othexsygd assets to determine which assets
are qualifying real estate assets and real estéated assets. The SEC has not published guidaititeespect to the treatment of CMBS for
purposes of the Section 3(c)(5)(C) exemption. Unies receive further guidance from the SEC ont## svith respect to CMBS, we intend
treat CMBS as a real estate-related asset. Then®&Qn the future take a view different than ortcary to our analysis with respect to the
types of assets we have determined to be qualifgabestate assets. To the extent that the SE(pataishes new or different guidance with
respect to these matters, we may be required tstdjr strategy accordingly. In addition, we mayitmited in our ability to make certain
investments and these limitations could resulhagubsidiary holding assets we might wish toaedlelling assets we might wish to hold.
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The SEC staff, according to published goaa takes the view that certain mezzanine load€BaNotes are qualifying real estate assets.
Thus, we intend to treat certain mezzanine loadsBahlotes as qualifying real estate assets.

The SEC recently solicited public commemiaowide range of issues relating to Section 3jfJ(pof the 1940 Act, including the nature
of the assets that qualify for purposes of the gt&m and whether mortgage REITs should be regdiimt@ manner similar to investment
companies. There can be no assurance that theatawegulations governing the 1940 Act status dffREncluding the SEC or its staff
providing more specific or different guidance ratiag these exemptions, will not change in a matimatradversely affects our operations. If
we or our subsidiaries fail to maintain an excaptio exemption from the 1940 Act, we could, amotigeothings, be required either to
(a) change the manner in which we conduct our dipaisto avoid being required to register as aestment company, (b) effect sales of our
assets in a manner that, or at a time when, wedvoatl otherwise choose to do so, or (¢) registamasvestment company, any of which
could negatively affect the value of our commorcktdhe sustainability of our business model, amdatility to make distributions which
could have an adverse effect on our business anchéinket price for our shares of common stock.

Although we monitor our portfolio periodiygand prior to each investment origination or aisition, there can be no assurance that we
will be able to maintain this exemption from regasion for these subsidiaries.

Certain of our subsidiaries may rely onéiemption provided by Section 3(c)(6) to the ektkat they hold mortgage assets through
majority-owned subsidiaries that rely on Sectiot)@)(C). The SEC has issued little interpretivédgace with respect to Section 3(c)(6) and
any guidance published by the staff could requéréouadjust our strategy accordingly.

We determine whether an entity is one ofrogjority-owned subsidiaries. The 1940 Act defingsajority-owned subsidiary of a person
as a company 50% or more of the outstanding vatémgirities of which are owned by such person, arimther company which is a
majority-owned subsidiary of such person. The 1940 Act &rtefines voting securities as any security pridsentitling the owner or hold
thereof to vote for the election of directors afempany. We treat companies in which we own at leasajority of the outstanding voting
securities as majority-owned subsidiaries for pagsoof the 40% test. We have not requested thet®Bfprove our treatment of any
company as a majority- owned subsidiary and the B&ot done so. If the SEC were to disagreeauitltreatment of one or more
companies as majority-owned subsidiaries, we woekl to adjust our strategy and our assets in tadamtinue to pass the 40% test. Any
such adjustment in our strategy could have a natadverse effect on us.

To the extent that the SEC staff provideserspecific guidance regarding any of the matteesing upon the exceptions we and our
subsidiaries rely on from the 1940 Act, we maydxguired to adjust our strategy accordingly. Anyitholdal guidance from the SEC staff
could provide additional flexibility to us, or ibald further inhibit our ability to pursue the srgies we have chosen.

COMPETITION

Our net income depends, in part, on ouitald originate or acquire assets at favorableeagds over our borrowing costs. In originating
or acquiring our target investments, we competé wiher REITS, specialty finance companies, savamgtsloan associations, banks,
mortgage bankers, insurance companies, mutual fimstgutional investors, investment banking firrfinancial institutions, governmental
bodies; fund managers and other entities. See "anant's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Camdiand Results of Operations—
Factors Impacting Our Operating Results—Market @ans." In addition, there are numerous REITs veitmilar asset origination and
acquisition objectives and others may be organiizélde future. These other REITs will increase cetitjpn for the available supply of
mortgage assets suitable for purchase and origmaany of our anticipated
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competitors are significantly larger than we ard have considerably greater financial, technicalketing and other resources than we do.
Some competitors may have a lower cost of fundsagrdss to funding sources that are not availahls,tsuch as the U.S. Government.
Many of our competitors are not subject to the afieg constraints associated with REIT tax comgiéaar maintenance of an exemption
from the 1940 Act. In addition, some of our comimes may have higher risk tolerances or differésk assessments, which could allow them
to consider a wider variety of investments andi#istia more relationships than us. Current marketidtdons may attract more competitors,
which may increase the competition for sourcesrafrfcing. An increase in the competition for sosroéfunding could adversely affect the
availability and cost of financing, and thereby axbely affect the market price of our common st&gde "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems—Factors Impacting Our Operating Results—Ma@onditions."

In the face of this competition, we haveess to our Manager's and Ares Management's prafieds and their industry expertise, which
may provide us with a competitive advantage and belassess investment risks and determine apatericing for certain potential
investments. These relationships enable us to ctemmpere effectively for attractive investment ogpaities. In addition, we believe that
current market conditions may have adversely agfthe financial condition of certain competitdrbus, not having a legacy portfolio may
also enable us to compete more effectively fonative investment opportunities. However, we malyb®able to achieve our business goals
or expectations due to the competitive risks thaface. For additional information concerning thesmpetitive risks, see "Risk Factors—
Risks Related to Our Investments—We operate imapetitive market for investment opportunities andchpetition may limit our ability to
originate or acquire desirable investments in atget investments and could also affect the prioifipese securities."

STAFFING

We are externally managed by our Managesyant to the management agreement between ourgdaaad us. Our executive officers
also serve as officers of our Manager. We do neélamy employees.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

We have entered into a management agreemignour Manager pursuant to which it providestfte day-to-day management of our
operations. The management agreement requires anadér to manage our business affairs in conforwiity the investment guidelines and
policies that are approved and monitored by ourdoédirectors. Our Manager's role as Managendeu the supervision and direction of
our board of directors.

Management Services

Our Manager is responsible for (a) thect@la, the origination or purchase and the saleufportfolio investments, (b) our financing
activities and (c) providing us with investment vy services. Our Manager is responsible forday-to-day operations and will perform
(or will cause to be performed) such services anidities relating to our assets and operationsag be appropriate, which may include,
without limitation, the following:

(i) serving as our consultant with regtge the periodic review of the investment guide$i and other parameters for our
investments, financing activities and operatiomy, modification to which will be approved by ourdrd of directors;

(ii) investigating, analyzing and selagtpossible investment opportunities and origirgtacquiring, financing, retaining,
selling, restructuring or disposing of investmertsasistent with the investment guidelines;
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(i) with respect to prospective purchassales or exchanges of investments, conductiggtiations on our behalf with sellers,
purchasers and brokers and, if applicable, thepeetive agents and representatives;

(iv) negotiating and entering into, on tehalf, repurchase agreements, interest rate agraements and other agreements and
instruments required for us to conduct our business

(v) engaging and supervising, on our Hedrad at our expense, independent contractorsptteeide investment banking,
securities brokerage, mortgage brokerage and fitteercial services, due diligence services, undiéivg review services, legal and
accounting services, and all other services (irinytransfer agent and registrar services) as reagdfuired relating to our operations
or investments (or potential investments);

(vi) coordinating and managing operatiohany joint venture or co-investment interestsdh®f us and conducting all matters
with the joint venture or co-investment partners;

(vii) providing executive and administraipersonnel, office space and office services redun rendering services to us;

(viii) administering the day-to-day operatsoand performing and supervising the performamsaich other administrative
functions necessary to our management as may beadgpon by our Manager and our board of directoctyding the collection of
revenues and the payment of our debts and obligatiad maintenance of appropriate computer sertagesrform such
administrative functions;

(iX) communicating on our behalf with thelders of any of our equity or debt securitieseapiired to satisfy the reporting and
other requirements of any governmental bodies eneigs or trading markets and to maintain effeatdlations with such holders,
including website maintenance, logo design, anglyesentations, investor conferences and annuaingesrangements;

(x) counseling us in connection with pgldecisions to be made by our board of directors;

(xi) evaluating and recommending to ouatoloof directors hedging strategies and engagitgdying activities on our behalf,
consistent with such strategies as so modified fiiore to time, with our qualification as a REIT anih our investment guidelines;

(xii) counseling us regarding the maintereaaf our qualification as a REIT and monitoringngdiance with the various REIT
qualification tests and other rules set out inGloele and Treasury Regulations thereunder and asimgnercially reasonable efforts to
cause us to qualify for taxation as a REIT;

(xiii) counseling us regarding the maintec&nf our exemption from the status of an investreempany required to register
under the 1940 Act, monitoring compliance with thguirements for maintaining such exemption andgisommercially reasonable
efforts to cause us to maintain such exemption fsaoh status;

(xiv) furnishing reports and statistical ambnomic research to us regarding our activitiessservices performed for us by our
Manager;

(xv) monitoring the operating performané®or investments and providing periodic reportghwespect thereto to the board of
directors, including comparative information wittspect to such operating performance and budgetejected operating results;

(xvi) investing and reinvesting any monegsd aecurities of ours (including investing in sh@nm investments pending
investment in other investments, payment of feestscand expenses, or payments of dividends aitdigbns to our stockholders and
partners) and advising us as to our capital stracind capital raising;
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(xvii) causing us to retain qualified accaamts and legal counsel, as applicable, to assdg\veloping appropriate accounting
procedures and systems, internal controls and atirapliance procedures and testing systems witiestgo financial reporting
obligations and compliance with the provisionshef Code applicable to REITs and, if applicable, $R#id to conduct quarterly
compliance reviews with respect thereto;

(xviii) assisting us in qualifying to do bus#s in all applicable jurisdictions and to obtaiid anaintain all appropriate licenses;

(xix) assisting us in complying with all idgtory requirements applicable to us in respecusfbusiness activities, including
preparing or causing to be prepared all finandatksnents required under applicable regulationscantractual undertakings and all
reports and documents, if any, required under dwiities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeithedtExchange Act," or the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the "Sdesrfict,” or by the NYSE;

(xx) assisting us in taking all necessartyom to enable us to make required tax filings eeqbrts, including soliciting
stockholders for required information to the extesgjuired by the provisions of the Code applicablREITS;

(xxi) placing, or arranging for the placernef) all orders pursuant to our Manager's investingeterminations for us either
directly with the issuer or with a broker or dedlecluding any affiliated broker or dealer);

(xxii) handling and resolving all claims, piges or controversies (including all litigationb#ration, settlement or other
proceedings or negotiations) in which we may belwed or to which we may be subject arising oubwf day-to-day operations
(other than with our Manager or its affiliates)bgct to such limitations or parameters as maynryised from time to time by the
board of directors;

(xxiii) using commercially reasonable effoitscause expenses incurred by us or on our behbl tommercially reasonable or
commercially customary and within any budgeted patars or expense guidelines set by the boardettdrs from time to time;

(xxiv) advising us with respect to and struictg long-term financing vehicles for our portfolid assets, and offering and selling
securities publicly or privately in connection wihy such structured financing;

(xxv) forming an Investment Committee;
(xxvi) forming an Underwriting Committee;

(xxvii) serving as our consultant with respextiecisions regarding any of our financings, heggictivities or borrowings
undertaken by us, including (A) assisting us, imedeping criteria for debt and equity financingttigaspecifically tailored to our
investment objectives, and (B) advising us wittpees to obtaining appropriate financing for ouréetments;

(xxviii) providing us with portfolio managemesgrvices and monitoring services;

(xxix) arranging marketing materials, adwartg, industry group activities (such as conferguanticipations and industry
organization memberships) and other promotionareffdesigned to promote our business;

(xxx) performing such other services as imayequired from time to time for management ameoactivities relating to our
assets and business as our board of directorsrehathnably request or our Manager shall deem pppte under the particular
circumstances; and

(xxxi) using commercially reasonable effddscause us to comply with all applicable laws.
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Liability and I ndemnification

Pursuant to the management agreement, anader will not assume any responsibility othenttearender the services called for
thereunder in good faith. It will not be responsifidr any action of our board of directors in feliag or declining to follow its advice or
recommendations, including as set forth in the $tvent guidelines. Our Manager maintains a contedets opposed to a fiduciary
relationship with us. However, to the extent thaptoyees of our Manager also serve as officere®Company, such officers will owe us
duties under Maryland law in their capacity asa#fs of the Company, which may include the dutgxercise reasonable care in the
performance of such officers' responsibilitiesywadl as the duties of loyalty, good faith and cahdisclosure. Under the terms of the
management agreement, our Manager and its affiliared any of their members, stockholders, managarmers, personnel, officers,
directors, employees, consultants and any persmriding sub-advisory services to our Manager, nilt be liable to us, our directors,
stockholders, partners or members for any actsnigssions (including errors that may result frominady negligence, such as errors in the
investment decision-making process or in the trrdeess) performed in accordance with and purdoathie management agreement, except
by reason of acts or omissions constituting batth favillful misconduct, gross negligence, or recdelisregard of their duties under the
management agreement, as determined by a finahppealable order of a court of competent jurisdictWe have agreed to indemnify our
Manager, its affiliates and any of their officessgckholders, members, partners, managers, disggersonnel, employees, consultants and
any person providing sub-advisory services to oandyjer with respect to all expenses, losses, danlafglities, demands, charges and
claims arising from acts of our Manager not constig bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligenor reckless disregard of duties, arising
from acts or omissions performed in good faithdnadance with and pursuant to the managementmgreaeOur Manager has agreed to
indemnify us, our directors, officers, stockholdgrartners or members and any persons controlBngitln respect to all expenses, losses,
damages, liabilities, demands, charges and claiisisig from acts or omissions of our Manager caunstig bad faith, willful misconduct,
gross negligence or reckless disregard of its dutigler the management agreement or any claimardylanager's employees relating to the
terms and conditions of their employment by our Btgar. Notwithstanding the foregoing, our Manageriea errors and omissions and other
customary insurance coverage.

Management Team

Pursuant to the terms of the managemeeeaggnt, our Manager is required to provide us mithmanagement team, along with
appropriate support personnel, to provide the mamagt services to be provided by our Manager tdlase of such persons are employed
directly by us, nor will they be dedicated excledwto us. Members of our management team arenesjtop devote such time as is necessary
and appropriate commensurate with the level ofaativity.

Our Manager is required to refrain from acyion that, in its sole judgment made in goothfgia) is not in compliance with the
investment guidelines, (b) would adversely and nieltg affect our qualification as a REIT under tGede or our status as an entity intended
to be exempted or excluded from investment comséaiys under the 1940 Act, or (c) would violate kw, rule or regulation of any
governmental body or agency having jurisdictionray& or of any exchange on which our securities bwljsted or that would otherwise not
be permitted by our charter or bylaws. If our Magiaig ordered to take any action by our board fadors, our Manager will promptly notify
the board of directors if it is our Manager's judggrthat such action would adversely and materé&figct such status or violate any such |
rule or regulation or our charter or bylaws. Ourridger, its affiliates and any of their membersgldtolders, managers, partners, personnel,
officers, directors, employees, consultants andmargon providing sub-advisory services to our Mgnavill not be liable to us, our board of
directors, our stockholders, partners or membersarfiy act or omission by our Manager or any oéiféiates, except as provided in the
management agreement.
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Term and Termination

The management agreement may be amendeddified by agreement between us and our Manader ifiitial term of the manageme
agreement expires on May 1, 2015, and will be aatarally renewed for a one-year term each annivemate thereafter unless previously
terminated as described below. Our independenttdire will review our Manager's performance andrttemagement fees annually and,
following the initial term, the management agreetmeay be terminated annually upon the affirmatistevof at least two-thirds of our
independent directors, based upon (a) unsatisfapenformance that is materially detrimental tdalen as a whole, or (b) our determination
that the management fees payable to our Managemafair, subject to our Manager's right to prengrch termination due to unfair fees by
accepting a reduction of management fees agreleg ab least two-thirds of our independent directdve must provide 180 days' prior
written notice of any such termination. Unless tieated for cause, our Manager will be paid a teatiom fee equal to three times the sum of
the average annual base management fee and ireéiduring the 24-month period immediately prawpdhost recently completed fiscal
quarter prior to the date of termination.

We may also terminate the management agmeieat any time, including during the initial terwithout the payment of any termination
fee, with 30 days' prior written notice from ourad of directors for cause, which is defined as:

. our Manager's continued breach of any materialipimv of the management agreement following a pleoio30 days after
written notice thereof (or 45 days after writtertio® of such breach if our Manager, under certaitumstances, has taken
steps to cure such breach within 30 days of thdemrinotice);

. the commencement of any proceeding relatingedainkruptcy or insolvency of our Manager, inahgdan order for relief in
an involuntary bankruptcy case or our Manager aigimy or filing a voluntary bankruptcy petition;

. any change of control of our Manager which a majasf our independent directors determines is nigtgrdetrimental to us
taken as a whole;

. our Manager committing fraud against us, misappating or embezzling our funds, or acting, dlifig to act, in a manner
constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, grossgtigence or reckless disregard in the performafés duties under the
management agreemeptpvided , however , that if any of these actions is caused by an eysa of our Manager or one of its
affiliates and our Manager (or such affiliate) tald necessary and appropriate action againstpeidon and cures the
damage caused by such actions within 30 days oMamager's actual knowledge of its commission oission, the
management agreement shall not be terminable; and

. the dissolution of our Manager.
During the initial three-year term of thamagement agreement, we may not terminate the reareag agreement except for cause.

Our Manager may assign the agreement enitisety or delegate certain of its duties untiermanagement agreement to any of its
affiliates without the approval of our independdimectors if such assignment or delegation doeseamtire our approval under the 1940 Act.

Our Manager may terminate the managemeeeagent if we become required to register as agsimvent company under the 1940 Act,
with such termination deemed to occur immediatelipke such event, in which case we would not baired to pay a termination fee. Our
Manager may decline to renew the management agradmeroviding us with 180 days' written notice which case we would not be
required to pay a termination fee. In additionyé default in the performance
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of any material term of the agreement and the diefantinues for a period of 30 days after writtetice to us specifying such default and
requesting the same be remedied in 30 days, oual§garmay terminate the management agreement upday80written notice. If the
management agreement is terminated by our Mangger aur breach, we would be required to pay ouraden the termination fee descril
above.

We may not assign our rights or responisidsl under the management agreement without tloe written consent of our Manager,
except in the case of assignment to another REBEh@ar organization which is our successor, in Wihiase such successor organization will
be bound under the management agreement and bgrthe of such assignment in the same manner asedmand under the management
agreement.

Management Fees, | ncentive Fees and Expense Reimbursements

We do not maintain an office or directlym@oy personnel. Instead, we rely on the facilia@sl resources of our Manager to manage our
day-to-day operations.

Base Management Fee

We pay our Manager a base management fes #111.5% of our stockholders' equity per annunh @alculated and payable quarterly in
arrears in cash. For purposes of calculating tise b@anagement fee, our stockholders' equity méante sum of (i) the net proceeds from
all issuances of our equity securities since iricepallocated on a pro rata daily basis for swstuances during the fiscal quarter of any such
issuance), plus (ii) our retained earnings at tieeaf the most recently completed fiscal quarteéeigeined in accordance with GAAP,
(without taking into account any non-cash equitsnpensation expense incurred in current or prioiogs), less (b) (x) any amount that we
have paid to repurchase our common stock sinceiiore (y) any unrealized gains and losses and otbe-cash items that have impacted
stockholders' equity as reported in our finandialesnents prepared in accordance with GAAP, andr(gjtime events pursuant to changes in
GAAP, and certain non-cash items not otherwiserileesd above, in each case after discussions betogelanager and our independent
directors and approval by a majority of our indegemt directors. As a result, our stockholders'tyqédr purposes of calculating the
management fee, could be greater or less thamtbera of stockholders' equity shown on our finahsiatements. Our Manager uses the
proceeds from its management fee in part to paypeosation to its officers and personnel who, ndéitstanding that certain of them also are
our officers, receive no cash compensation dirdotign us. The management fee is payable indeperdéhne performance of our portfolio.

The management fee of our Manager shatbbmulated within 30 days after the end of eaatefisiuarter and such calculation shall be
promptly delivered to us. We are obligated to gay/management fee in cash within five business dfigsdelivery to us of the written
statement of our Manager setting forth the compriaif the management fee for such quarter. The bemagement fee paid to our Mane
for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $1.7omilli

Incentive Fee

We pay our Manager an incentive fee witpeet to each fiscal quarter (or part thereof tih@imanagement agreement is in effect) in
arrears in cash. The incentive fee is an amountess than zero, equal to the difference betwéBrthe product of (i) 20% and (ii) the
difference between (A) our Core Earnings (as definelow) for the previous 12-month period, and t{i&) product of (1) the weighted
average issue price per share of our common stioak af our public offerings of common stock mplied by the weighted average number
of shares of common stock outstanding (including rastricted shares of our common stock, restristedk units or any shares of our
common stock not yet issued, but underlying otlnaards granted under our 2012 Equity Incentive
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Plan) in the previous 12-month period, and (2) &¥#d (b) the sum of any incentive fees earned byMamager with respect to the first three
fiscal quarters of such previous 12-month perdyided , however , that no incentive fee is payable with respecrty fiscal quarter unless
cumulative Core Earnings for the 12 most recentiypgleted fiscal quarters is greater than zero. Earaings is a measure not prepared in
accordance with GAAP and is defined as GAAP netime (loss) excluding non-cash equity compensatiperse, the incentive fee,
depreciation and amortization (related to targ@tgdstments that are structured as debt to thenettiat we foreclose on any properties
underlying our target investments), any unrealigaiths, losses or other na@ash items that are included in net income (lass)He applicabl
reporting period, regardless of whether such itaresncluded in other comprehensive income or loiss) net income (loss). The amount
be adjusted to exclude one-time events pursuasttanges in GAAP and certain other non-cash chafiesdiscussions between our
Manager and our independent directors and afteloappby a majority of our independent directors. iNcentive fees were earned for the
year ended December 31, 2012 or for the period Beptember 1, 2011 (inception) to December 31, Z

Pursuant to the calculation formula, if E&arnings increases from one quarter to the mekttee weighted average share price and
weighted average number of shares of common statskamding remain constant, the incentive fee gaherally increase.

For purposes of calculating the incentiee prior to the completion of a 12-month periogvitich the management agreement has been
in effect, Core Earnings will be calculated on fiasis of the number of days that the managemeaeagmt has been in effect on an
annualized basis.

Our Manager will compute each quarterlyatiment of the incentive fee within 45 days atteg end of the fiscal quarter with respect to
which such installment is payable and promptlyw@@lisuch calculation to our board of directors. &hmount of the installment shown in the
calculation will be due and payable no later tHandate which is five business days after the dfatielivery of such computation to our bo
of directors.

Reimbursement of Expenses

We reimburse our Manager for the expensssribed below. Expense reimbursements to our Mareg@ made in cash on a monthly
basis following the end of each month or when 8ilby our Manager. Our reimbursement obligationassubject to any dollar limitation.
Because our Manager's personnel perform certail, lagcounting, due diligence tasks and other sesvihat outside professionals or outside
consultants otherwise would perform, our Managgaisl or reimbursed for the documented cost ofgoering such tasks, provided that such
costs and reimbursements are in amounts whichaageaater than those which would be payable todritsrofessionals or consultants
engaged to perform such services pursuant to agm#smegotiated on an arm's length basis.

We also pay all operating expenses, extese specifically required to be borne by our Mgamainder the management agreement. The
expenses required to be paid by us include, but@rémited to:

. expenses in connection with the issuance amddidion costs incident to the origination, acdaisj disposition and financing
of our investments;

. costs of legal, financial, tax, accounting, $gng, due diligence consulting, auditing and otsienilar services rendered for us
by providers retained by our Manager or, if prodds our Manager's personnel, in amounts that agreater than those that
would be payable to outside professionals or ceastd engaged to perform such services pursuagreements negotiated
an arm's length basis;
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. the compensation and expenses of our directorshendost of liability insurance to indemnify ouretitors and officers and ¢
allocable portion of the fidelity bond, directorsdaofficers/errors and omissions liability insuranand any other insurance
premium;

. costs associated with the establishment andtera@nce of any of our secured funding facilitigheo financing arrangements,

or other indebtedness of ours (including commitniees, accounting fees, legal fees, closing aneratimilar costs) or any of
our securities offerings;

. expenses connected with communications to holdesarcssecurities and other bookkeeping and clesieak necessary in
maintaining relations with holders of such secesitand in complying with the continuous reporting ather requirements of
governmental bodies or agencies, including allso$preparing and filing required reports with 8EC, the costs payable by
us to any transfer agent and registrar in conneetith the listing and/or trading of our securit@sany exchange, the fees
payable by us to any such exchange in connectitmitsilisting, costs of preparing, printing andiling our annual report to
our stockholders and proxy materials with respeetrty meeting of our stockholders;

. costs associated with any computer softwareacaviaare, electronic equipment or purchased infaondechnology services
from third-party vendors that is used for us;

. expenses incurred by managers, officers, pers@amtehgents of our Manager for travel on our bednadf other out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by managers, officers, pers@amtehgents of our Manager in connection with thelmse, financing,
refinancing, sale or other disposition of an inwestt or establishment and maintenance of any ofecuritizations or any of
our securities offerings;

. costs and expenses incurred with respect toeharformation systems and publications, reseatdiligations and materials,
and settlement, clearing and custodial fees andresqgs;

. compensation and expenses of our custodian ansféraagent, if any;

. the costs of maintaining compliance with all fedestate and local rules and regulations or angmotbgulatory agency;

. all federal, state and local taxes and license fees

. all insurance costs incurred in connection withdperation of our business except for the costidbatable to the insurance tl

our Manager elects to carry for itself and its parsl;

. costs and expenses incurred in contracting thitd parties;

. all other costs and expenses relating to ouinkesgs and investment operations, including thescaisti expenses of originating,
acquiring, owning, protecting, maintaining, devefgpand disposing of investments, including apdaieporting, audit and
legal fees;

. expenses (including our pro rata portion of rezigfghone, printing, mailing, utilities, office futare, equipment, machinery

and other office, internal and overhead expenstalimg to any office(s) or office facilities, inaling disaster backup recovery
sites and facilities, maintained for us or our stweents or the investments of our Manager or tiéilrates required for our
operation;

. expenses connected with the payments of interegtlethds or distributions in cash or any other fauthorized or caused to
made by the board of directors to or on accouthiodders of our securities, including in connectiath any dividend
reinvestment plan;

. any judgment or settlement of pending or threatgmedeedings (whether civil, criminal or otherwisgainst us, or against ¢
trustee, director, partner, member or officer obus his
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or her capacity as such for which we are requioeddemnify such trustee, director, partner, menthafficer by any court or
governmental agency;

. expenses connected with calculating Core Earningtuging the cost and expenses of any independguaation firm); and

. all other expenses actually incurred by our Man#egecept as described below) which are reasonadigssary for the
performance by our Manager of its duties and femgtiunder the management agreement.

We do not reimburse our Manager for tharéeé and other compensation of its personnel,ptxXoe the allocable share of the salaries
and other compensation of our (a) Chief Financificér, based on the percentage of his time sperhe Company's affairs and (b) other
corporate finance, tax, accounting, internal audgal, risk management, operations, complianceocéimer non-investment professional
personnel of our Manager or its affiliates who spelh or a portion of their time managing our affabased on the percentage of their time
spent on the Company's affairs. In addition, weragriired to pay our pro rata portion of rent, ppelene, utilities, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegibases of our Manager and its affiliates requicedur operations.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file with or submit to the SEC annualaterly and current periodic reports, proxy staeta and other information meeting the
informational requirements of the Exchange Act.sTihformation is available free of charge by calirs collect at (312) 324-5900 or on our
website atwww.arescre.com. The information on our website is not deemed inomated by reference in this annual report. You elsy
inspect and copy these reports, proxy statemegtetuer information, as well as the annual repod @elated exhibits and schedules, at the
Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Streef, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain informaton the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0BB6 SEC maintains an Internet site that contapserts, proxy and information
statements and other information filed electromyclay us with the SEC which are available on th&€SHnternet site atww.sec.gov . Copies
of these reports, proxy and information statementsother information may be obtained, after pagmyiplicating fee, by electronic request
at the following e-mail addresgublicinfo@sec.gov , or by writing the SEC's Public Reference Roonf) EGtreet, NE, Washington, D.C.
20549.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the other information included in this annual report, including our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto, before you decide whether to make an investment in our securities. Therisks
set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deemto be
immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or operating results. If any of the following events occur,
our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the value of our common stock
and the trading price of our securities could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH OUR MANAGER AND ITS AFFILIATES

Our future success depends on our Manager, its kgyersonnel and their access to the investment prof@snals of Ares Management.
We may not find a suitable replacement for our Manger if our management agreement is terminated, off such key personnel or
investment professionals leave the employment of oManager or Ares Management or otherwise become wavailable to us.

We have no separate facilities and do agetany employees. We rely completely on our Mantgprovide us with investment
advisory services. Our executive officers also s@w officers of our Manager. Our Manager has figmit discretion as to the
implementation of our investment and operatinggies and strategies. Accordingly, we believe thatsuccess depends to a significant
extent upon the efforts, experience, diligencd| akid network of business contacts of the officard key personnel of our Manager. The
officers and key personnel of our Manager evaluzgptiate, close and monitor our investmentsgefioee, our success depends on their
continued service. The departure of any of theceffi or key personnel of our Manager could haveinmal adverse effect on our business.

Our Manager is not obligated to dedicatg specific personnel exclusively to us. None of officers are obligated to dedicate any
specific portion of their time to our business. Ea€ them has significant responsibilities for athrevestment vehicles managed by affiliates
of Ares Management. As a result, these individuady not always be able to devote sufficient timtheomanagement of our business.
Further, when there are turbulent conditions inrded estate markets or distress in the credit etasrkhe attention of our Manager's personnel
and our executive officers and the resources o§ Management will also be required by other investinvehicles managed by affiliates of
Ares Management.

In addition, we offer no assurance thatManager will remain our investment manager or thawill continue to have access to our
Manager's officers and key personnel. The inigaint of our management agreement with our Managaresxon May 1, 2015, and will be
automatically renewed for one-year terms thereafterthermore, our Manager may decline to renewrthaagement agreement with
180 days' written notice. If the management agreg¢iisg¢erminated and no suitable replacement inddo manage us, we may not be able to
execute our investment strategy.

We also depend on the diligence, skill aativork of business contacts of key personnel @ftes Private Debt Group and access tc
investment professionals of other groups withinsAxanagement and the information and deal flow gegad by Ares Management's
investment professionals in the course of theiestment and portfolio management activities. Theadere of any of these individuals, or of
a significant number of the investment professismmalpartners of Ares Management, could have arfabselverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Wamat assure you that we will continue to have axteg\res Management's investment
professionals or its information and deal flow.
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Our growth depends on the ability of our Manager tomake investments on favorable terms that satisfyur investment strategy and
otherwise generate attractive risk-adjusted returngnitially and consistently from time to time.

Our ability to achieve our investment olijgzs depends on our ability to grow, which depemasurn, on the management and
investment teams of our Manager and their abititidentify and to make investments on favorablegein our target investments as well as
on our access to financing on acceptable termsd€hwnds on the time of the professional staffunfanager will increase as our portfolio
grows, and we cannot assure you that our Manadebevable to hire, train, supervise, manage atalrraew officers and employees to
manage future growth effectively, and any suchufailcould have a material adverse effect on ounbas.

There are various conflicts of interest in our reléionship with our Manager and Ares Management thatcould result in decisions that
are not in the best interests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interessiag out of our relationship with our Manager angé#\Management. In the future, we may enter
into additional transactions with Ares Managemaritaffiliates. In particular, we may invest acquire, sell assets to or provide financir
portfolio companies of investment vehicles managgedres Management or its affiliates or co-inveggthwpurchase assets from, sell assets
to, or arrange financing from any such investmeiticles and their portfolio companies. Any sucihsections will require approval by a
majority of our independent directors. There camb@ssurance that any procedural protectionswiufficient to ensure that these
transactions will be made on terms that will béeast as favorable to us as those that would hega bbtained in an arm's length transaction.
In addition, to the extent we co-invest with otihmerestment vehicles that are managed by affiliafesres Management, we will not be
responsible for fees other than as set forth innsamagement agreement, except our proportionate shéees charged by the managers of
such other investment vehicles if approved by aonitgjof our independent directors.

Our Manager and Ares Management have aghe¢dor so long as our Manager is managing ufherAres Management nor any of its
affiliates will sponsor or manage any other U.Sljaly traded REIT that invests primarily in thensa asset classes as us. Ares Management
and its affiliates may sponsor or manage anoth8r publicly traded REIT that invests generallyeéalrestate assets but not primarily in our
target investments.

Other than as set forth herein, neithersAanagement nor any of its affiliates (including Manager) currently manages any other
investment vehicle that primarily focuses on ougéainvestments and none of them have any cuptans to do so, but they may in the
future sponsor or manage other funds or investwemitles (other than U.S. publicly traded REITttimvest in our target investments. Our
Manager manages certain funds, real estate asgbts@llateralized debt obligation, or "CDO," thatre previously managed by
Wrightwood Capital LLC, or "Wrightwood." Ares Managnent acquired the investment platform of Wrightdicm provider of debt capital to
the U.S. CRE sector, in August 2011. None of thegtifwood vehicles will be making any further invesints (other than follow-on
investments in existing investments and additidmatlings pursuant to existing commitments).

Ares Management has an investment allocgt@dicy in place that is intended to enable ushare equitably with any other investment
vehicles that are managed by Ares Management.riargk investment opportunities are allocated gkio consideration various factors,
including, among others, the relevant investmehiales' available capital, their investment objeesi or strategies, their risk profiles and t
existing or prior positions in an issuer/security,well as potential conflicts of interest, theunatof the opportunity and market conditions.
The investment allocation policy may be amendedloyManager and Ares Management at any time witbautonsent.
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Certain former Wrightwood personnel who members of the Ares Commercial Real Estate Groupaxquity, partnership, profits or
other similar interests in Wrightwood and certdfiit®investment vehicles. The ownership of sudbrigsts may be viewed as creating a
conflict of interest insofar as such persons magike greater benefits, by virtue of such interestsn they would receive from our Manager.

In addition to the fees payable to our Mgeraunder the management agreement, our Managétsaaftiliates may benefit from other
fees paid to it in respect of our investments. &@mple, if we seek to securitize our CRE loangsAMlanagement and/or our Manager, may
act as collateral manager. In any of these or athpacities, Ares Management and/or our Managerrewgive market-based fees for their
roles, but only if approved by a majority of oudé@pendent directors.

As of December 31, 2012, Ares Investmeraklidgs LLC, or "Ares Investments," an affiliatemir Manager, beneficially owned
approximately 21.6% of our common stock. To theeiAres Investments sells some of these share$favager's interests may be less
aligned with our interests. In addition, Ares Inwesnts owns $1,150,000 aggregate principal amduiied2015 Convertible Notes.

The ability of our Manager and its officers and empoyees to engage in other business activities magduce the time our Manager
spends managing our business and may result in carh conflicts of interest.

Certain of our officers and directors, &né officers and other personnel of our Managen akrve or may serve as officers, directors or
partners of Ares Management, as well as Ares Managesponsored investment vehicles, including nigliated potential pooled
investment vehicles or managed accounts not yabkstied, whether managed or sponsored by Ares gdanment's affiliates or our Manager.
Accordingly, the ability of our Manager and itsioffrs and employees to engage in other busineis#tiastmay reduce the time our Manager
spends managing our business. These activitiesl teuviewed as creating a conflict of interest fasas the time and effort of the
professional staff of our Manager and its officansl employees will not be devoted exclusively shhsiness of the Company; instead it will
be allocated between the business of the Compahth@rmanagement of these other investment vehicles

In the course of our investing activitieg will pay base management fees to our Managemndhteimburse our Manager for certain
expenses it incurs. As a result, investors in amnmon stock will invest on a "gross" basis and ikexdistributions on a "net" basis after
expenses, resulting in, among other things, a loaterof return than one might achieve throughaflirevestments. As a result of this
arrangement, our Manager's interests may be leggedlwith our interests.

The management agreement with our Manager was notagotiated on an arm's length basis and may not besdavorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third pary.

We do not have any employees and rely cetelyl on our Manager to provide us with investraahtisory services. Our executive
officers also serve as officers of our Manager. @anagement agreement with our Manager was negftietween related parties and its
terms, including fees payable, may not be as fédler® us as if it had been negotiated with anfilizaéd third party.

We will pay our Manager substantial baseagement fees regardless of the performance giatfolio. Our Manager's entitlement t
base management fee, which is not based upon penfe metrics or goals, might reduce its incertbvdevote its time and effort to seeking
investments that provide attractive risk-adjusedms for our portfolio. This in turn could huxth our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders and the market price of our commocksto
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Terminating the management agreement for unsatisfdory performance of the Manager or electing not taenew the management
agreement may be difficult and terminating the agrement in certain circumstances requires payment & substantial termination fee.

Termination of the management agreement et Manager without cause is difficult and cos®ur independent directors will review
our Manager's performance and the management feesidy and, upon 180 days' written notice priothte expiration of the initial thregeai
term that expires on May 1, 2015, or any renewah t¢he management agreement may be terminatedtbpaffirmative vote of at least
two-thirds of our independent directors based uganour Manager's unsatisfactory performanceithataterially detrimental to us; or (b) a
determination that the management fees payablertManager are not fair, subject to our Managéglstto prevent termination based on
unfair fees by accepting a reduction of managerfes® agreed to by at least two-thirds of our indepet directors. Additionally, upon any
such termination, the management agreement prothdésve will pay our Manager a termination feeada three times the sum of the
average annual base management fee and incergivedeived by our Manager during the prior 24-mqg@hod before such termination,
calculated as of the end of the most recently ceteglfiscal quarter. This provision increases thst to us of terminating the management
agreement and adversely affects our ability to ireate our Manager without cause.

During the initial three-year term of thamagement agreement, we may not terminate the reareag agreement except for cause.
Our Manager's contractual commitment to manage usd limited to the initial three-year term of the maragement agreement.

Our Manager is only contractually committederve us until May 1, 2015. Thereafter, the ag@ment agreement automatically renews
for one-year termgrovided , however , that our Manager may terminate the managemeertawnt upon 180 days' written notice prior to the
expiration of the initial three-year term or anpewval term. If the management agreement is termihand no suitable replacement is found
to manage us, we may not be able to execute oasiment strategy.

The incentive fee payable to our Manager under thenxanagement agreement may cause our Manager to sdl@ovestments in riskier
assets to increase its incentive compensation.

Our Manager is entitled to receive incemttompensation based upon our achievement of éard¢miels of Core Earnings (see
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finar€@idition and Results of Operations—NGHWAP Financial Measures" for the definiti
of Core Earnings and a reconciliation of net incdioss) to Core Earnings). In evaluating investraemd other management strategies, the
opportunity to earn incentive compensation baseGane Earnings may lead our Manager to place uedyghasis on the maximization of
Core Earnings at the expense of other criteria) sisgoreservation of capital, in order to achieighdr incentive compensation. Investments
with higher yield potential are generally riskigrmore speculative. This could result in increasskito the value of our investment portfolio.

Our Manager manages our portfolio in accordance wh very broad investment guidelines and our board oflirectors does not approve
each investment and financing decision made by olanager, which may result in our making riskier investments than those
currently comprising our investment portfolio.

While our directors periodically review adavestment portfolio, they do not review all ofrqaroposed investments. In addition, in
conducting periodic reviews, our directors may m@iynarily on information provided to them by ourakager. Our investment guidelines
may be changed from time to time. Furthermore Manager may use complex strategies and transaaitesed into by our
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Manager that may be difficult or impossible to un@by the time they are reviewed by our direct@ngr Manager has great latitude in
determining the types of assets that are propestnvents for us, which could result in investmeniinns that are substantially below
expectations or that result in losses, which waondderially and adversely affect our business ofmratand results. In addition, our Manager
is not subject to any limits or proportions witlspect to the mix of target investments that weioaitg or acquire other than as necessary to
maintain our qualification as a REIT and our exdopfrom registration under the 1940 Act. Decisiomsde and investments entered into by
our Manager may not fully reflect your best intéses

Our Manager may change its investment process, otext not to follow it, without stockholder consentat any time, which may
adversely affect our investments.

Our Manager may change its investment m®eéthout stockholder consent at any time. In timlii there can be no assurance that our
Manager will follow its investment process in raatto the identification and underwriting of prespive investments. Changes in our
Manager's investment process may result in infeaorong other things, due diligence and undervgrisitandards, which may adversely af
the performance of our portfolio.

We do not have a policy that expressly prohibits audirectors, officers, stockholders or affiliates fom engaging for their own account
in business activities of the types conducted by us

We do not have a policy that expressly fimthour directors, officers, stockholders or lédfies from engaging for their own account in
business activities of the types conducted by asvévVer, our code of business conduct and ethickizana conflicts of interest policy that
prohibits our directors, officers and employeesrfrengaging in any transaction that involves anadaanflict of interest with us without the
approval of the audit committee of our board oédiors. In addition, our management agreementavitiManager does not prevent our
Manager and its affiliates from engaging in addiibmanagement or investment opportunities, sonvehath could compete with us, and ¢
code of business conduct and ethics acknowledg¢stich activities shall not be deemed a conffichterest.

Our Manager is subject to extensive regulation asrainvestment adviser, which could adversely affedts ability to manage our
business.

Our Manager is subject to regulation agmsastment adviser by various regulatory authcagitleat are charged with protecting the
interests of its clients, including us. Instancesrominal activity and fraud by participants iretinvestment management industry and
disclosures of trading and other abuses by paatitipin the financial services industry have ledthS. government and regulators to
consider increasing the rules and regulations gungr and oversight of, the U.S. financial systd@ims activity is expected to result in
changes to the laws and regulations governingnestment management industry and more aggressisecement of the existing laws and
regulations. Our Manager could be subject to di@dility, criminal liability, or sanction, includig revocation of its registration as an
investment adviser, revocation of the licensessoémployees, censures, fines, or temporary sugpeospermanent bar from conducting
business, if it is found to have violated any agh laws or regulations. Any such liability or g@mtcould adversely affect our Manager's
ability to manage our business. Our Manager mustirmeally address conflicts between its interesid #hose of its clients, including us. In
addition, the SEC and other regulators have inegk#seir scrutiny of potential conflicts of intere®ur Manager has procedures and controls
that are reasonably designed to address thesa issowever, appropriately dealing with conflictsimtierest is complex and difficult and if
our Manager fails, or appears to fail, to deal appately with conflicts of interest, it could fatidgation or regulatory proceedings or
penalties, any of which could adversely affecaltflity to manage our business.
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We may not replicate Ares Management's historical prformance.

We cannot assure you that we will replicates Management's historical performance, andawti@an you that our investment returns
could be substantially lower than the returns ackdeby other entities managed by Ares Managemeitd affiliates. Although such funds
share our general objective of targeting investsmansenior secured debt, each of them is or has fmeused on making senior debt
investments secured primarily by the corporatetassfeheir borrowers and none of them target itmesits in senior or any other loans
secured by CRE, which is our specific investmenjective.

We do not own the Ares name, but we may use the napursuant to a license agreement with Ares Managesnt. Use of the name by
other parties or the termination of our license ageement may harm our business.

We have entered into a license agreemehtAves Management pursuant to which it has gransea non-exclusive, royalty-free license
to use the name "Ares." Under this agreement, we haight to use this name for so long as Ares @eroial Real Estate Management LLC
serves as our Manager pursuant to the managemesnagnt. Ares Management retains the right to noatusing the "Ares" name. We
cannot preclude Ares Management from licensingansferring the ownership of the "Ares" name todiparties, some of whom may
compete with us. Consequently, we would be unabjrévent any damage to goodwill that may occw Bssult of the activities of Ares
Management or others. Furthermore, in the eventliedicense agreement is terminated, we willdguired to change our name and cease
using the name. Any of these events could disrupt@cognition in the market place, damage any gilbdre may have generated and
otherwise harm our business. The license agreemayte terminated by either party without penafipru180 days written notice to the
other.

Our Manager's and Ares Management's liability is Imited under the management agreement, and we havgreed to indemnify our
Manager against certain liabilities. As a result, & could experience poor performance or losses fothich our Manager would not be
liable.

Pursuant to the management agreement, anadyer does not assume any responsibility otharttheender the services called for
thereunder and will not be responsible for anyoactif our board of directors in following or dedtig to follow its advice or
recommendations. Under the terms of the manageageeement, our Manager, its officers, members, gensadirectors, personnel, any
person controlling or controlled by our Managecliling Ares Management, and any person providamgices to our Manager will not be
liable to us, any subsidiary of ours, our stockkaddor partners or any subsidiary's stockholdepaaners for acts or omissions performed in
accordance with and pursuant to the managementmagrd, except by reason of acts constituting bidldl, faillful misconduct, gross
negligence, or reckless disregard of their dutieden the management agreement. In addition, we &gneed to indemnify our Manager, its
officers, stockholders, members, managers, direcpmrsonnel, any person controlling or controigcbur Manager and any person provic
services to our Manager with respect to all expgrssses, damages, liabilities, demands, chargkslaims arising from acts of our Mana
not constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, gonegligence, or reckless disregard of dutie$ppeed in good faith in accordance with and
pursuant to the management agreement.

Our Manager and its affiliates, including Ares Management, have limited experience managing a portfaliof assets in the manner
necessary to maintain our exemption under the 1948ct.

In order to maintain our exemption fromisé@tion under the 1940 Act, the assets in outfplay are subject to certain restrictions that
limit our operations meaningfully. Our Manager atscaffiliates, including Ares Management, haveifed experience managing a portfolic
the manner necessary to maintain our exemption fegistration under the 1940 Act.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANY

We have limited operating history and may not be ale to operate our business successfully or generagafficient revenue to make or
sustain distributions to our stockholders.

We were organized on September 1, 2011pteted our IPO on May 1, 2012 and have limited afieg history. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to operate our business ssfaliyg or implement our operating policies and &gges as described in this annual report.
The results of our operations depend on severar@dncluding the availability of opportunitiesrfthe origination or acquisition of target
investments, the level and volatility of interestas, the availability of adequate short and la@rgitfinancing, conditions in the financial
markets and economic conditions. In addition, oture operating results and financial data may waajerially from the historical operating
results and financial data contained in this annesabrt because of a number of factors, includimgisand expenses associated with the
management agreement and being a public compamgeqaently, the historical financial statementgaioed in this annual report may not
be useful in assessing our likely future perfornganc

We have experienced losses in the past and may esipece similar losses in the future.

We incurred net operating losses for théogefrom September 1, 2011 (Inception) to Decen®iger2011. These losses have been
incurred primarily because we have been in th@irstages of building our investment portfolio. &sesult, our earnings have been highly
sensitive to a number of variables, including tb®eity and timing of new originations and our leg€operating expenses. Our operating
costs to date have been primarily funded with affgproceeds. We cannot assure you that we witirbétable in the future or that our target
investments will produce sufficient income to fumda operating expenses and dividends.

Our board of directors may change our investment sategy or guidelines, financing strategy or leverag policies without stockholder
consent.

Our board of directors may change our itmesit strategy or guidelines, financing strateglewerage policies with respect to
investments, originations, acquisitions, growtherapions, indebtedness, capitalization and digidbg at any time without the consent of our
stockholders, which could result in an investmentfplio with a different risk profile than that olur current investment portfolio or of a
portfolio comprised of our target investments. Aege in our investment strategy may increase quosxe to interest rate risk, default risk
and real estate market fluctuations. Furthermoohaage in our asset allocation could result inmaking investments in asset categories
different from those described in this annual réepbnese changes could adversely affect our firsdmeindition, results of operations, the
market price of our common stock and our abilityrtake distributions to our stockholders.

Changes in laws or regulations governing our oper&ns, changes in the interpretation thereof or newl enacted laws or regulations
(including, without limitation, laws and regulations having the effect of exempting mortgage REITs frm the 1940 Act) and any failure
by us to comply with these laws or regulations, cddi require changes to certain of our business praittes, negatively impact our
operations, cash flow or financial condition, impos additional costs on us or otherwise adversely afft our business.

We are subject to regulation by laws amii®tions at the local, state and federal. Thess End regulations, as well as their
interpretation, may change from time to time, aad/ taws and regulations may be enacted. Accordjragly change in these laws or
regulations, changes in their interpretation, awlgeenacted laws or regulations and any failuraipyo comply with current or new laws or
regulations or such changes thereto, could reghia@ges to certain of our business practices,
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negatively impact our operations, cash flow orficial condition, impose additional costs on ustheowise adversely affect our business.
Furthermore, if regulatory capital requirements asgd on our private lenders change, they may héregtjto limit, or increase the cost of,
financing they provide to us. In general, this copbtentially increase our financing costs and cedaur liquidity or require us to sell asset
an inopportune time or price.

Actions of the U.S. government, including the U.SCongress, Federal Reserve, U.S. Treasury and othgovernmental and regulatory
bodies, to stabilize or reform the financial markes, or market response to those actions, may not dekie the intended effect and may
adversely affect our business.

In response to the financial issues afffiecthe banking system and financial markets andggooncern threats to commercial banks,
investment banks and other financial institutiacghe, Emergency Economic Stabilization Act, or "EESAas enacted by the U.S. Congress in
2008. There can be no assurance that the EESAyathar U.S. government actions will have a bernafimpact on the financial markets.
the extent the markets do not respond favorab&ntosuch actions by the U.S. government or sucbrectio not function as intended, our
business may not receive the anticipated posithgact from the legislation and such result may Haead adverse market implications.

In July 2010, the U.S. Congress enactedtiud-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Primedict of 2010, or the "Dodd-Frank
Act," in part to impose significant investment restons and capital requirements on banking exgitind other organizations that are
significant to U.S. financial markets. For instantte Dodd-Frank Act will impose significant restidons on the proprietary trading activities
of certain banking entities and subject other syateally significant organizations regulated by thé. Federal Reserve to increased capital
requirements and quantitative limits for engagimguch activities. The Dodd-Frank Act also seekgtorm the asset-backed securitization
market (including the mortgage-backed securitieskataby requiring the retention of a portion oéttredit risk inherent in the pool of
securitized assets and by imposing additional tedisn and disclosure requirements. While theifajpact of the Dodd-Frank Act cannot be
assessed until all implementing regulations amas®d, the Dodd-Frank Act's extensive requirenmaaishave a significant effect on the
financial markets, and may affect the availabititterms of financing from our lender counterpartdd the availability or terms of mortgage-
backed securities, both of which may have an aéweffect on our business.

In addition, the U.S. government, Fedemdé&tve, U.S. Treasury and other governmental apndatry bodies have taken or are
considering taking other actions to address themfiral crisis. We cannot predict whether or wherhsactions may occur or what effect, if
any, such actions could have on our business,tsasubperations and financial condition.

The downgrade of the U.S. credit rating and the ecmmic crisis in Europe could negatively impact outiquidity, financial condition
and earnings.

The ongoing U.S. debt ceiling and budgétdeconcerns, together with signs of deteriorgtdovereign debt conditions in Europe, have
increased the possibility of additional credit-ngtdowngrades and economic slowdowns, or a regessibe U.S. Although U.S. lawmakers
passed legislation to raise the federal debt apitinrAugust 2011, Standard & Poor's Ratings Sesvioeered its long-term sovereign credit
rating on the United States from "AAA" to "AA." Thimpact of this or any further downgrades to th8.lgovernment's sovereign credit
rating or its perceived creditworthiness could adely affect the U.S. and global financial marlaatsl economic conditions. Further, Mooc
Investors Service has warned that it may downgtlaelé).S. Federal Government's rating if the fedeedt is not stabilized. Absent further
guantitative easing by the Federal Reserve, thegel@pments, along with the European sovereign clédis, could cause interest rates and
borrowing costs to rise, which may negatively intpaa ability to access the debt markets on faverab

36




Table of Contents

terms. Continued adverse economic conditions cloal@ a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition and results of
operations.

We are highly dependent on information systems anslystems failures could significantly disrupt our bisiness, which may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of our common stck and our ability to pay dividends.

Our business is highly dependent on comoatinins and information systems of Ares Managenfemy.failure or interruption of Ares
Management's systems could cause delays or otbleleprs in our securities trading activities, whoduld have a material adverse effect on
our operating results and negatively affect theketgprice of our common stock and our ability ty piévidends to our stockholders.

RISKS RELATED TO SOURCES OF FINANCING AND HEDGING

We may incur significant additional debt, which maysubject us to restrictive covenants and increasaikk of loss and may reduce cas
available for distributions to our stockholders.

We borrow funds under the Wells Fargo Fgcithe Citibank Facility and the Capital One Hiizi Subject to market conditions and
availability, we may incur significant additionaglot through bank credit facilities (including telmans and revolving facilities), repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities and structureahéimg arrangements, public and private debt issand derivative instruments, in
addition to transaction or asset specific fundirrgregements. The percentage of leverage we emglbyamy depending on our available
capital, our ability to obtain and access finanangngements with lenders, debt restrictions éoatkin those financing arrangements and
the lenders' and rating agencies' estimate oft#i®lisy of our investment portfolio's cash flow.aWnay significantly increase the amount of
leverage we utilize at any time without approvabaf board of directors. In addition, we may legeréndividual assets at substantially hig
levels. Incurring substantial debt could subjectausiany risks that, if realized, would materiadlyd adversely affect us, including the risk
that:

. our cash flow from operations may be insuffitienmake required payments of principal of anériest on the debt or we may
fail to comply with all of the other covenants cained in the debt, which is likely to result in é@celeration of such debt (and
any other debt containing a cross-default or ceas®leration provision) that we may be unable payedrom internal funds or
to refinance on favorable terms, or at all, (b) imability to borrow unused amounts under our fiting arrangements, even if
we are current in payments on borrowings underetfaosangements, and/or (c) the loss of some of allir assets to
foreclosure or sale;

. our debt may increase our vulnerability to advesenomic and industry conditions with no assurahaginvestment yields
will increase with higher financing costs;

. we may be required to dedicate a substantial podfeur cash flow from operations to payments ondebt, thereby reducit
funds available for operations, future businesodppities, stockholder distributions or other pases; and

. we are not able to refinance debt that matures f the investment it was used to finance amfable terms, or at all.
There can be no assurance that our levegagiategy will be successful.
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Our secured funding facilities impose, and any addional lending facilities will impose, restrictivecovenants.

We borrow funds under the Wells Fargo Fgcithe Citibank Facility and the Capital One Hii The documents that govern these
secured funding facilities contain, and any add@idending facilities would be expected to contaimstomary negative covenants and other
financial and operating covenants, that among dtfirgs, may affect our ability to incur additiortdbt, make certain investments or
acquisitions, reduce liquidity below certain levetsake distributions to our stockholders, redeebt de equity securities and impact our
flexibility to determine our operating policies aimdestment strategies. For example, such loanmeats contain negative covenants that
limit, among other things, our ability to repurchasur common stock, distribute more than a ceaaiount of our net income or funds from
operations to our stockholders, employ leveragebéyertain amounts, sell assets, engage in mesgemsolidations, grant liens, and enter
into transactions with affiliates (including amemglithe management agreement with our Manager iatarial respect). Certain of the
restrictive covenants that apply to the Wells Féfgoility, the Citibank Facility and the Capital ©FRacility are further described in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinarnC@idition and Results of Operations—Secured Fundmgngements." If we fail to
meet or satisfy any of these covenants, we woulith ldefault under these agreements, and our lervdertd elect to declare outstanding
amounts due and payable, terminate their commitneaquire the posting of additional collateral @andorce their interests against existing
collateral. We are also subject to cross-defaudtaateleration rights and, with respect to colklized debt, the posting of additional
collateral and foreclosure rights upon default.tker, these restrictions could also make it diffior us to satisfy the qualification
requirements necessary to maintain our statusRds .

Interest rate fluctuations could increase our finaring costs and reduce our ability to generate incoenon our investments, each of
which could lead to a significant decrease in ourasults of operations, cash flows and the market wa of our investments.

Our primary interest rate exposures wikte to the yield on our investments and the fifrancost of our debt, as well as our interest
rate swaps that we utilize for hedging purposesn@ks in interest rates will affect our net inteiresome, which is the difference between
interest income we earn on our interest-earningstments and the interest expense we incur indingrthese investments. Interest rate
fluctuations resulting in our interest expense exirg interest income would result in operatingéssfor us. Changes in the level of interest
rates also may affect our ability to invest in istreents, the value of our investments and ourtglidirealize gains from the disposition of
assets. Changes in interest rates may also affecivier default rates.

To the extent that our financing costs wéldetermined by reference to floating rates, sischIBOR or a Treasury index, plus a margin,
the amount of such costs will depend on a variéfactors, including, without limitation, (a) footlateralized debt, the value and liquidity of
the collateral, and for non-collateralized debt, anedit, (b) the level and movement of interestsaand (c) general market conditions and
liquidity. In a period of rising interest rates,ronterest expense on floating rate debt woulddase, while any additional interest income we
earn on our floating rate investments may be stibjecaps and may not compensate for such incieasterest expense. At the same time,
the interest income we earn on our fixed rate itnaests would not change, the duration and weightedage life of our fixed rate
investments would increase and the market valuiofixed rate investments would decrease. Simyilamnl a period of declining interest rat
our interest income on floating rate investmentsiidaecrease, while any decrease in the interestreveharged on our floating rate debt |
be subject to floors and not compensate for suchedse in interest income. Additionally, the ing¢nge are charged on our fixed rate debt
would not change. Any such scenario could matgraatid adversely affect us.
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Our operating results will depend, in part,differences between the income earned on @estments, net of credit losses, and our
financing costs. For any period during which oweistments are not match-funded, the income eameadch investments may respond more
slowly to interest rate fluctuations than the aafsbur borrowings. Consequently, changes in intawss, particularly shoterm interest rate
may immediately and significantly decrease our ltesaf operations and cash flows and the marketevaf our investments.

The Wells Fargo Facility, the Citibank Facility, the Capital One Facility and any bank credit facilites and repurchase agreements that
we may use in the future to finance our assets, magquire us to provide additional collateral or paydown debt.

We borrow funds under the Wells Fargo Fgcithe Citibank Facility and the Capital One Hiagi We anticipate that we will also utilize
additional bank credit facilities or repurchaseesgnents (including term loans and revolving fdesif to finance our assets if they become
available on acceptable terms. Such financing gearents would involve the risk that the value @flibans pledged or sold by us to the
provider of the bank credit facility or repurchaggeement counterparty may decline in value, irctvisase the lender may require us to
provide additional collateral or to repay all go@tion of the funds advanced. We may not havdithds available to repay our debt at that
time, which would likely result in defaults unless are able to raise the funds from alternativecas) which we may not be able to achieve
on favorable terms or at all. Posting additiondlateral would reduce our liquidity and limit oulifity to leverage our assets. If we cannot
meet these requirements, the lender could accelematindebtedness, increase the interest rate\anaed funds and terminate our ability to
borrow funds from it, which could materially andvadsely affect our financial condition and abilityimplement our investment strategy. In
addition, if the lender files for bankruptcy or betes insolvent, our loans may become subject terbatcy or insolvency proceedings, thus
depriving us, at least temporarily, of the benefithese assets. Such an event could restrictamasa to bank credit facilities and increase our
cost of capital. The providers of bank credit fétieis and repurchase agreement financing may afpaine us to maintain a certain amount of
cash or set aside assets sufficient to maintapeaiféed liquidity position that would allow us satisfy our collateral obligations. As a result,
we may not be able to leverage our assets asdsllye would choose, which could reduce our retarassets. If we are unable to meet these
collateral obligations, our financial condition apibspects could deteriorate rapidly.

In addition, if a counterparty to our reghase transactions defaults on its obligation $eltéhe underlying security back to us at the end
of the transaction term, or if the value of the emyging security has declined as of the end of thah, or if we default on our obligations
under the repurchase agreement, we will likely irecloss on our repurchase transactions.

There can be no assurance that we wilbibeta obtain additional bank credit facilitiesrepurchase agreements on favorable terms
all.

Our access to sources of financing may be limitechd thus our ability to grow our business and to maimize our returns may be
adversely affected.

We borrow funds under the Wells Fargo Fgcithe Citibank Facility and the Capital One Hi#yi Subject to market conditions and
availability, we may incur significant additionaglok through bank credit facilities (including teloans and revolving facilities), repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities and structuredhéimg arrangements, public and private debt isssand derivative instruments, in
addition to transaction or asset specific fundimgrrgements. We may also issue additional debguityesecurities to fund our growth.
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Our access to sources of financing willete@bupon a number of factors, over which we hatle br no control, including:

. general economic or market conditions;

. the market's view of the quality of our assets;

. the market's perception of our growth potential;

. our current and potential future earnings and disthibutions; and
. the market price of the shares of our common stock.

We will need to periodically access theizdpnarkets to raise cash to fund new investmianéxcess of our repayments. We intend to
elect to be treated as a REIT and operate in a enamnas to qualify for the U.S. federal incomettaatment applicable to REITs. Among
other things, in order to maintain our REIT status,are generally required to annually distribotear stockholders an amount equal to at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income, and, as altiesuch distributions will not be available tanfliinvestment originations. We must
continue to borrow from financial institutions aisdue additional securities to fund the growth uf imvestments. Unfavorable economic or
capital market conditions, such as the severe enandownturn that began in 2007, may increase wuodihg costs, limit our access to the
capital markets or could result in a decision by matential lenders not to extend credit. An inigpiio successfully access the capital markets
could limit our ability to grow our business andtexecute our business strategy and could deereasearnings, if any. In addition, the
current dislocation and weakness in the capitalaadit markets could adversely affect one or npoieate lenders and could cause one or
more of our private lenders to be unwilling or uleato provide us with financing or to increase tiosts of that financing. In addition, if
regulatory capital requirements imposed on ourgte\enders change, they may be required to lonificrease the cost of, financing they
provide to us. In general, this could potentiatigrease our financing costs and reduce our liguatirequire us to sell assets at an
inopportune time or price. No assurance can bengivat we will be able to obtain any such financingluding any replacement of the Wells
Fargo Facility, the Citibank Facility or the Capi@ne Facility on favorable terms or at all.

Any warehouse facilities that we may obtain in théuture may limit our ability to originate or acquir e assets, and we may incur losses
if the collateral is liquidated.

If securitization financings become avdialve may utilize, if available, warehouse famktpursuant to which we would accumulate
mortgage loans in anticipation of a securitizafioancing, which assets would be pledged as co#hfer such facilities until the
securitization transaction is consummated. In otoldrorrow funds to originate or acquire asseteuthy future warehouse facilities, we
expect that our lenders thereunder would haveigfm to review the potential assets for which we seeking financing. We may be unable to
obtain the consent of a lender to originate or aecassets that we believe would be beneficiaktand we may be unable to obtain alternate
financing for such assets. In addition, no asswaan be given that a securitization structure dbe consummated with respect to the a:
being warehoused. If the securitization is not commated, the lender could demand repayment ofatiéty, and in the event that we were
unable to timely repay, could liquidate the waredealicollateral and we would then have to pay anyuartnby which the original purchase
price of the collateral assets exceeds its sabe psubject to negotiated caps, if any, on our sipm In addition, regardless of whether the
securitization is consummated, if any of the wateseal collateral is sold before the completion, veeilld have to bear any resulting loss on
the sale.
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If non-recourse long-term securitizations become ailable to us in the future, such structures may gose us to risks which could
result in losses.

If available, we may utilize non-recouread-term securitizations of our investments in mage loans, especially loan originations, if
and when they become available. Prior to any simgm€ing, we may seek to finance these investmeititsrelatively short-term facilities
until a sufficient portfolio is accumulated. Asesult, we would be subject to the risk that we widt be able to originate or acquire, during
the period that any short-term facilities are aafai, sufficient eligible assets to maximize thiicefncy of a securitization. We also would
bear the risk that we would not be able to obtaw short-term facilities or would not be able taee any short-term facilities after they
expire should we need more time to seek and otigiomacquire sufficient eligible assets for a siization. In addition, conditions in the
capital markets, including volatility and disruptitn the capital and credit markets, may not peenibn-recourse securitization at any
particular time or may make the issuance of any Securitization less attractive to us even whemweave sufficient eligible assets. While
we would intend to retain the unrated equity congmrof securitizations and, therefore, still haypasure to any investments included in
such securitizations, our inability to enter intls securitizations would increase our overall exjpe to risks associated with direct
ownership of such investments, including the rikefault. Our inability to refinance any shortftefacilities would also increase our risk
because borrowings thereunder would likely be resmto us as an entity. If we are unable to otaathrenew short-term facilities or to
consummate securitizations to finance our investsnen a long-term basis, we may be required to edek forms of potentially less
attractive financing or to liquidate assets atrapportune time or price.

We may enter into hedging transactions that could>pose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, part of our investment strategy will invelentering into hedging transactions that
could require us to fund cash payments in certatumstances (such as the early termination oh#dging instrument caused by an event of
default or other early termination event, or theisien by a counterparty to request margin se@sitiis contractually owed under the terms
of the hedging instrument). The amount due woulédpgal to the unrealized loss of the open swagipnosiwith the respective counterparty
and could also include other fees and charges.eféasnomic losses will be reflected in our resofitsperations, and our ability to fund these
obligations will depend on the liquidity of our ats and access to capital at the time, and the todfedd these obligations could adversely
impact our financial condition.

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adverseaffect our earnings, which could reduce our cashvailable for distribution to our
stockholders.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, we may pursue various hedging strategiegek to reduce our exposure to adverse
changes in interest rates. This hedging activity reay in scope based on the level and volatilftinterest rates, the type of assets held and
other changing market conditions. Interest rateghrggdmay fail to protect or could adversely affastbecause, among other things:

. interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguthrting periods of rising and volatile interestesg
. available interest rate hedges may not correspordtly with the interest rate risk for which prot®n is sought;
. due to a credit loss, the duration of the hedge nmiynatch the duration of the related liability;
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. the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hmegltransactions (other than hedging transactibasdatisfy certain
requirements of the Code or that are done throubR@ to offset interest rate losses is limited b$.Uederal income tax
provisions governing REITS;

. the credit quality of the hedging counterpantyirg money on the hedge may be downgraded to suekxtant that it impairs
our ability to sell or assign our side of the hedgiransaction; and

. the hedging counterparty owing money in the hedgsiagsaction may default on its obligation to pay.

In addition, we may fail to recalculatead@ist and execute hedges in an efficient manngy.hedging activity in which we engage may
materially and adversely affect our business. Tioeeewhile we may enter into such transactiongisgeto reduce interest rate risks,
unanticipated changes in interest rates may resptiorer overall investment performance than ifhad not engaged in any such hedging
transactions. In addition, the degree of corretatietween price movements of the instruments usachiedging strategy and price movem
in the portfolio positions or liabilities being reged may vary materially. Moreover, for a varietyefsons, we may not seek to establish a
perfect correlation between such hedging instrumant the portfolio positions or liabilities beingdged. Any such imperfect correlation
may prevent us from achieving the intended hedgeeapose us to risk of loss.

Hedging instruments often are not traded on regulad exchanges or guaranteed by an exchange or iteating house, and involve risk
and costs that could result in material losses.

The cost of using hedging instruments iases as the period covered by the instrument iseseand during periods of rising and vole
interest rates, we may increase our hedging agtivitl thus increase our hedging costs. In additiedging instruments involve risk since
they often are not traded on regulated exchanggeamanteed by an exchange or its clearing houseségjuently, there are no requirements
with respect to record keeping, financial respaiisitor segregation of customer funds and posgidrurthermore, the enforceability of
agreements underlying hedging transactions mayndkpe compliance with applicable statutory and camity and other regulatory
requirements and, depending on the identity otthenterparty, applicable international requiremefite business failure of a hedging
counterparty with whom we enter into a hedginggeation will most likely result in its default. Daflt by a party with whom we enter into a
hedging transaction may result in the loss of uired profits and force us to cover our commitmeiitany, at the then current market price.
Although generally we will seek to reserve the tigghterminate our hedging positions, it may netals be possible to dispose of or close out
a hedging position without the consent of the heglgiounterparty and we may not be able to enterantoffsetting contract in order to cover
our risk. We cannot assure you that a liquid seapntharket will exist for hedging instruments puasid or sold, and we may be required to
maintain a position until exercise or expiratiorieh could result in significant losses.

Changes to derivatives regulation imposed by the @idl-Frank Act could increase our costs of enteringnito derivative transactions,
which could adversely impact our results of operatin, financial condition and business.

Through its comprehensive new regulatogyme for derivatives, the Dodd-Frank Act will imgosandatory clearing, exchange-trading
and margin requirements on many derivatives traimsec(including formerly unregulated over the-ctarrderivatives) in which we may
engage. The Dodd-Frank Act also creates new caesgof regulated market participants, such as "stesgbers," "security-based swap
dealers," "major swap participants,” and "majowusitég-based swap participants" that will be subjecsignificant new capital, registration,
recordkeeping, reporting, disclosure, business
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conduct and other regulatory requirements. Thelldaththese requirements and the parameters sétbategories remain to be clarified
through rulemaking and interpretations by the WW&mmodity Futures Trading Commission, or the "CFTifie SEC, the Federal Reserve
Board and other regulators in a regulatory impletaigon process which is expected to take a yearaye to complete.

Nonetheless, based on information availablef the date of this annual report, the posafict of the Dodd-Frank Act will be likely to
increase our overall costs of entering into derest transactions. In particular, new margin regmients, position limits and capital charges,
even if not directly applicable to us, may causénanease in the pricing of derivatives transadisald by market participants to whom such
requirements apply. Administrative costs, due t@ nequirements such as registration, recordkeepamprting, and compliance, even if not
directly applicable to us, may also be reflectedigher pricing of derivatives. New exchange-tradamd trade reporting requirements may
lead to reductions in the liquidity of derivativansactions, causing higher pricing or reducedabiity of derivatives, or the reduction of
arbitrage opportunities for us, adversely affectimg performance of certain of our trading stragsgi

In addition, it is possible that the Compamay be determined by a governmental authorityeta swap dealer, major swap participant,
security-based swap dealer, major secudged swap participant or otherwise become sutgeww entity and transaction level regulatio
a result of the Dodd-Frank Act. This additionalutegion could lead to significant new costs whidluld materially adversely affect our
business.

We may fail to qualify for hedge accounting treatmet.

We intend to record derivative and heddmgsactions in accordance with Financial Accounstandards Board, or "FASB," ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging . Under these standards, we may fail to qualifyhidge accounting treatment for a number of reasocisiding if
we use instruments that do not meet the FASB ASECdgfinition of a derivative (such as short sale® fail to satisfy FASB ASC 815 hed
documentation and hedge effectiveness assessnggiiteraents or our instruments are not highly eféectlf we fail to qualify for hedge
accounting treatment, our operating results mafesbecause losses on the derivatives that we gritemay not be offset by a change in the
fair value of the related hedged transaction anite

We may enter into derivative contracts that could gpose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaaREIT, we may enter into derivative contracts ttmld require us to fund cash payments in
the future under certain circumstancesy(, the early termination of the derivative agreenmntsed by an event of default or other early
termination event, or the decision by a counteyp@rrequest margin securities it is contractuallyed under the terms of the derivative
contract). The amount due would be equal to thealimed loss of the open swap positions with tlspeetive counterparty and could also
include other fees and charges. These economiedasay materially and adversely affect our business

We are currently exempt from being regulated as aammodity pool operator in part because we comply wh certain restrictions
regarding our use of certain derivative instruments and failure to comply with such restrictions coudl subject us to additional
regulation and compliance requirements which coulanaterially adversely affect our business and finarial condition.

Recently adopted rules under the Dodd-Frésatkestablish a comprehensive new regulatory fraamk for derivative contracts
commonly referred to as "swaps." Under these récadbpted rules, any investment fund that tradesaniaps may be considered a
"commaodity pool,” which would cause its directaose regulated as "commodity pool operators,” d?08." Unless an exemption is
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available, a CPO must register with the CFTC armbbie a member of the National Futures Associatiothe "NFA," which requires
compliance with NFA's rules, and renders such CHgest to regulation by the CFTC, including witlspect to disclosure, reporting,
recordkeeping and business conduct.

We do not currently invest in any instrutsetmat meet the definition of "swap" under the males, and we do not currently expect to
engage in any speculative derivatives activitiestber non-hedging transactions using swaps, fatar@ptions on futures. However, we may
use hedging instruments in conjunction with ouestment portfolio and related borrowings to reduicmitigate risks associated with
changes in interest rates, mortgage spreads, gl shapes and market volatility. These hedgisgguments could include interest rate
swaps, interest rate futures and options on inteaés futures, each of which is considered a "Swapler CFTC rules. We have submitted a
claim for relief from any registration requiremeptgsuant to a no-action letter issued by the CFr@nortgage REITs. In order to qualify
for relief from registration, we are restrictedusing swaps within certain specific parameterdutliag a limitation that our annual income
derived from commaodity interest trading be les$1tB& of our gross annual income and that the Inmit@rgin and premiums required to
establish commodity interest positions be no moaa t percent of the fair market value of our tatdets. If we fail to comply with the
applicable restrictions, our directors may be cdiegeo register as CPOs, or we may be requiresbék other hedging instruments or
techniques at increased cost to us, or that mapaas effective as the use of swaps.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INVESTMENTS
We will allocate our available capital without input from our stockholders.

You will not be able to evaluate the maninewrhich our available capital is invested or #o®nomic merit of our expected investments.
As a result, we may use our available capital tesh in investments with which you may not agreédifionally, our investments will be
selected by our Manager and our stockholders wtlhave input into such investment decisions. Bdtthese factors will increase the
uncertainty, and thus the risk, of investing in securities. The failure of our Manager to appig tapital effectively or find investments that
meet our investment criteria in sufficient timeoor acceptable terms could result in unfavorablgrnst could cause a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, liquiditysudts of operations and ability to make distribntdo our stockholders, and could cause the
value of our common stock to decline.

Until appropriate investments can be idesdj our Manager may invest our available capitahterest-bearing short-term investments,
including money market accounts or funds, CMBSarporate bonds, which are consistent with our ifb@rto qualify as a REIT. These
investments are expected to provide a lower natmghan we seek to achieve from investments irtanget investments. Our Manager
intends to conduct due diligence with respect tthéavestment and suitable investment opportunitiag not be immediately available. Ev
if opportunities are available, there can be nai@sge that our Manager's due diligence processlesneover all relevant facts or that any
investment will be successful.

We cannot assure you that we will be ablertter into definitive agreements to invest in aaw investments that meet our investment
objective; that we will be successful in consummgthny investment opportunities we identify; ortthae or more investments we may make
will yield attractive risk-adjusted returns. Ouability to do any of the foregoing likely would neaially and adversely affect our business and
our ability to make distributions to our stockhatsle
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The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

The illiquidity of our target investmentaynmake it difficult for us to sell such investmeiftthe need or desire arises. Certain target
investments such as B-Notes, transitional, mezeaand other loans are also particularly illiquiddstments due to their short life, their
potential unsuitability for securitization and tpecater difficulty of recovery in the event of artwaver's default. In addition, many of the lo.
and securities we invest in will not be registeneder the relevant securities laws, resulting mahibition against their transfer, sale, pledge
or disposition except in a transaction that is gxeimom the registration requirements of, or othieenin accordance with, those laws. As a
result, we expect many of our investments willlbguid, and if we are required to liquidate all@portion of our portfolio quickly, we may
realize significantly less than the value at whighhave previously recorded investments. Furthermay face other restrictions on our
ability to liquidate an investment in a businessteto the extent that we or our Manager has ald¢de attributed as having material, non-
public information regarding such business enfity a result, our ability to vary our portfolio iesponse to changes in economic and other
conditions may be relatively limited, which couldvarsely affect our results of operations and fai@rcondition.

Our portfolio is concentrated in a limited number o loans, which subjects us to a risk of significantoss if any of these loans default.

As of December 31, 2012, we were investethi loans. The number of loans we are investeaay be higher or lower depending on
amount of our assets under management at any timenmarket conditions and the extent to whichen®loy leverage, and will likely
fluctuate over time. A consequence of this limitesinber of investments is that the aggregate retuenealize may be significantly advers
affected if a small number of investments perfoonty, if we need to write down the value of anyednvestment or if an investment is
repaid prior to maturity and we are not able tanmpty redeploy the proceeds. We do not have fixgidajines for diversification, and our
investments could be concentrated in relatively li@ans.

While we intend to continue to diversifyrgortfolio of investments in the manner describedur filings with the SEC, we do not have
fixed guidelines for diversification. As a resultranvestments could be concentrated in relatifely loans and/or relatively few property
types. If our portfolio of target investments isicentrated in certain property types that are stibgehigher risk of foreclosure, or secured by
properties concentrated in a limited number of gaplyic locations, downturns relating generallydotsregion or type of asset may result in
defaults on a number of our investments within@rtstime period, which may reduce our net incomeé e value of our common stock and
accordingly reduce our ability to pay dividendoto stockholders.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or severecession or further declines in real estate valueuld impair our investments
and harm our operations.

We believe the risks associated with owirtess will be more severe during periods of ecaaafwdown or recession if these periods
are accompanied by declining real estate valugseXxample, the severe economic downturn that beg2807 continues to limit the
availability of debt financing in the overall matgkace and has generally made leveraged acquisiéind refinancing more difficult.
Consequently, our investment model may be adveedfédygted if the current economic conditions pérsislonger than we may anticipate.
Declining real estate values would likely reduce lvel of new mortgage and other real estateeglitan originations since borrowers often
use appreciation in the value of their existingpamies to support the purchase or investmentditiadal properties. Borrowers may also be
less able to pay principal and interest on ourddthe value of real estate weakens. Furtheijrdeg real estate values significantly increase
the likelihood that we will incur losses on ourihean the event of default because the value otollateral may be insufficient to cover our
cost on the loan. Any sustained period of incregmganent delinquencies, foreclosures or
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losses could adversely affect our manager's albditgvest in, sell and securitize loans, which ldanaterially and adversely affect our res
of operations, financial condition, liquidity andd$iness and our ability to pay dividends to stoddéis.

Our real estate investments are subject to risks pcular to real property. These risks may result n a reduction or elimination of, or
return from, a loan secured by a particular property.

We may own CRE directly in the future a®sult of a default of mortgage or other real estatated loans. Real estate investments are
subject to various risks, including:

. acts of God, including earthquakes, floods ath@onatural disasters, which may result in unieduosses;

. acts of war or terrorism, including the consewss of terrorist attacks;

. adverse changes in national and local econondawarket conditions;

. changes in governmental laws and regulatiordu@ing their interpretations), fiscal policies armhing ordinances and the

related costs of compliance with laws and regufestidiscal policies and ordinances;
. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhwitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold; and

. the potential for uninsured or under-insured proplersses.

If any of these or similar events occursnay reduce our return from an affected propertyneestment and reduce or eliminate our
ability to pay dividends to stockholders.

The senior CRE loans we originate and the mortgageans underlying any CMBS investments that we may ake will be subject to the
ability of the commercial property owner to generae net income from operating the property, as wellathe risks of delinquency and
foreclosure.

Our senior CRE loans are secured by conmiaignoperty and are subject to risks of delinquead foreclosure, and risks of loss that
may be greater than similar risks associated witingd made on the security of single-family resigéptroperty. The ability of a borrower to
repay a loan secured by an income-producing prgpgetcally is dependent primarily upon the suctalssperation of such property rather
than upon the existence of independent incomesmtasf the borrower. If the net operating incorhthe property is reduced, the borrower's
ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Net afiag income of an income-producing property cadersely affected by, among other
things,

. tenant mix;

. success of tenant businesses;

. property management decisions;

. property location, condition and design;

. competition from comparable types of properties;

. changes in laws that increase operating expesrdanit rents that may be charged;

. changes in national, regional or local econoetoicditions and/or specific industry segments, iditig the credit and

securitization markets;
. declines in regional or local real estate values;

. declines in regional or local rental or occupareigs;
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. increases in interest rates, real estate tax asg®ther operating expenses;

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions;

. the potential for uninsured or underinsured proplasses;

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, detufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and envinental legislation and

the related costs of compliance; and

. acts of God, terrorist attacks, social unrest @imil disturbances.

In the event of any default under a morgglagin held directly by us, we will bear a riskdags of principal to the extent of any deficiel
between the value of the collateral and the pradcimd accrued interest of the mortgage loan, wbichd have a material adverse effect on
our cash flow from operations and limit amountsilabde for distribution to our stockholders. In teeent of the bankruptcy of a mortgage
loan borrower, the mortgage loan to such borroniée deemed to be secured only to the exteri@fvialue of the underlying collateral at
the time of bankruptcy (as determined by the bapticsucourt), and the lien securing the mortgage ledl be subject to the avoidance
powers of the bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-pssisa to the extent the lien is unenforceable ustie law. Foreclosure of a mortgage loan
can be an expensive and lengthy process, whichl d@ye a substantial negative effect on our aratiegbreturn on the foreclosed mortgage
loan.

We operate in a competitive market for investment pportunities and competition may limit our ability to originate or acquire
desirable investments in our target investments andould also affect the pricing of these securities.

A number of entities compete with us to m#he types of investments that we seek to makepfitability depends, in large part, on
our ability to originate or acquire our target istraents on attractive terms. In originating or agqg our target investments, we compete
with a variety of institutional investors, inclugimther REITSs, specialty finance companies, pudntid private funds (including other funds
managed by Ares Management), commercial and inwdtbanks, commercial finance and insurance corapaarid other financial
institutions. Several other REITs have raised rerexpected to raise, significant amounts of chgited may have investment objectives that
overlap with ours, which may create additional cefitjpn for investment opportunities. Many of ountigipated competitors are significantly
larger than we are and have considerably greatandial, technical, marketing and other resourigas tve do. Some competitors may have a
lower cost of funds and access to funding souttaisare not available to us, such as the U.S. Gavent. Many of our competitors are not
subject to the operating constraints associateld REIT tax compliance or maintenance of an exemgftiom the 1940 Act. In addition, some
of our competitors may have higher risk tolerarmmedgifferent risk assessments, which could alloanttto consider a wider variety of
investments, deploy more aggressive pricing angbéish more relationships than us. Furthermore,petdition for originations of and
investments in our target investments may leatieéqtice of such assets increasing, which may duaitmit our ability to generate desired
returns. We cannot assure you that the compeftigesures we face will not have a material adveffeet on our business, financial condit
and results of operations. Also, as a result &f tbimpetition, desirable investments in our taiigegstments may be limited in the future and
we may not be able to take advantage of attraativestment opportunities from time to time, as w&a provide no assurance that we will be
able to identify and make investments that are istavs with our investment objectives.
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If our Manager overestimates the yields or incorretly prices the risks of our investments, we may exgrience losses.

Our Manager values our potential investméatsed on yields and risks, taking into accouithaged future losses on the mortgage Ic
and the collateral underlying them, and the estch@npact of these losses on expected future ¢asts find returns. Our Manager's loss
estimates may not prove accurate, as actual resaljsvary from estimates. If our Manager underegti® the assédvel losses relative to tl
price we pay for a particular investment, we magegience losses with respect to such investment.

Loans on properties in transition will involve a greater risk of loss than traditional investment-grag mortgage loans with fully insured
borrowers.

We may originate transitional loans securgdirst lien mortgages on a property to borroweh® are typically seeking shadfm capite
to be used in an acquisition or rehabilitation giraperty. The typical borrower under a transitidnan has usually identified an undervalued
asset that has been under-managed and/or is ldoage@covering market. If the market in which #sset is located fails to improve
according to the borrower's projections, or if oerower fails to improve the quality of the assetanagement and/or the value of the asset,
the borrower may not receive a sufficient returrtfenasset to satisfy the transitional loan, andess the risk that we may not recover some
or all of our investment.

In addition, borrowers usually use the pems of a conventional mortgage to repay a transitiloan. Transitional loans therefore are
subject to risks of a borrower's inability to obt@ermanent financing to repay the transitionahldaansitional loans are also subject to risks
of borrower defaults, bankruptcies, fraud, losses special hazard losses that are not coveredanglatd hazard insurance. In the event o
default under transitional loans that may be hgld$y we bear the risk of loss of principal and-payment of interest and fees to the extent
of any deficiency between the value of the mortgagateral and the principal amount and unpaidrigdt of the transitional loan. To the
extent we suffer such losses with respect to thrasasitional loans, the value of the Company ardpttice of our shares of common stock |
be adversely affected.

Risks of cost overruns and noncompletion of renovatn of the properties underlying short term seniorloans on properties in transitior
may result in significant losses.

The renovation, refurbishment or expansipa borrower under a mortgaged property involN@ssrof cost overruns and noncomplet
Estimates of the costs of improvements to bringagquired property up to standards establishechfontarket position intended for that
property may prove inaccurate. Other risks mayuidelrehabilitation costs exceeding original estasapossibly making a project
uneconomical, environmental risks and rehabilitaad subsequent leasing of the property not beongpleted on schedule. If such
renovation is not completed in a timely manneiif drcosts more than expected, the borrower maeernce a prolonged impairment of net
operating income and may not be able to make patmoenour investment, which could result in sigrafit losses.

Investments in non-conforming and non-investment gade rated loans or securities involve increased Kof loss.

Many of our investments will not conformdonventional loan standards applied by traditideadlers and either will not be rated or will
be rated as non-investment grade by the ratingcdeerirhe non-investment grade ratings for thesetasypically result from the overall
leverage of the loans, the lack of a strong opmgatistory for the properties underlying the loahs, borrowers' credit history, the underlying
properties' cash flow or other factors. As a resh#se investments should be expected to hawghehiisk of default and loss than investn
grade rated assets. Any loss we incur
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may be significant and may reduce distributionsupostockholders and adversely affect the markieievaf our common stock. There are no
limits on the percentage of unrated or non-investrgeade rated assets we may hold in our investpantfolio.

The B-Notes that we have originated or may originat or acquire in the future may be subject to additnal risks related to the
privately negotiated structure and terms of the transaction, which may result in losses to us.

We have originated and may continue toioaitg or acquire B-Notes. A B-Note is a mortgagmltypically (a) secured by a first
mortgage on a single large commercial propertyroug of related properties and (b) subordinateahté\-Note secured by the same first
mortgage on the same collateral. As a resultpibrmower defaults, there may not be sufficient singimaining for B-Note holders after
payment to the A-Note holders. Because each tréinads privately negotiated, B-Notes can varyhinit structural characteristics and risks.
For example, the rights of holders of B-Notes totoal the process following a borrower default nvayy from transaction to transaction.
Further, B-Notes typically are secured by a simgtperty and accordingly reflect the risks asseciatith significant concentration.
Significant losses related to our B-Notes wouldilteis operating losses for us and may limit ouitighto make distributions to our
stockholders.

Our mezzanine loan assets involve greater risks @dss than senior loans secured by income-producimgoperties.

We have originated and may continue toiogig or acquire mezzanine loans, which take thae fuf subordinated loans secured by
second mortgages on the underlying property ordeacured by a pledge of the ownership interestgttudr the entity owning the property or
a pledge of the ownership interests of the enlif bwns the interest in the entity owning the prop These types of assets involve a higher
degree of risk than lontgrm senior mortgage lending secured by incomeuywiod real property, because the loan may becorsecumed as
result of foreclosure by the senior lender. Inelient of a bankruptcy of the entity providing thedge of its ownership interests as security,
we may not have full recourse to the assets of satity, or the assets of the entity may not bécaht to satisfy our mezzanine loan. If a
borrower defaults on our mezzanine loan or debibséo our loan, or in the event of a borrower bagitcy, our mezzanine loan will be
satisfied only after the senior debt. As a resudt,may not recover some or all of our initial exgi¢ture. In addition, mezzanine loans may
have higher loan-to-value ratios than conventionaftgage loans, resulting in less equity in thepprty and increasing the risk of loss of
principal. Significant losses related to our meazamoans would result in operating losses forng may limit our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

Any credit ratings assigned to our investments wilbe subject to ongoing evaluations and revisions drwe cannot assure you that thos
ratings will not be downgraded.

Some of our investments may be rated bggatgencies such as Moody's Investors Serviceh Ratings, Standard & Poor's,
DBRS, Inc. or Realpoint LLC. Any credit ratings our investments are subject to ongoing evaluatijoarbdit rating agencies, and we car
assure you that any such ratings will not be chdmgevithdrawn by a rating agency in the futurerifits judgment, circumstances warrant. If
rating agencies assign a lower-than-expected ratimgduce or withdraw, or indicate that they maguce or withdraw, their ratings of our
investments in the future, the value of our invesita could significantly decline, which would ads&ly affect the value of our investment
portfolio and could result in losses upon dispositdr the failure of borrowers to satisfy their tisbrvice obligations to us.
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We may experience a decline in the fair value of owassets.

A decline in the fair market value of ogsats may require us to recognize an "other-thapdeary” impairment against such assets
under GAAP, if we were to determine that, with &spto any assets in unrealized loss positiongjaveot have the ability and intent to hold
such assets to maturity or for a period of timdisight to allow for recovery to the original acgition cost of such assets. If such a
determination were to be made, we will record &mwadnce to reduce the carrying value of the loathéopresent value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan's contractualkéffe rate or the fair value of the collaterakgpayment is expected solely from the
collateral. Such impairment charges reflect norfirdasses at the time of recognition; subsequempbgiton or sale of such assets could
further affect our future losses or gains, as teybased on the difference between the sale @iedved and adjusted amortized cost of such
assets at the time of sale. If we experience drdeiti the fair value of our assets, our resultegdrations, financial condition and our ability
to make distributions to our stockholders couldvizerially and adversely affected.

Some of our portfolio investments may be recordedtdair value and, as a result, there will be uncedinty as to the value of these
investments.

Some of our portfolio investments may béhia form of positions or securities that are ndiljzly traded. The fair value of securities
other investments that are not publicly traded matybe readily determinable. Currently, the onhaficial instruments recorded at fair value
on a recurring basis in the Company's consolidfitedhcial statements are derivative instrumentg Tbmpany has not elected the fair value
option for the remaining financial instruments,liring loans held for investment and secured fugpdigreements. Such financial instrume
are carried at cost. For loans held for investrtiegit are evaluated for impairment at least quarteré estimate the fair value of the
instrument, which may include unobservable inpBecause such valuations are subjective, the fhilevaf certain of our assets may fluctt
over short periods of time and our determinatidifsio value may differ materially from the valugsat would have been used if a ready
market for these securities existed. The valueuofcommon stock could be adversely affected ifdeterminations regarding the fair value
these investments were materially higher than #iees that we ultimately realize upon their disposa

Additionally, the Company's results of agdams for a given period could be adversely aéfddt its determinations regarding the fair
value of these investments were materially highantthe values that the Company ultimately realiges their disposal. The valuation
process has been particularly challenging receaiynarket events have made valuations of cersagtsmore difficult, unpredictable and
volatile.

If we invest in CMBS, such investments would posedditional risks, including the risks of the securitzation process and the risk that
the special servicer may take actions that could agrsely affect our interests.

We may acquire CMBS. In general, lossea amortgaged property securing a mortgage loandeclun a securitization will be borne
first by the equity holder of the property, thenébgash reserve fund or letter of credit, if ahgnt by the holder of a mezzanine loan or B-
Note, if any, then by the "first loss" subordinagtdckholder (generally, the -Piece" buyer) and then by the holder of a higla¢ed security
In the event of default and the exhaustion of aquitg support, reserve fund, letter of credit, ma®re loans or B-Notes, and any classes of
securities junior to those in which we invest, wi#t mot be able to recover all of our investmenthie securities we purchase. In addition, if
the underlying mortgage portfolio has been ovemaloy the originator, or if the values subsequetdlgiine and, as a result, less collateral
value is available to satisfy interest and printgmyments due on the related mortgage-backeditiesuiThe prices of lower credit quality
securities are generally less sensitive to intaestchanges than more highly rated investmentsnbre sensitive to adverse economic
downturns or individual issuer developments.
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With respect to the CMBS in which we mayast, overall control over the special servicindhaf related underlying mortgage loans
be held by a "directing certificateholder" or afitwlling class representative,” which is appointgdhe holders of the most subordinated
class of CMBS in such series. Because we may aeglaisses of existing series of CMBS, we will ne¢dnthe right to appoint the directing
certificateholder. In connection with the serviciofiggthe specially serviced mortgage loans, theedlapecial servicer may, at the direction of
the directing certificateholder, take actions wilspect to the specially serviced mortgage loaaiscibuld adversely affect our interests.

Insurance on mortgage loans and real estate secués collateral may not cover all losses.

There are certain types of losses, geryeoélth catastrophic nature, such as earthqualaesjd| hurricanes, terrorism or acts of war,
which may be uninsurable or not economically inblgalnflation, changes in building codes and oadices, environmental considerations
and other factors, including terrorism or acts afvalso might result in insurance proceeds incieffit to repair or replace a property if it is
damaged or destroyed. Under these circumstanaemshrance proceeds received with respect togepnrorelating one of our investments
might not be adequate to restore our economiciposiith respect to our investment. Any uninsuress|could result in the loss of cash flow
from, and the asset value of, the affected propantythe value of our investment related to sucpgnty.

Liability relating to environmental matters may imp act the value of properties that we may acquire upoforeclosure of the properties
underlying our investments.

To the extent we foreclose on propertieh wespect to which we have extended mortgage Jeemsnay be subject to environmental
liabilities arising from such foreclosed propertielmder various U.S. federal, state and local lamspwner or operator of real property may
become liable for the costs of removal of certaimdrdous substances released on its property. Tdwseften impose liability without
regard to whether the owner or operator knew ofyas responsible for, the release of such hazarsidstances.

The presence of hazardous substances maysatly affect an owner's ability to sell real &star borrow using real estate as collateral.
To the extent that an owner of a property undegyine of our debt investments becomes liable fmoral costs, the ability of the owner to
make payments to us may be reduced, which in t@ayadversely affect the value of the relevant namgégasset held by us and our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders.

If we foreclose on any properties undedyiur investments, the presence of hazardous sidest@an a property may adversely affect
ability to sell the property and we may incur sabsial remediation costs, thus harming our findnmadition. The discovery of material
environmental liabilities attached to such promsritould have a material adverse effect on outtsestioperations and financial condition
and our ability to make distributions to our stockters.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK
The market price of our common stock may fluctuatesignificantly.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE uritle trading symbol "ACRE." Over the past sevgedlrs, the global capital and credit
markets have been in an extended period of vdiatitid disruption. The market price and liquidifyttee market for shares of our common
stock may be significantly affected by numerouddes; some of which are beyond our control and natybe directly related to our operat
performance.
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Some of the factors that could negativéfigch the market price of our common stock include:

. our actual or projected operating results, findnmadition, cash flows and liquidity, or changasusiness strategy or
prospects;

. actual or perceived conflicts of interest with ddmnager or Ares Management and individuals, inclgdiur executives;

. equity issuances by us, or share resales by ockhattders, or the perception that such issuancessates may occur;

. loss of a major funding source;

. actual or anticipated accounting problems;

. publication of research reports about us ordlad estate industry;

. changes in market valuations of similar compsnie

. adverse market reaction to any increased indabts we incur in the future;

. additions to or departures of our Manager's or Masagement's key personnel;

. speculation in the press or investment community;

. increases in market interest rates, which may ilaestors to demand a higher distribution yielddar common stock, if we

have begun to make distributions to our stockhald@nd would result in increased interest expeasesir debt;

. failure to maintain our REIT qualification or exetigm from the 1940 Act;

. price and volume fluctuations in the overall stochrket from time to time;

. general market and economic conditions, andds@mcluding inflationary concerns, the currentestat the credit and capital
markets;

. significant volatility in the market price angdtling volume of securities of publicly traded REIGr other companies in our

sector, which are not necessarily related to theraifmg performance of these companies;

. changes in law, regulatory policies or tax guidedinor interpretations thereof, particularly wigspect to REITS;

. changes in the value of our portfolio;

. any shortfall in revenue or net income or any iasgein losses from levels expected by investoseaurities analysts;

. operating performance of companies comparable;to us

. short-selling pressure with respect to sharesuoicommon stock or REITs generally;

. uncertainty surrounding the strength of the &&mnomic recovery particularly in light of the ea¢t downgrade of the U.S.

Government's credit rating; and

. concerns regarding European sovereign debt.

As noted above, market factors unrelatemlioperformance could also negatively impact tlaekat price of our common stock. One of
the factors that investors may consider in decigvhgther to buy or sell our common stock is outritigtion rate as a percentage of our stock
price relative to market interest rates. If maiké&trest rates increase, prospective investorsdeayand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendmterest. As a result, interest
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rate fluctuations and conditions in the capital kets can affect the market value of our commonkstBor instance, if interest rates rise, it is
likely that the market price of our common stock @ecrease as market rates on interest-bearingites increase.

Common stock eligible for future sale may have advse effects on our share price.

As of December 31, 2012, we had 9,267,162es of common stock outstanding on a fully ddutasis. Of these shares, 7,700,000
shares of our common stock are freely tradableowitihestriction or limitation under the Securitisst.

Prior to our IPO, there was no establistnading market for our common stock. We cannot jotetle effect, if any, of future sales of ¢
common stock, or the availability of shares foufetsales, on the market price of our common stblek.market price of our common stock
may decline significantly when the restrictionsresale by certain of our stockholders lapse. S#lesbstantial amounts of common stock or
the perception that such sales could occur mayraélyeaffect the prevailing market price for oungaon stock.

We may issue additional restricted commtonlsand other equity-based awards under our 2@L@&\FIncentive Plan. We may continue
to issue additional shares in subsequent publariofis or private placements to make new investsna@ntor other purposes. We are not
required to offer any such shares to existing siolders on a preemptive basis. Therefore, it mayea@ossible for existing stockholders to
participate in such future share issuances, whiaf dilute the existing stockholders' interestssn u

We have not established a minimum distribution payrent level and we may be unable to generate sufficiecash flows from our
operations to make distributions to our stockholdes at any time in the future.

We are generally required to annually diste to our stockholders at least 90% of our Rtalkable income (which does not equal net
income, as calculated in accordance with GAAP)eaeined without regard to the deduction for dividepaid and excluding net capital
gains, for us to qualify as a REIT, which requireinee currently intend to satisfy through quartetistributions of all or substantially all of
our REIT taxable income in such year, subject ttag® adjustments. We have not established a mimiistribution payment level and our
ability to pay distributions may be adversely aféetby a number of factors, including the risk éastdescribed in this annual report. All
distributions will be made at the discretion of dard of directors and will depend on our earniogs financial condition, debt covenants,
maintenance of our REIT qualification and othettdas as our board of directors may deem relevam fime to time. We believe that a
change in any one of the following factors coulglexdely affect our results of operations and impairability to pay distributions to our
stockholders:

. our ability to make profitable investments;

. margin calls or other expenses that reduce asin dow;

. defaults in our asset portfolio or decreasdbénvalue of our portfolio; and

. the fact that anticipated operating expensel$ev@y not prove accurate, as actual results mayfuam estimates.

As a result, no assurance can be givenatbatill be able to make distributions to our stiecklers at any time in the future or that the
level of any distributions we do make to our staakllers will achieve a market yield or increasewarebe maintained over time, any of wk
could materially and adversely affect us.
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In addition, distributions that we makeotor stockholders out of current or accumulatediagenand profits (as determined for U.S.
federal income tax purposes), and not designatadstas capital gain dividends or qualified dividémebme, generally will be taxable to our
stockholders as ordinary income. However, a pomibour distributions may be designated by us ad#talagain dividends and generally will
be taxed to our stockholders as long-term capéad tp the extent that such distributions do naeex our actual net capital gain for the
taxable year, without regard to the period for vahize stockholder that receives such distributias teld its stock. Distributions in excess of
our current and accumulated earnings and pro8tsletermined for U.S. federal income tax purposed,not designated by us as capital gain
dividends or qualified dividend income, may congéta return of capital. A return of capital is teotable, but has the effect of reducing the
basis of a stockholder's investment in our comntocks but not below zero.

Our distributions may exceed our cash flow from ouroperations and our earnings.

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock. The regglarterly cash distributions we pay are
expected to be principally sourced by cash flowrfraperating activities. However, there can be mu@nce that our earnings or cash flow
from operating activities will be sufficient to cewour future distributions, and we may use otloeraes of funds, such as from offering
proceeds, borrowings and asset sales, to fundopsrbf our future distributions. Our distributidies the year ended December 31, 2012
exceeded, and future distributions may exceedcasin flow from operating activities and earningsmprily because we have been in the
initial stages of building our investment portfoliad as a result our earnings have been highlytsen® a number of variables, including 1
velocity and timing of new originations and ourééwef operating expenses. Such distributions redlve@amount of cash we have available
investing and other purposes and could be dilutwveur financial results.

Investing in our common stock may involve a high dgree of risk.

The investments that we make in accordaritteour investment objectives may result in a héghount of risk when compared to
alternative investment options and volatility osdf principal. Our investments may be highly siegitve and aggressive, and therefore an
investment in our common stock may not be suittdrisomeone with lower risk tolerance.

Future offerings of debt or equity securities, whib would rank senior to our common stock, may adverdy affect the market price of
our common stock.

If we decide to issue debt or equity sdmsiin the future, which would rank senior to common stock, it is likely that they will be
governed by an indenture or other instrument caommtgicovenants restricting our operating flexigilindditionally, any convertible or
exchangeable securities that we issue in the fumag have rights, preferences and privileges marerible than those of our common stock
and may result in dilution to owners of our comnstock. We and, indirectly, our stockholders, wiklo the cost of issuing and servicing s
securities. Because our decision to issue delquityesecurities in any future offering will depead market conditions and other factors
beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimhageamount, timing or nature of our future offeringbus holders of our common stock will
bear the risk of our future offerings reducing tharket price of our common stock and diluting th&ie of their stock holdings in us.

The interests of certain control persons may be advse to investors.

Our board of directors has establishedx@eed holder limit for Ares Investments that a#oAres Investments to own, subject to
certain conditions, up to 22% of the outstandingreb of our common stock. As of December 31, 281&s Investments owned 2,000,000
shares, or 21.6%, of our total shares of commaorkatatstanding. In addition, Ares Investments o%hd50,000 aggregate
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principal amount of the 2015 Convertible Notes.sT$ignificant concentration of share ownership mawyersely affect the trading price of |
common stock because investors often perceiveaaeistage in owning shares in a company with ontyar very few controlling
stockholders. Furthermore, Ares Investments haaliiiiy to significantly influence the outcome a@f matters requiring stockholder
approval, including the election of directors apgrval of significant corporate transactions, sashmergers, consolidations or the sale of
substantially all of our assets. This concentratibawnership may have the effect of delaying @venting a change of control, including a
merger, consolidation or other business combinatiealving us, or discouraging a potential acqufrem making a tender offer or otherwise
attempting to obtain control, even if such a chamigeontrol would benefit you.

Our stockholders may experience dilution upon the anversion of the 2015 Convertible Notes.

Our 2015 Convertible Notes are convertibte shares of our common stock beginning on J&&Q15 or, under certain circumstances,
earlier. Upon conversion of the 2015 Convertiblagdpwe have the choice to pay or deliver, as éise smay be, at our election, cash, shares
of our common stock or a combination of cash aradtleshof our common stock. The current conversi@mepf the 2015 Convertible Notes is
approximately $18.65 per share, subject to adjustinecertain circumstances. If we elect to delisikares of common stock upon a
conversion at the time our tangible book valueghere exceeds the conversion price in effect dt 8e, our stockholders may incur
dilution. In addition, our stockholders will expenice dilution in their ownership percentage of canmstock upon our issuance of common
stock in connection with the conversion of the 2@dmvertible Notes and any dividends paid on ounroon stock will also be paid on she
issued in connection with such conversion aftehgssuance.

We are an "emerging growth company" and we cannot b certain if the reduced disclosure requirements gpicable to emerging
growth companies will make our common stock less tactive to investors.

We are an "emerging growth company,” agédfin the JOBS Act, and we may take advantageéin exemptions from various
reporting requirements that are applicable to opludslic companies that are not "emerging growth ganies," including not being required
comply with the auditor attestation requirementSeéttion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002uced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reportsanacty statements and exemptions from the requirésnarholding a non-binding advisory
vote on executive compensation and stockholderoaapof any golden parachute payments not prewoaisproved. We cannot predict if
investors will find our common stock less attraethecause we may rely on these exemptions. If sovestors find our common stock less
attractive as a result, there may be a less atrtidéng market for our common stock and our staggepmay be more volatile.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE

The Maryland General Corporation Law, or the "MGCL, " prohibits certain business combinations, which mg make it more difficult
for us to be acquired.

Under the MGCL, "business combinationsestn a Maryland corporation and an "interesteckbimider” or an affiliate of an interest
stockholder are prohibited for five years after thest recent date on which the interested stoclkdndddcomes an interested stockholder.
These business combinations include a merger, idason, share exchange or, in circumstances fpddn the statute, an asset transfer or
issuance or reclassification of equity securithgsinterested stockholder is defined as: (a) anggewho beneficially owns 10% or more of
the voting power of the then outstanding votingktof the corporation; or (b) an affiliate or asste of the corporation who, at any time
within the two-year period prior to the date in gtien, was the beneficial owner of 10% or morehef voting power of the then-outstanding
stock of the corporation.
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A person is not an interested stockholaeten the statute if the board of directors appramestivance the transaction by which the
person otherwise would have become an interestetttstider. However, in approving a transaction,libard of directors may provide that
its approval is subject to compliance, at or afertime of approval, with any terms and conditidetermined by the board of directors.

After the expiration of the five-year peatidescribed above, any business combination bettheeMaryland corporation and an
interested stockholder must generally be recomnttbgehe board of directors of the corporation apdroved by the affirmative vote of at
least:

. 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdéithe then-outstanding shares of voting stockefdorporation; and

. two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by lkoddof voting stock of the corporation, other tishares held by the interested
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected, or heldrbgféiliate or associate of
the interested stockholder.

These supermajority vote requirements dapply if the corporation's common stockholderseiee a minimum price, as defined under
the MGCL, for their shares in the form of cash tivev consideration in the same form as previouald py the interested stockholder for its
shares. The MGCL also permits various exemptioos fthese provisions, including business combinattbat are exempted by the board of
directors before the time that the interested dtolder becomes an interested stockholder. Pursadhé statute, our board of directors has
adopted a resolution exempting any business cormbimaith Ares Investments or any of its affiliat€onsequently, the fivgear prohibitior
and the supermajority vote requirements will ngilgpo business combinations between us and Angsstments or any of its affiliates. As a
result, Ares Investments or any of its affiliateaynibe able to enter into business combinations ugtthat may not be in the best interest of
our stockholders, without compliance with the sapgjority vote requirements and the other provisiofihe statute. The business
combination statute may discourage others fronmgryo acquire control of us and increase the difficof consummating any offer.

Stockholders have limited control over changes inuw policies and operations.

Our board of directors determines our mpjiicies, including with regard to financing, grbwdebt capitalization, REIT qualification
and distributions. Our board of directors may amenckvise these and other policies without a wbtihe stockholders. Under our charter
the MGCL, our stockholders generally have a righidte only on the following matters:

. the election or removal of directors;
. the amendment of our charter, except that our bobditectors may amend our charter without stotddoapproval to:
. change our name;
. change the name or other designation or the paewalany class or series of stock and the aggrqmatvalue of our
stock;
. increase or decrease the aggregate number fssbistock that we have the authority to issue;
. increase or decrease the number of shares aflasy or series of stock that we have the authtwriissue; and

effect certain reverse stock splits;

. our liguidation and dissolution; and
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. our being a party to a merger, consolidation, salether disposition of all or substantially allair assets or statutory share
exchange.

All other matters are subject to the disoreof our board of directors.
Our authorized but unissued shares of common and pferred stock may prevent a change in our control.

Our charter authorizes us to issue up ®EM,000 shares of common stock and 50,000,00@sbépreferred stock without
stockholder approval. In addition, our board otdtors may, without stockholder approval, amendobarter from time to time to increase or
decrease the aggregate number of shares of olir@tdiee number of shares of stock of any classedes that we have authority to issue and
classify or reclassify any unissued shares of comorreferred stock into other classes or seffistogk and set the preferences, rights and
other terms of the classified or reclassified shafes a result, our board of directors may esthaldislass or series of shares of common or
preferred stock that could delay or prevent a nretbed-party tender offer or similar transactiona change in incumbent management that
might involve a premium price for shares of our coom stock or otherwise be in the best interesuofstockholders.

Maintenance of our exemption from registration unde the 1940 Act imposes significant limits on our oprations. Your investment
return may be reduced if we are required to registeas an investment company under the 1940 Act.

We intend to conduct our operations so tieggther we nor any of our subsidiaries are reguioeregister as an investment company u
the 1940 Act. We believe we will not be considesadnvestment company under Section 3(a)(1)(Ahefi940 Act because we will not
engage primarily, or hold ourselves out as beirgpged primarily, in the business of investing, vesting or trading in securities. However,
under Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the 1940 Act, becauseare a holding company that will conduct its basses primarily through wholly owned
subsidiaries, the securities issued by these sabgisl that are excepted from the definition of/&stment company" under Section 3(c)(1) or
Section 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act, together with alyer investment securities we may own, may noelameombined value in excess of 40%
of the value of our total assets (exclusive of GSvernment securities and cash items) on an untidated basis. This requirement limits
types of businesses in which we may engage througkubsidiaries. In addition, the assets we amdwlsidiaries may originate or acquire
are limited by the provisions of the 1940 Act ahd tules and regulations promulgated under the 2@40which may adversely affect our
business.

If the value of securities issued by oursidiaries that are excepted from the definitiotimfestment company" by Section 3(c)(1) or 3
(c)(7) of the 1940 Act, together with any other@stment securities we own, exceeds 40% of our ast#ts on an unconsolidated basis, or if
one or more of such subsidiaries fail to maintairerception or exemption from the 1940 Act, we dpaimong other things, be required
either (a) to substantially change the manner iithvive conduct our operations to avoid being resfuto register as an investment company
or (b) to register as an investment company urfteed 940 Act, either of which could have an adveffect on us and the market price of our
securities. If we or any of our subsidiaries werguired to register as an investment company uheet940 Act, the registered entity would
become subject to substantial regulation with resfmecapital structure (including the ability teeuleverage), management, operations,
transactions with affiliated persons (as definethan1940 Act), portfolio composition, includingstgctions with respect to diversification a
industry concentration, compliance with reportiregord keeping, voting, proxy disclosure and othégs and regulations that would
significantly change our operations.
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Failure to maintain an exemption would rieguis to significantly restructure our investmsimategy. For example, because affiliate
transactions are generally prohibited under thed1®e¢t, we would not be able to enter into transaiwith any of our affiliates if we are
required to register as an investment companywanthight be required to terminate our managemenmtesgent and any other agreements
with affiliates, which could have a material adweedfect on our ability to operate our business@addistributions. If we were required to
register us as an investment company but failetbtso, we would be prohibited from engaging in lousiness, and criminal and civil actions
could be brought against us. In addition, our @i would be unenforceable unless a court reqeinéatcement, and a court could appoint a
receiver to take control of us and liquidate ousibass.

We expect certain subsidiaries that we foay in the future to rely upon the exemption froggistration as an investment company
under the 1940 Act pursuant to Section 3(c)(5)({@he 1940 Act, which is available for entitiesitparily engaged" in the business of
"purchasing or otherwise acquiring mortgages ahdrdiens on and interests in real estate." Thisvgtion generally requires that at least
55% of these subsidiaries' assets must compridiygug real estate assets and at least 80% of eadfeir portfolios must comprise
qualifying real estate assets and real estatecckbdsets under the 1940 Act. We expect each cfulnsidiaries relying on Section 3(c)(5)(C)
to rely on guidance published by the SEC staffrobor analyses of such guidance to determine wdsskts are qualifying real estate assets
and real estate-related assets. However, the $fa(dfance was issued in accordance with factuadtitns that may be substantially different
from the factual situations we may face, and mudh® guidance was issued more than 20 years agasblrance can be given that the SEC
staff will concur with our classification of oursets. In addition, the SEC staff may, in the futissue further guidance that may require us to
re-classify our assets for purposes of qualifyimgahn exclusion from regulation under the 1940 Hatve are required to re-classify our
assets, we may no longer be in compliance witreitodusion from the definition of an "investment queny" provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C)
of the 1940 Act. To the extent that the SEC stafiligshes new or different guidance with respecirig assets we have determined to be
qualifying real estate assets, we may be requaedljust our strategy accordingly. In addition,way be limited in our ability to make
certain investments and these limitations couldltés a subsidiary holding assets we might wisket or selling assets we might wish to
hold.

The SEC has not published guidance witheaeisto the treatment of CMBS for purposes of teetisn 3(c)(5)(C) exemption. Unless we
receive further guidance from the SEC or its staffi respect to CMBS, we intend to treat CMBS asal estate-related asset.

Certain of our subsidiaries may rely onélemption provided by Section 3(c)(6) to the ekthat they hold mortgage assets through
majority-owned subsidiaries that rely on Section 3(c)(5){[@e SEC staff has issued little interpretive gnmawith respect to Section 3(c)
and any guidance published by the staff could requs to adjust our strategy accordingly.

We determine whether an entity is one ofrogjority-owned subsidiaries. The 1940 Act defingsajority-owned subsidiary of a person
as a company 50% or more of the outstanding vatamyirities of which are owned by such person, arimther company which is a
majority-owned subsidiary of such person. The 1940 Act &rrtlefines voting securities as any security prisentitling the owner or hold
thereof to vote for the election of directors afampany. We treat companies in which we own at leasajority of the outstanding voting
securities as majority-owned subsidiaries for pagsoof the 40% test. We have not requested thet®Bfprove our treatment of any
company as a majority-owned subsidiary and the B&not done so. If the SEC were to disagree wittireatment of one or more
companies as majority-owned subsidiaries, we wosalketl to adjust our strategy and our assets in twd@mmtinue to pass the 40% test. Any
such adjustment in our strategy could have a natadverse effect on us.
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On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a canetgmse titled "Companies Engaged in the BusioBsequiring Mortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778)lddthe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpreéve issues relating to Section 3(c)
(5)(C) of the 1940 Act, including the nature of #esets that qualify for purposes of the exempimhwhether mortgage REITs should be
regulated in a manner similar to investment comgmrifhere can be no assurance that the laws anldtiegs governing the 1940 Act status
of REITs, including the SEC or its staff providimgpre specific or different guidance regarding thesemptions, will not change in a manner
that adversely affects our operations. If we orsubsidiaries fail to maintain an exception or eggam from the 1940 Act, we could, among
other things, be required either to (a) changertaener in which we conduct our operations to abeithg required to register as an
investment company, (b) effect sales of our aseedismanner that, or at a time when, we would tio¢iavise choose to do so, or (c) register
as an investment company, any of which could neglgtiaffect the value of our common stock, the ainstbility of our business model, and
our ability to make distributions which could haate adverse effect on our business and the market for our shares of common stock.

Rapid and steep declines in the values of our CREnfince-related investments may make it more difficli for us to maintain our
qualification as a REIT or exemption from the 194QAct.

If the market value or income potentiatedil estate-related investments declines as a @fsnkreased interest rates or other factors, we
may need to increase our real estate investmedt;iaome and/or liquidate our non-qualifying assetsrder to maintain our REIT
qualification or exemption from the 1940 Act. IEtdecline in real estate asset values and/or in@mtgrs quickly, this may be especially
difficult to accomplish. This difficulty may be es@rbated by the illiquid nature of any non-qualifyiassets that we may own. We may have
to make investment decisions that we otherwise gvaot make absent the REIT and 1940 Act considersti

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to reover on claims against our directors and officerare limited, which could reduce
our stockholders and our recovery against them ifiiey negligently cause us to incur losses.

The MGCL provides that a director has @adbility in such capacity if he performs his dutiegood faith, in a manner he reasonably
believes to be in our best interests and with #re that an ordinarily prudent person in a likeifims would use under similar circumstances.
A director who performs his or her duties in acemck with the foregoing standards should not ledito us or any other person for failur
discharge his or her obligations as a director.

In addition, our charter provides that directors and officers will not be liable to uscur stockholders for monetary damages unles
director or officer actually received an impropenbfit or profit in money, property or servicesjoadjudged to be liable to us or our
stockholders based on a finding that his or heoagbr failure to act, was the result of active aeliberate dishonesty and was material tc
cause of action adjudicated in the proceeding.laws require us, to the maximum extent permittgdiaryland law, to indemnify and,
without requiring a preliminary determination oéthltimate entitlement to indemnification, pay einnburse reasonable expenses in advance
of final disposition of a proceeding to any indiwa who is a present or former director or offiaed who is made or threatened to be made a
party to the proceeding by reason of his or hariselin that capacity or any individual who, whiledirector or officer and at our request,
serves or has served as a director, officer, parnestee, member or manager of another corpera®&IT, limited liability company,
partnership, joint venture, trust, employee berpgéih or other enterprise and who is made or threat to be made a party to the proceeding
by reason of his or her service in that capacitithwWhe approval of our board of directors, we rpagvide such indemnification and advance
for expenses to any individual who served a prestareof the Company in any of the
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capacities described above and any employee ot afjire Company or a predecessor of the Compaiyding our Manager and its
affiliates.

We also are permitted to purchase and miaiimisurance or provide similar protection on Bebbany directors, officers, employees ¢
agents, including our Manager and its affiliategiast any liability asserted which was incurre@my such capacity with us or arising out of
such status. This may result in us having to expggmificant funds, which will reduce the availabkesh for distribution to our stockholders.

Our charter contains provisions that make removal éour directors difficult, which could make it diff icult for our stockholders to
effect changes to our management.

Our charter provides that a director maly twe removed for cause upon the affirmative vdteadders of two-thirds of the votes entitled
to be cast generally in the election of direct®@cancies may be filled only by a majority of tleemaining directors in office, even if less t
a quorum. These requirements make it more diffimutthange our management by removing and replatiiegtors and may prevent a
change in control of the Company that is in the besrests of our stockholders. Pursuant to oarteh, our board of directors also is divided
into three classes of directors. The initial tewhthe first, second and third classes will exjair@013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. Begin
in 2013, directors of each class will be choserttioee-year terms upon the expiration of theireotrterms, and each year one class of
directors will be elected by the stockholders. $taggered terms of our directors may reduce thsilgitity of a tender offer or an attempt at a
change in control, even though a tender offer ange in control might be in the best interest afsiackholders.

Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which oustockholders might receive a
premium for their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT commieg with our taxable year ended December 31, 206G 2nore than 50% in value of our
outstanding capital stock may be owned, directlindirectly, by five or fewer individuals duringdHast half of each taxable year after 2012.
"Individuals" for this purpose include natural p@rs, private foundations, some employee benefitgpdand trusts, and some charitable trusts.
To preserve our REIT qualification, our charter gatly prohibits any person (except Ares Investrmmevtiich is subject to a 22% excepted
holder limit) from directly or indirectly owning me than 9.8% in value of the outstanding sharesiotapital stock or more than 9.8% in
value or in number of shares, whichever is mortiotive, of the outstanding shares of any classesies of our stock. This ownership
limitation could have the effect of discouragintakeover or other transaction in which holderswf @@mmon stock might receive a premi
for their shares over the then prevailing marketepor which holders might believe to be otherviistheir best interests.

U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX RISKS

Our failure to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT would subject us to U.S. federal income tax andqgtentially state and local tax,
and would adversely affect our operations and the arket price of our common stock.

We intend to elect and qualify to be tagsch REIT commencing with our taxable year endezkBer 31, 2012. However, we may
terminate our REIT qualification, if our board dfettors determines that not qualifying as a RElinithe best interests of our stockholders,
or inadvertently. Our qualification as a REIT degeipon our satisfaction of certain asset, incanggnizational, distribution, stockholder
ownership and other requirements on a continuirsisb&/e have structured and intend to continuettring our activities in a manner
designed to satisfy all the requirements for gicalffon as a REIT. The REIT qualification requirerteeare extremely complex and
interpretation of the U.S. federal income tax l@eserning qualification as a REIT is limited.
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Accordingly, we cannot be certain that we will lnesessful in operating so we can qualify or rengpialified as a REIT. Our ability to satis
the asset tests depends on our analysis of thaatkaration and fair market values of our assetsie of which are not susceptible to a
precise determination, and for which we will notaib independent appraisals. Our compliance wghREIT income or quarterly asset
requirements also depends on our ability to suéassanage the composition of our income and tsse an ongoing basis. Accordingly
certain of our operations were to be recharactéttizelnternal Revenue Service, or the "IRS," swdharacterization could jeopardize our
ability to satisfy all the requirements for qualdtion as a REIT. Furthermore, future legislatjudjcial or administrative changes to the U.S.
federal income tax laws could be applied retroatyivwhich could result in our disqualification aREIT.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT for any &lxe year, and we do not qualify for certain statutelief provisions, we will be subject to U.S.
federal income tax on our taxable income at coearates. In addition, we would generally be didifjed from treatment as a REIT for the
four taxable years following the year of losing ®EIT qualification. Losing our REIT qualificatiomould reduce our net earnings available
for investment or distribution to stockholders hesmof the additional tax liability. In additioristtibutions to stockholders would no longer
qualify for the dividends paid deduction, and weundono longer be required to make distributionghi$§ occurs, we might be required to
borrow funds or liquidate some investments in otdgray the applicable tax.

REITs, in certain circumstances, may incur tax lialilities that would reduce our cash available for ditribution to you.

Even if we qualify and maintain our statissa REIT, we may be subject to U.S. federal inctares and related state and local taxes
example, net income from the sale of propertiesdaha"dealer" properties sold by a REIT (a "prdtiih transaction" under the Code) will be
subject to a 100% tax. We may not make sufficigstributions to avoid excise taxes applicable td RESimilarly, if we were to fail an
income test (and did not lose our REIT status beeauch failure was due to reasonable cause andltot neglect) we would be subject to
tax on the income that does not meet the incontedgairements. We also may decide to retain ngitalegain we earn from the sale or other
disposition of our property and pay U.S. federabime tax directly on such income. In that event,sbackholders would be treated as if they
earned that income and paid the tax on it direétbywever, stockholders that are tax-exempt, sucthasties or qualified pension plans,
would have no benefit from their deemed paymestuch tax liability unless they file U.S. federat@me tax returns and thereon seek a
refund of such tax. We also will be subject to cogbe tax on any undistributed REIT taxable incowife.also may be subject to state and
local taxes on our income or property, includingnthise, payroll, mortgage recording and transfegg, either directly or at the level of the
other companies through which we indirectly own assets, such as our TRSs, which are subjectltd fal federal, state, local and foreign
corporate-level income taxes. Any taxes we payctlirer indirectly will reduce our cash availabte fistribution to you.

To qualify as a REIT we must meet annual distributdon requirements, which may force us to forgo otherige attractive opportunities
or borrow funds during unfavorable market conditions. This could delay or hinder our ability to meet ar investment objectives and
reduce your overall return.

In order to qualify and maintain our statissa REIT, we must annually distribute to our ldtoatders at least 90% of our REIT taxable
income (which does not equal net income, as catdlm accordance with GAAP), determined withoufare to the deduction for dividends
paid and excluding net capital gain. We will bejeabto U.S. federal income tax on our undistrilduREIT taxable income and net capital
gain and to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on arguatrby which distributions we pay with respecatty calendar year are less than the
of (a) 85% of our ordinary income, (b) 95% of oapital gain net income and (c) 100% of our undistied income from prior
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years. These requirements could cause us to dirdomounts that otherwise would be spent on imsts in real estate assets and
possible that we might be required to borrow fumassibly at unfavorable rates, or sell assetard these distributions. Although we intend
to make distributions sufficient to meet the anrdistribution requirements and to avoid U.S. fetereome and excise taxes on our earnings
while we qualify as a REIT, it is possible that méght not always be able to do so.

Certain of our business activities are potentiallysubject to the prohibited transaction tax, which cald reduce the return on your
investment.

For so long as we qualify as a REIT, oulitslio dispose of property during the first fewars following acquisition may be restricted to
a substantial extent as a result of our REIT quealifon. Under applicable provisions of the Codgareling prohibited transactions by REITs,
while we qualify as a REIT, we will be subject ta@0% penalty tax on any gain recognized on the gabther disposition of any property
(other than foreclosure property) that we own,atiyeor through any subsidiary entity, but gengratkcluding TRSs, that is deemed to be
inventory or property held primarily for sale tostomers in the ordinary course of a trade or bgsiné/hether property is inventory or
otherwise held primarily for sale to customershia brdinary course of a trade or business depemtisegparticular facts and circumstances
surrounding each property. While we qualify as dTR&ve avoid the 100% prohibited transaction tax(d@yconducting activities that may
otherwise be considered prohibited transactiormutjin a TRS (but such TRS will incur income taxés) conducting our operations in such a
manner so that no sale or other disposition ofssetave own, directly or through any subsidiaryl né treated as a prohibited transaction, or
(c) structuring certain dispositions of our profesto comply with a prohibited transaction safebbaavailable under the Code for properties
held for at least two years. However, no assuraaoebe given that any particular property we ovirgatly or through any subsidiary entity,
but generally excluding TRSs, will not be treatedreventory or property held primarily for saleciastomers in the ordinary course of a trade
or business.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for U.S. feddrincome tax purposes.

A REIT's net income from prohibited transaas is subject to a 100% tax. In general, prabibiransactions are sales or other
dispositions of property, other than foreclosurepgarty, but including mortgage loans, held as itegnor primarily for sale to customers in
the ordinary course of business. We might be stibgethis tax if we were to sell or securitize Isan a manner that was treated as a sale of
the loans as inventory for U.S. federal incomeparsposes. Therefore, in order to avoid the probibttansactions tax, we may choose not to
engage in certain sales of loans, other than threugRS, and we may be required to limit the stmas we use for our securitization
transactions, even though such sales or structuigt®t otherwise be beneficial for us.

TRSs are subject to corporate-level taxes and deafis with TRSs may be subject to 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock aBmr more TRS. Both the subsidiary and the REIBtrjaintly elect to treat the subsidiary
as a TRS. A corporation of which a TRS directlyralirectly owns more than 35% of the voting powewalue of the stock will automatical
be treated as a TRS. Overall, no more than 25%eofitoss value of a REIT's assets may consisbok &ir securities of one or more TRS. In
addition, the TRS rules limit the deductibility ioterest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parenflRElassure that the TRS is subject to an
appropriate level of corporate taxation. The ralls® impose a 100% excise tax on certain trangsecbetween a TRS and its parent REIT
are not conducted on an arm's length basis.
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TRSs that we may form will pay U.S. fedesdhte and local income tax on their taxable ineoamd their after-tax net income will be
available for distribution to us but will not beqgréred to be distributed to us, unless necessamyaiotain our REIT qualification. While we
will be monitoring the aggregate value of the sii@s of our TRSs and intend to conduct our affagghat such securities will represent less
than 25% of the value of our total assets, thenebeano assurance that we will be able to comptl thie TRS limitation in all market
conditions.

Our investments in certain debt instruments may case us to recognize "phantom income" for U.S. fedetancome tax purposes even
though no cash payments have been received on thebd instruments, and certain modifications of suchidebt by us could cause the
modified debt to not qualify as a good REIT assethereby jeopardizing our REIT qualification.

Our taxable income may substantially exaagthet income as determined based on GAAP, terdifices in timing between the
recognition of taxable income and the actual re¢a#igash may occur. For example, we may acqusetasincluding debt securities requir
us to accrue OID or recognize market discount irecifmat generate taxable income in excess of ecieriooome or in advance of the
corresponding cash flow from the assets referretiphantom income." In addition, if a borrowethwiespect to a particular debt instrum
encounters financial difficulty rendering it unalbbepay stated interest as due, we may nonethleéessquired to continue to recognize the
unpaid interest as taxable income with the effieat tve will recognize income but will not have aresponding amount of cash available for
distribution to our stockholders.

As a result of the foregoing, we may geteelass cash flow than taxable income in a padicyar and find it difficult or impossible to
meet the REIT distribution requirements in cer@ncumstances. In such circumstances, we may hereghto (a) sell assets in adverse
market conditions, (b) borrow on unfavorable tero¥distribute amounts that would otherwise beduse future acquisitions or used to
repay debt, or (d) make a taxable distributionwfshares of common stock as part of a distributiomhich stockholders may elect to rece
shares of common stock or (subject to a limit messas a percentage of the total distribution) cisbrder to comply with the REIT
distribution requirements.

Moreover, we may acquire distressed delistments that require subsequent modificationgogeanent with the borrower. If the
amendments to the outstanding debt are "significardifications" under the applicable Treasury Ratiohs, the modified debt may be
considered to have been reissued to us in a deloefat taxable exchange with the borrower. Thiswigbreissuance may prevent the
modified debt from qualifying as a good REIT ask#te underlying security has declined in value arould cause us to recognize income to
the extent the principal amount of the modifiedtdetreeds our adjusted tax basis in the unmodifedat.

The failure of mortgage loans subject to a repurchse agreement or a mezzanine loan to qualify as aaleestate asset would adversely
affect our ability to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into repurchase agreemedes which we will nominally sell certain of owssts to counterparty and simultaneously
enter into an agreement to repurchase the soltsa¥ge believe that we will be treated for U.S.&ed income tax purposes as the owner of
the assets that are the subject of any such agreemetwithstanding that such agreements may tanstord ownership of the assets to the
counterparty during the term of the agreemens tassible, however, that the IRS could assertikadid not own the assets during the term
of the repurchase agreement, in which case we dailld qualify as a REIT.

In addition, in order for a loan to be teghas a qualifying real estate asset producingifging income for purposes of the REIT asset
and income tests, generally the loan must be seédyreeal property. We may originate or acquire ma@me loans that are not directly
secured by real property
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but instead secured by equity interests in a pesthige or limited liability company that directly ardirectly owns real property. In Revenue
Procedure 2003-65, the IRS provided a safe hannsupnt to which a mezzanine loan that is not sechy real estate would, if it meets each
of the requirements contained in the Revenue Puoeetie treated by the IRS as a qualifying reatesisset. Although the Revenue
Procedure provides a safe harbor on which taxpawaysrely, it does not prescribe rules of substantx law and in many cases it may not
be possible for us to meet all the requirementi®fafe harbor. We cannot provide assurance tiyainazzanine loan in which we invest
would be treated as a qualifying asset producirgifying income for REIT qualification purposes.dfiy such loan fails either the REIT
income or asset tests, we may be disqualifiedREIA.

Our qualification as a REIT and exemption from U.S.federal income tax with respect to certain assetaay be dependent on the
accuracy of legal opinions or advice rendered or gen or statements by the issuers of assets that aequire, and the inaccuracy of any
such opinions, advice or statements may adverseljfect our REIT qualification and result in significant corporate-level tax.

When purchasing securities, we may relppimions or advice of counsel for the issuer othssecurities, or statements made in related
offering documents, for purposes of determining tiveesuch securities represent debt or equity gamufor U.S. federal income tax
purposes, and also to what extent those secucitiestitute real estate assets for purposes ofsget tests and produce qualifying income for
purposes of the 75% gross income test. In additibren purchasing the equity tranche of a secutitizawe may rely on opinions or advice
of counsel regarding the qualification of the sé@ation for exemption from U.S. corporate incotag and the qualification of interests in
such securitization as debt for U.S. federal incéaxepurposes. The inaccuracy of any such opiniathgice or statements may adversely
affect our REIT qualification and result in sige#int corporate level tax.

The taxable mortgage pool, or "TMP," rules may increase the taxes that we or our stockholders may inguand may limit the manner
in which we effect future securitizations.

Securitizations by us or our subsidiariesld result in the creation of TMPs for U.S. fedénaome tax purposes. As a result, we could
have "excess inclusion income." Certain categaiesdockholders, such as non-U.S. stockholdersbédidor treaty or other benefits,
stockholders with net operating losses, and cetéairexempt stockholders that are subject to uteélausiness income tax, could be subject
to increased taxes on a portion of their dividemmbime from us that is attributable to any such exaeclusion income. In the case of a
stockholder that is a REIT, regulated investmemgany, or RIC, common trust fund or other passtthhoentity, our allocable share of our
excess inclusion income could be considered exnekssion income of such entity. In addition, te thxtent that our common stock is owned
by tax-exempt "disqualified organizations," suctcadain government-related entities and charitedrieainder trusts that are not subject to
tax on unrelated business income, we may incur@ocate level tax on a portion of any excess inolugncome. Because this tax generally
would be imposed on us, all of our stockholdersluding stockholders that are not disqualified oigations, generally will bear a portion of
the tax cost associated with the classificationsobr a portion of our assets as a TMP. A RIC thewopass-through entity owning our
common stock in record name will be subject toabthe highest U.S. federal corporate tax ratemynexcess inclusion income allocated to
their owners that are disqualified organizationsrébver, we could face limitations in selling eguitterests in these securitizations to
outside investors, or selling any debt securitissi@d in connection with these securitizationsttight be considered to be equity interest:
tax purposes. Finally, if we were to fail to qual#s a REIT, any TMP securitizations would be &dats separate taxable corporations for
U.S. federal income tax purposes that could nahdleided in any consolidated U.S. federal corpomrateme tax return. These limitations
may prevent us from using certain techniques toimiae our returns from securitization transactions.
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We may choose to make distributions in our own stdg in which case you may be required to pay incomgxes in excess of the cash
dividends you receive.

In connection with our qualification as EIR, we are required to annually distribute to stackholders at least 90% of our REIT tax
income (which does not equal net income, as catdlim accordance with GAAP), determined withogfare to the deduction for dividends
paid and excluding net capital gain. In order tiisbathis requirement, we may make distributionattare payable in cash and/or shares o
common stock (which could account for up to 80%hefaggregate amount of such distributions) atteetion of each stockholder. Taxable
stockholders receiving such distributions will leguired to include the full amount of such disttibos as ordinary dividend income to the
extent of our current or accumulated earnings aaofitg, as determined for U.S. federal income tasppses. As a result, U.S. stockholders
may be required to pay income taxes with respestith distributions in excess of the cash portioihe distribution received. Accordingly,
U.S. stockholders receiving a distribution of obaies may be required to sell shares receivedcim digtribution or may be required to sell
other stock or assets owned by them, at a timenthgtbe disadvantageous, in order to satisfy anintposed on such distribution. If a U.S.
stockholder sells the stock that it receives asgfahe distribution in order to pay this tax, theles proceeds may be less than the amount it
must include in income with respect to the distiithy, depending on the market price of our stockattime of the sale. Furthermore, with
respect to certain non-U.S. stockholders, we magdgeired to withhold U.S. tax with respect to sddtribution, including in respect of all
or a portion of such distribution that is payaliesiock, by withholding or disposing of part of gteares included in such distribution and
using the proceeds of such disposition to satlefwtithholding tax imposed. In addition, if a siggant number of our stockholders deterrr
to sell shares of our common stock in order totpags owed on dividend income, such sale may puhd@rd pressure on the market price
of our common stock.

Various tax aspects of such a taxable stmtl distribution are uncertain and have not petrbaddressed by the IRS. No assurance can
be given that the IRS will not impose requirementthe future with respect to taxable cash/stoskritiiutions, including on a retroactive
basis, or assert that the requirements for suabtexcash/stock distributions have not been met.

Dividends payable by REITs generally do not qualifyfor the reduced tax rates available for some diviends.

The maximum tax rate applicable to quddifitvidend income payable to U.S. stockholders #énatindividuals, trusts and estates is 20%
beginning in 2013. Dividends payable by REITs, hegvegenerally are not eligible for this reducetkradlthough this does not adversely
affect the taxation of REITs or dividends payableREITs, the more favorable rates applicable tall@gcorporate qualified dividends could
cause investors who are individuals, trusts anatesto perceive investments in REITs to be redbtiless attractive than investments in the
stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay dividemdsich could adversely affect the value of the ekaf REITS, including our common
stock.

If we were considered to actually or constructivelypay a "preferential dividend" to certain of our stockholders, our status as a REIT
could be adversely affected.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must aalhudistribute to our stockholders at least 90%woif REIT taxable income (which does not
equal net income, as calculated in accordance®@AtAP), determined without regard to the deductiondividends paid and excluding net
capital gain. In order for distributions to be ctathas satisfying the annual distribution requiretador REITs, and to provide us with a
REIT-level tax deduction, the distributions must he "preferential dividends." A dividend is nopreferential dividend if the distribution is
pro rata among all outstanding shares of stockimalparticular class, and in accordance with tieégpences among different classes of s
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as set forth in our organizational documents. Guilyethere is uncertainty as to the IRS's positiegarding whether certain arrangements
REITs have with their stockholders could give tiz¢he inadvertent payment of a preferential dimitiée.g., the pricing methodology for
stock purchased under a distribution reinvestmesgnam inadvertently causing a greater than 5%odiston the price of such stock
purchased). There is no de minimis exception watpect to preferential dividends; therefore, if lR€ were to take the position that we
inadvertently paid a preferential dividend, we nbaydeemed to have failed the 90% distribution s, our status as a REIT could be
terminated for the year in which such determinattomade if we were unable to cure such failureilg\iue believe that our operations have
been structured in such a manner that we will edr&ated as inadvertently paying preferentialddinids, we can provide no assurance to this
effect.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge our liabilities effectively and may case us to incur tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code may limit @bility to hedge our liabilities. Any income froa hedging transaction we enter into to
manage risk of interest rate changes, price chamgesrrency fluctuations with respect to borroveingade or to be made to acquire or carry
real estate assets, if properly identified undgliegble Treasury Regulations, does not constltgtess income" for purposes of the 75% or
95% gross income tests. To the extent that we émteother types of hedging transactions, theimedrom those transactions will likely be
treated as non-qualifying income for purposes dffilod the gross income tests. As a result of thekss, we may need to limit our use of
advantageous hedging techniques or implement thedges through a taxable REIT subsidiary. Thisccodrease the cost of our hedging
activities because our taxable REIT subsidiarieslevbe subject to tax on gains or expose us ta@reizks associated with changes in
interest rates than we would otherwise want to.deaaddition, losses in a taxable REIT subsidgeperally will not provide any tax benefit,
except for being carried forward against futureatd® income of such taxable REIT subsidiary.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to fago and/or liquidate otherwise attractive investmem opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT, we must ensure thatmeet the REIT gross income tests annually artchatitae end of each calendar quarter, at
least 75% of the value of our assets consistssif,@ash items, government securities and qualRiEd real estate assets, including certain
mortgage loans and certain kinds of mortgage-rels¢eurities. The remainder of our investment ausges (other than government
securities and qualified real estate assets) giineemnot include more than 10% of the outstandiating securities of any one issuer or
more than 10% of the total value of the outstandieurities of any one issuer. In addition, in gah@o more than 5% of the value of our
assets (other than government securities and tpthtidal estate assets) can consist of the sexuatiany one issuer, and no more than 25%
of the value of our total assets can be represdmtesgcurities of one or more TRS. If we fail targay with these requirements at the end of
any calendar quarter, we must correct the failuthiv30 days after the end of the calendar quanteyualify for certain statutory relief
provisions to avoid losing our REIT qualificationdasuffering adverse tax consequences. As a regiltnay be required to liquidate assets
from our portfolio or not make otherwise attractimgestments in order to maintain our qualificata®a REIT. These actions could have the
effect of reducing our income and amounts avail&nelistribution to our stockholders.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could increase our tax liabity, reduce our operating flexibility
and reduce the price of our common stock.

In recent years, numerous legislative,giadiand administrative changes have been madiprovisions of U.S. federal income tax
laws applicable to investments similar to an inwesit in shares
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of our common stock. Additional changes to theltaws are likely to continue to occur, and we carassure you that any such changes will
not adversely affect the taxation of a stockholéay such changes could have an adverse effech émvastment in our shares or on the
market value or the resale potential of our as¥ets.are urged to consult with your tax advisorhwigspect to the impact of recent legislation
on your investment in our shares and the statlegyidlative, regulatory or administrative developrseand proposals and their potential ef
on an investment in our shares. You also should thatt our counsel's tax opinion is based uportiegitaw, applicable as of the date of its
opinion, all of which will be subject to changetheir prospectively or retroactively.

Although REITs generally receive better ti@atment than entities taxed as regular corpmratiit is possible that future legislation
would result in a REIT having fewer tax advantages] it could become more advantageous for a coyniha invests in real estate to elect
to be treated for U.S. federal income tax purp@ses corporation. As a result, our charter provaleshoard of directors with the power,
under certain circumstances, to revoke or otherteisainate our REIT election and cause us to bedas a regular corporation, without the
vote of our stockholders. Our board of directors fiduciary duties to us and our stockholders amddonly cause such changes in our tax
treatment if it determines in good faith that sgblanges are in the best interest of our stockhalder

Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business taxalincome to tax-exempt investors.

If (&) we are a "pension-held REIT," (@pa-exempt stockholder has incurred (or is deeradwve incurred) debt to purchase or hold
our common stock or (c) a holder of common stock ¢ertain type of tax-exempt stockholder, dividead, and gains recognized on the sale
of, common stock by such tax-exempt stockholder bwgubject to U.S. federal income tax as unrelbtsihess taxable income under the
Code.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other jghyproperties materially important to our opevatiOur principal executive offices are
located at Two North LaSalle Street, Suite 925c@90, IL 60602. Our principal executive offices anul other offices are leased by our
Manager or one of its affiliates from third partasd pursuant to the terms of our management agrteme reimburse our Manager (or its
affiliate, as applicable) for our pro rata portigisuch offices' rent.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Neither we nor our Manager is currentlyjeabto any legal proceedings that we or our Managasider to be material.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases CEquity Securities
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Our common stock began trading on the NYi8é&er the symbol "ACRE" on April 25, 2012. On Ma&®, 2013, the closing price of ¢
common stock, as reported on the NYSE, was $1682Imare. The following table sets forth, for tieeipds indicated, the high and low
closing sales prices per share for our common stoul the dividends paid with respect to such shfameeach fiscal quarter for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

Cash Dividends Declarec
Per Share of Common

High Low Stock
Year Ended December 31, 201
First quarter(1 $ — % — 3 0.3((3)
Second quarter(z $ 18.0C $ 16.3t $ 0.0€(4)
Third quartel $ 1762 $ 1631 $ 0.0¢(5)
Fourth quarte $ 17.0¢ $ 156C $ 0.25(6)

(1) Sales price information for this period is vaiable because shares of our common stock dithegin trading
publicly until April 25, 2012.

(2) Information is provided only for the period from AR5, 2012 to June 30, 2012, as shares of oumoomstock
did not begin trading publicly until April 25, 2012

(3)  On March 30, 2012, we declared a cash dividend@&®per share of our common stock, payable onl &pri
2012 to our common stockholder of record on Marth2®12.

4) On June 19, 2012, we declared a cash dividé80.06 per share of our common stock, payabléubn12, 2012
to our common stockholders of record on June 29220

(5) On September 21, 2012, we declared a cash divioe$@.06 per share of our common stock, payable on
October 11, 2012 to our common stockholders ofneoa October 2, 2012.

(6) On November 7, 2012, we declared a cash dividei$ &5 per share of our common stock, payable on
January 10, 2013 to our common stockholders ofrdeen December 31, 201

On March 14, 2013, we declared a cash diddof $0.25 per share of our common stock, payablpril 18, 2013 to our common
stockholders of record on April 8, 2013.

HOLDERS
As of March 28, 2013, there were nine hiddd record of our common stock. This number dussnclude beneficial owners who hold
shares of our common stock in nominee name.
DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock (includinddeos of our restricted common stock).
U.S. federal income tax law generally requires thREIT annually distribute at least 90% of its REdxable income, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andwiolg net capital gains, and to the extent thdisitributes less than 100% of its net taxable
income in any taxable year, that it pay tax at l@gcorporate rates on
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that undistributed portion. We intend to make raggluarterly distributions to our stockholders inamount equal to or greater than our net
taxable income, if and to the extent authorizeaiyboard of directors.

We cannot assure our stockholders, howdvar the current level of distributions will bestained, as any distributions that we pay ir
future will depend upon our actual results of ofierss, economic conditions and other factors tlbald materially alter our expectations.
Before we make any distributions, whether for UeBleral income tax purposes or otherwise, we nitsgtrheet both our operating
requirements and debt service on our secured fgrduilities, other lending facilities, repurchasgreements and other debt payable. If our
cash available for distribution is less than ourtagable income, we could be required to selltasseborrow funds to make cash distributi
or we may make a portion of the required distriimutin the form of a taxable stock distribution @tdbution of debt securities.

To satisfy the requirements to qualify &EET and generally not be subject to U.S. federame and excise tax, we intend to make
regular quarterly distributions of all or substatiyi all of our taxable income to holders of ounwoon stock out of assets legally available
therefor. Any distributions we make to our stockiesk will be at the discretion of our board of dicgs and will depend upon our earnings,
financial condition, liquidity, debt covenants, fling or margin requirements under securitizatioregehouse facilities or other secured and
unsecured borrowing agreements, maintenance dRBUF qualification, applicable provisions of the MG, and such other factors as our
board of directors deems relevant. The Wells Fé&aility and the Citibank Facility provide thataf event of default is continuing, then we
may make distributions only to the extent necestarmgaintain our status as a REIT. Our earningsntial condition and liquidity will be
affected by various factors, including the netiiest and other income from our portfolio, our opiegaexpenses and any other expenditures.
See "Risk Factors."

Distributions that stockholders receivet(@esignated as capital gain dividends or qualifis@tdend income) will be taxed as ordinary
income to the extent they are paid from our easatd profits (as determined for U.S. federal inedax purposes). However, distributions
that we designate as capital gain dividends gelyesdll be taxable as long-term capital gain to stwckholders to the extent that they do not
exceed our actual net capital gain for the taxgble. Some portion of these distributions may mosibject to tax in the year in which they
are received because depreciation expense rechecasiount of taxable income, but does not redusle aaailable for distribution. The
portion of our stockholders distribution that i designated as a capital gain dividend and ixéae®s of our current and accumulated
earnings and profits is considered a return oftaafir U.S. federal income tax purposes and eiiuce the adjusted tax basis of their
investment, but not below zero, deferring suchiporof their tax until their investment is soldaur company is liquidated, at which time
they will be taxed at capital gain rates (subjeatdrtain exceptions for corporate stockholders)the extent such portion of our stockholders
distribution exceeds the adjusted tax basis of theestment, such excess will be treated as dagia if they hold their shares of common
stock as a capital asset for U.S. federal incom@taposes. Depending on the level of taxable ircearned in a tax year, we may choose to
carry forward taxable income for distribution iretfollowing year, and pay any applicable excise Y&e will furnish annually to each of our
stockholders a statement setting forth distribwipaid during the preceding year and their charaet#n as ordinary income, return of
capital, qualified dividend income or capital gaitlease note that each stockholder's tax considesare different, therefore, our
stockholders should consult with their own tax adviand financial planners prior to making an itwesnt in our shares.
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED EQUITY SECURITIES

We have reported all sales of our unremgstequity securities that occurred during thequedovered by this report in our Reports on
Form 10-Q or Form 8-K, as applicable.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

$110
—&— Ares Commercial Real Estate
—— S&P 500 Index
—d— S&P 500 REIT Index
e Ll B =

$95

$90 T .
4/26/12 6/30/12 9/30/12 12/3112

SOURCE: Standard & Poor's Institutional Market Servi

NOTES: Assumes $100 invested on April 26, 2012 (the A&IRE's shares began trading in connection witHRi@) in ACRE, in
S&P 500 Index and in S&P 500 REIT Index. Assumédialdends are reinvested on the respective divideayment dates
without commissions

6/30/12 9/30/12 12/31/12

ACRE 97.4¢ 95.7¢ 92.52
S&P 500 Inde) 97.7z 103.9: 103.5:
S&P 500 REIT Inde: 102.5. 103.37 107.0:

The graph and other information furnisheder this Part Il Iltem 5(d) of this Form X0shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material
to be "filed" with the SEC or subject to RegulatibdA or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18thé Exchange Act, as amended.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COM PENSATION PLANS

On April 23, 2012, we adopted, and our ldhadders approved, our 2012 Equity Incentive PRursuant to our 2012 Equity Incentive
Plan, the Company may grant awards consistingstficged shares of our common stock, restricteckstmits and/or other equity-based
awards to our outside directors, Chief Financidldef, our Manager and other eligible awardees wtfteplan, subject to an aggregate
limitation of 690,000 shares of common stock (7 &%he issued and outstanding shares of the Con'gpaagnmon stock immediately after
giving effect to the issuance of the shares sold in
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the IPO). As of December 31, 2012, 9.7% of theeshagserved under our 2012 Equity Incentive Plaga,total of 67,162 restricted shares of
our common stock, had been granted and 90.3% ahidwes reserved, or 622,838 shares, remainedlbleafbr future issuance under our
2012 Equity Incentive Plan. Aside from our 2012 Bgincentive Plan, we have no other compensatiangor arrangements under which
our securities may be issued (whether or not agutdy our stockholders). For further discussioowf2012 Equity Incentive Plan, see
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statementikded elsewhere in this annual rep:

The following table presents certain infatman about our equity compensation plans as oeBéer 31, 2012:

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance
under equity

Weighted- compensation
Number of average exercise plans
securities to be price of (excluding
issued upon exercise outstanding securities
of outstanding options, reflected in the
options, warrants warrants and first column of
Plan Category and rights rights this table)(1)
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholder: — 3 — 622,83t
Equity compensation plans not approved
stockholder: — — —
Total — 3 622,83t

(1) The securities shown in this column may baasdsas restricted stock, restricted stock unitsarather equity-based
awards to eligible awardees under our 2012 Equitgrtive Plan
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial and otdata for the year ended December 31, 2012 anthéoperiod from September 1, 2011
(Inception) to December 31, 2011 is derived froma@aansolidated financial statements and relatedswathich have been audited by Ernst &
Young, LLP, an independent registered public actingrfirm whose report thereon is included elsewharthis annual report. The data
should be read in conjunction with our consoliddtedncial statements and notes thereto and "Maneagés Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,"chkhére included elsewhere in this annual report.

ARES COMMERICAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the Period

from
September 1,
For the Year 2011
Ended (Inception) to
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Operating Data:
Interest incomt $ 9,27¢ % 3
Interest expense (from secured funding facilit (2,342 (39)
Net interest margin (los: 6,93¢ (36)
Total operating expens: (6,076 (227
Net income (loss 86( (1639)
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhi 18¢€ (169%)
Net income (loss) per share of common st
Basic and dilutes $ 0.0z % (8.5¢)
Dividends declared per share of common s $ 0.671)$ —
Weightec-average shares of common stock outstant
Basic 6,532,701 19,05:
Diluted 6,567,30! 19,05:
Balance Sheet Data
Cash $ 23,39C $ 1,24(
Loans held for investmel 353,50( 4,94¢
Total asset 387,85¢ 7,581
Total secured financing arrangeme 144,25t —
Total convertible note 67,28¢ —
Total liabilities 222,42: 1,15(
Total stockholders' equi 165,43t 6,43

(1) Adividend of $450 ($0.30 per share) was based, 5001000 shares outstanding as of March 31, 2012.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion And Analysis (Financial Condition And Results Of Operations

The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and our financial statements
and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this annual report. In addition, some of the statementsin this report (including in the following
discussion) constitute forward- looking statements, which relate to future events or the future performance or financial condition of Ares
Commercial Real Estate Corporation (the"Company," "ACRE,", "we," "us," or "our"). The forward-looking statements contained in this
report involve a number of risks and uncertainties, including statements concerning:

. our business and investment strategy;

. our projected operating results;

. the timing of cash flows, if any, from our investms

. the state of the U.S. economy generally or in $jgegeographic regions;

. defaults by borrowers in paying debt service orstaunding items;

. actions and initiatives of the U.S. Government elnanges to U.S. Government policies;

. our ability to obtain financing arrangements;

. the amount of commercial mortgage loans requirgfmancing;

. financing and advance rates for our target ithaests;

. our expected leverage;

. general volatility of the securities marketsiihich we may invest;

. the impact of a protracted decline in the lidtyiedf credit markets on our business;

. the uncertainty surrounding the strength ofWh®. economic recovery;

. the return or impact of current and future invesitag

. allocation of investment opportunities to us by #ommercial Real Estate Management LLC, or "oun&der";

. changes in interest rates and the market valuarohgestments;

. effects of hedging instruments on our target innestts;

. rates of default or decreased recovery rates otaoget investments;

. the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

. changes in governmental regulations, tax law atesyand similar matters (including interpretatioareof);

. our ability to maintain our qualification aseat estate investment trust, or "REIT";

. Xur ability to maintain our exemption from regidion under the Investment Company Act of 1940amended, or the "1940
ct”;

. availability of investment opportunities in mortgacglated and real estate-related investmentsendites;

. the ability of our Manager to locate suitable inwsesnts for us, monitor, service and administeriouestments and execute

investment strategy;
. our ability to successfully complete and integiatg acquisitions;

. availability of qualified personnel;
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. estimates relating to our ability to make distribns to our stockholders in the future;
. our understanding of our competition; and
. market trends in our industry, interest rates, estdte values, the debt securities markets ageheral economy.

We use words such as "anticipates,” "bebgV'expects," "intends," "will," "should," "maghd similar expressions to identify forward-
looking statements. Our actual results could diffiaterially from those projected in the forwardkom statements for any reason, including
the factors set forth in "Risk Factors" and elsawhe this annual report.

We have based the forward-looking statemgriuded in this annual report on informationikalde to us on the date of this annual
report, and we assume no obligation to update acly ®rward-looking statements.

OVERVIEW

We are a recently organized specialty fagacompany focused on originating, investing in arahaging middle-market commercial real
estate loans and other commercial real estaté€CRE;" related investments. We target borrowers whapital needs are not being met in the
market by offering customized financing solutiovge implement a strategy focused on direct origomatiombined with experienced portfc
management through our Manager's servicer, whiahS&ndard & Poor's-ranked commercial primaryisenand commercial special
servicer that is included on Standard & Poor's &ervicer List, to meet our borrowers' and sposiseeds.

Our investment objective is to generatmative risk-adjusted returns for our stockholderanarily through dividends and distributions
and secondarily through capital appreciation. Weebe the availability of capital in the CRE middigarket is limited and borrowers and
sponsors have the greatest need for customizetiswun this segment of the market. We act asglai'one stop” financing source by
providing our customers with one or more of ourtomszed financing solutions. Our customized finagcsolutions are comprised of our
"target investments," which include the following:

. "Transitional senior" mortgage loans that provittategic, flexible, short-term financing solutioms transitional CRE middle-
market assets. These assets are typically propéhet are the subject of a business plan thadpieated to enhance the value
the property. The mortgage loans are usually furtded time as the borrower's business plan foptbgerty is executed. Thi
also typically have lower initial loan-to-valueimt as compared to "stretch senior" mortgage loaitb,the loan-tovalue ratio
increasing as the loan is further funded over time;

. "Stretch senior" mortgage loans that provide flexilone stop” financing on quality CRE middle-mdr&esets. These assets
are typically stabilized or near-stabilized projeertwith healthy balance sheets and steady casis floith the mortgage loans
having higher leverage (and thus higher loan-tarwaatios) than conventional mortgage loans andyaieally fully funded at
closing and non-recourse to the borrower (as coetpbtir conventional mortgage loans, which are uguadlourse to the
borrower);

. "Subordinate debt" mortgage loans (including sulmate: tranches of first lien mortgages, or B-Notw®) mezzanine loans,
both of which provide subordinate financing on gyaCRE middle-market assets; and

. "Other CRE debt and preferred equity investmenitgy&ther with selected other income producing gdoitestments.

We are externally managed and advised byamnager, a Securities and Exchange Commissici§BE," registered investment
adviser, pursuant to the terms of a managemené¢ignet. Our
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Manager is an affiliate of Ares Management LLC;Ares Management," a global alternative asset mamnad SEC registered investment
adviser.

We are a Maryland corporation that commdrioeestment operations on December 9, 2011. Wept=ied our initial public offering, or
"IPO," on May 1, 2012. We are incorporated in Mand and intend to elect and qualify to be taxed B&IT, commencing with our taxable
year ended December 31, 2012. We generally wilbeotubject to U.S. federal income taxes on owatikexincome to the extent that:
annually distribute all or substantially all of daxable income to stockholders and maintain ognided qualification as a REIT. We also
intend to operate our business in a manner thapeimit us to maintain our exemption from registna under the 1940 Act. We are an
"emerging growth company,"” as defined in the Juamp€ur Business Startups Act of 2012, or the "J@BE"' and we are eligible to take
advantage of certain exemptions from various répgrequirements that are applicable to other putdimpanies that are not "emerging
growth companies” including, but not limited tot heing required to comply with the auditor attéstarequirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, reduced disclosuregatibns regarding executive compensation in oupgerreports and proxy statements,
and exemptions from the requirements of holdingmbinding advisory vote on executive compensagioth stockholder approval of any
golden parachute payments not previously approsédhave not made a decision whether to take adgarmtiany or all of these exemptio
If we do take advantage of any of these exemptiwesjo not know if some investors will find our coron stock less attractive as a result.
The result may be a less active trading markeb@mrcommon stock and our stock price may be molaila

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Astogprovides that an "emerging growth company" et eidvantage of the extended transition
period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Setiesi Act or 1933, as amended, for complying wittv o revised accounting standards.
However, we are choosing to "opt out" of such eaéghtransition period, and as a result, we will pymvith new or revised accounting
standards on the relevant dates on which adopfisnah standards is required for non-emerging gnaempanies. Section 107 of the JOBS
Act provides that our decision to opt out of théeexied transition period for complying with newrevised accounting standards is
irrevocable.

We could remain an "emerging growth comgdayup to five years, or until the earliest of ttie last day of the first fiscal year in wh
our annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion,h@)date that we become a "large accelerated &edefined in Rule 12b-2 under the
Exchange Act, which would occur if the market vatdi@ur common stock that is held by non-affiliateseeds $700 million as of the last
business day of our most recently completed sefisaal quarter, or (iii) the date on which we hassued more than $1 billion in non-
convertible debt during the preceding three yesiogde

Factors Impacting Our Operating Results

The results of our operations are affetied number of factors and primarily depend on, mgnather things, the level of our net interest
income, the market value of our assets and thelyoppand demand for, commercial mortgage loarRE@ebt and other financial assets in
the marketplace. Our net interest income, whiclects the amortization of origination fees and dil@sts, is recognized based on the
contractual rate and the outstanding principalrxzgeaof the loans we originate. Interest ratesweitly according to the type of investment,
conditions in the financial markets, credit wordns of our borrowers, competition and other factoose of which can be predicted with any
certainty. Our operating results may also be ingzhbtly credit losses in excess of initial anticipasi or unanticipated credit events
experienced by borrowers.

Changesin Fair Value of Our Assets.  We generally hold our target investments ag-@mm investments. We evaluate our investments
for impairment on at least a quarterly basis anghimments will be recognized when it is probabk tlve will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual termBeofdan. If a loan is considered to be impairedyierecord an allowance to
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reduce the carrying value of the loan to the pregalue of expected future cash flows discounteti@ioan's contractual effective rate, or if
repayment is expected solely from the collateta,fair value of the collateral.

Loans are collateralized by real estateamd result, the extent and impact of any crextgribration associated with the performance
and/or value of the underlying collateral propegy,well as the financial and operating capabdftthe borrower, are regularly evaluated. We
monitor performance of our investment portfolio anthe following methodology: (1) borrower reviemhich analyzes the borrower's ability
to execute on its original business plan, revigw/éimancial condition, assesses pending litigatind considers its general level of
responsiveness and cooperation; (2) economic reviéneh considers underlying collateral, i.e. legsperformance, unit sales and cash flow
of the collateral and its ability to cover debtsee as well as the residual loan balance at ntgtu8) property review, which considers
current environmental risks, changes in insuraeséscor coverage, current site visibility, cap@penditures and market perception; and
(4) market review, which analyzes the collaterairfra supply and demand perspective of similar ptgpgpes, as well as from a capital
markets perspective. Such impairment analysescampleted and reviewed by asset management anccérmarsonnel who utilize various
data sources, including periodic financial datehsag property occupancy, tenant profile, rentasabperating expenses, and the borrower's
exit plan, among other factors.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 311 28l loans were paying in accordance with tterims. There were no impairments
during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Although we generally hold our target inwesnts as long-term investments, we may occasiookbssify some of our investments as
available-for-sale. Investments classified as abéd-for-sale will be carried at their fair valwgth changes in fair value recorded through
accumulated other comprehensive income, a comparfistbckholders' equity, rather than through eaysi We do not expect to hold any of
our investments for trading purposes.

Changesin Market Interest Rates.  With respect to our proposed business opemtianreases in interest rates, in general, may ove
time cause:

. the interest expense associated with our bormgsvio increase, subject to any applicable ceilings

. the value of our mortgage loans to decline, ettitio any applicable ceilings;

. coupons on our mortgage loans to reset to higiterest rates; and

. to the extent we enter into interest rate swgpements as part of our hedging strategy wherngaydixed and receive floating

interest rates, the value of these agreementstedse.

Conversely, decreases in interest rategelireral, may over time cause:

. the interest expense associated with our borrowtimgiecrease, subject to any applicable floors;
. the value of our mortgage loan portfolio to incedsr such mortgages with applicable floors;
. to the extent we enter into interest rate swggpa@ments as part of our hedging strategy wherpaydixed and receive floating

interest rates, the value of these agreementscreatse; and

. coupons on our floating rate mortgage loang$et to lower interest rates.

Credit Risk. We are subject to varying degrees of creditinsconnection with our target investments. Oumisiger seeks to mitigate
this risk by seeking to originate or acquire innests of higher quality at appropriate prices giaaticipated and unanticipated losses, by
employing a comprehensive review and selectiongg®and by proactively monitoring originated oruacd investments. Nevertheless,
unanticipated credit losses could occur that cadleersely impact our operating results and stocldrs| equity.
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Market Conditions. We believe that our target investments curyegmtbsent attractive risk-adjusted return profild® believe that the
U.S. CRE markets are currently in the early to ne@ddages of a recovery from the severe economimtlon that began in 2007. Following
dramatic decline in CRE lending in 2008 and 20@Mhtdapital has become more readily availabledtgcs stabilized, high quality assets in
certain locations such as gateway cities, but resnl@nited for many other types of properties. Example, we currently anticipate a high
demand for customized debt financing from borroveersponsors who are looking to refinance indel#edithat is maturing in the next two
to five years or are seeking shorter-term debttgwla as they reposition their properties. We helithat as a result of the aforementioned
economic downturn and the subsequent banking reguleeform, a number of lenders and finance corigsawho traditionally served the
CRE middle-market, are burdened with legacy pddfisisues, balance sheet constraints or have oigerxited the market. We believe that
this decreased competition will create a favoraiestment environment for the foreseeable futite.also believe that we are well
positioned to capitalize on the expected demaneérgded by the estimated $1.7 trillion of CRE debturing between 2012 and 2016 (as
reported inCommercial Real Estate Outlook: Top Ten Issuesin 2013 published by Deloitte & Touche LLP).

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On March 8, 2013, we entered into a loauagption transaction with a new sponsor group d¢difate the purchase of a Class B office
building in Miami, FL that was collateralized byraexisting $47.0 million first mortgage loan. Thearest rate on our existing loan did not
change. The new maturity date of the loan is A2014 and is subject to a one 12-month extensiciompt

On March 14, 2013, we declared a cash diddof $0.25 per common share for the first quart®013. The first quarter 2013 dividend
is payable on April 18, 2013 to common stockholdgnecord as of April 8, 2013.

On March 28, 2013 we co-originated an apipnately $107.1 million transitional first mortgagan on three properties located in
Atlanta, GA. At closing the outstanding principaasvapproximately $94.7 million. As part of the saction, we funded an approximately
$26.7 million B-Note, while the approximately $68ulllion A-Note was funded by a commercial bankeTBrNote has an initial interest rate
of L + 10.75% subject to a 0.50% LIBOR floor (wite benefit of any difference between actual LIB&# the LIBOR floor on the A-Note
and B-Note accruing to the B-Note; as the B-Notalfuadditional loan proceeds, the interest ratthemB-Note may decrease) and an initial
term of 3 years.

On March 29, 2013 we originated an apprexety $25.5 million transitional first mortgage foan a property located in Overland Park,
KS. At closing the outstanding principal was appmately $24.4 million. The loan has an interes¢é maitL + 5.00% subject to a 0.25%
LIBOR floor and term of 3 years.

Once a formal financing commitment is ofal (subject to the terms of our applicable sectunading facility) for the approximately
$25.5 million transitional first mortgage loan dngted on March 29, 2013, we expect to have apprataly $48 million of remaining capital,
either in cash or in approved but undrawn capagigyer our secured funding facilities. After holdingeserve $20.0 million in liquidity
requirements, we have approximately $28 milliogapital available to fund additional commitmentsy, existing outstanding commitments
and for other working capital purposes. Assumirgj the use such amount as equity capital to makeimezgtments and are able to achieve a
debt-to-equity ratio of 1-to-1 to 2-to-1, we hate tapacity to fund approximately $55 million tgegximately $85 million of additional
investments. As of March 29, 2013, the total unfthdommitments for our existing loans held for stweent were approximately $57 milli
and borrowings under our secured funding faciliied from the issuance of convertible senior nate® approximately $199 million and
$69.0 million, respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND USE OF ESTIMATES

Our financial statements are prepared aoance with GAAP, which requires the use of egtén and assumptions that involve the
exercise of judgment as to future uncertaintiesdeordance with SEC guidance, the following dismusaddresses the accounting policies
that we believe apply to us based on the natuoeiphitial operations. Our most critical accougtipolicies involve decisions and
assessments that could affect our reported assettadilities, as well as our reported revenued @xpenses. We believe that all of the
decisions and assessments used to draft our fadastatements are based upon reasonable assumgitienshe information available to us
that time. Our critical accounting policies and@aating estimates will be expanded over time agulhe implement our strategy. Those
accounting policies and estimates that we beliegarst critical to an investor's understandinguffinancial results and condition and
require complex management judgment are discussedrbOur actual results could differ from thestneates.

LoansHeld for I nvestment and | nterest | ncome Recognition

Our originated loans receivable will besslified as held-for-investment based upon our trded ability to hold them until maturity.
Loans that are held-for-investment are carriecbat,met of unamortized loan fees, and originasind acquisition costs, unless the loan is
deemed impaired. Interest income will be recognizaskd on the contractual rate and the outstamlingipal balance of the loans.
Origination fees, contractual exit fees and diteah origination costs are also recognized in @geincome over the loan term as a yield
adjustment using the effective interest method. dltjective of the effective interest method is tiave at periodic interest income that yields
a level rate of return over the original loan tentlusive of origination points and other fees.

We will evaluate each loan classified dsl ier investment for impairment on a periodic lsasinpairment occurs when it is deemed
probable that we will not be able to collect allamts due according to the contractual terms ofdhe. If a loan is considered to be
impaired, we will record an allowance to reducedasying value of the loan to the present valuexgfected future cash flows discounted at
the loan's contractual effective rate or the falue of the collateral, if repayment is expectedlgdrom the collateral. Our loans are
collateralized by real estate. As a result, we reifjularly evaluate the extent and impact of amgitideterioration associated with the
performance and/or value of the underlying colkdtproperty as well as the financial and operatiagability of the borrower. We monitor
performance of our investment portfolio under tbkofving methodology: (1) borrower review, whichadyees the borrower's ability to
execute on its original business plan, review§in@ncial condition, assesses pending litigatiod eonsiders its general level of
responsiveness and cooperation; (2) economic revidch considers underlying collateral, (i.e. ieggperformance, unit sales and cash 1
of the collateral and its ability to cover debtsee as well as the residual loan balance at ntgju(B) property review, which considers
current environmental risks, changes in insuraeséscor coverage, current site visibility, cap@penditures and market perception; and
(4) market review, which analyzes the collateraifra supply and demand perspective of similar ptgpgpes, as well as from a capital
markets perspective. Such impairment analysesaamgleted and reviewed by asset management anctérmarsonnel who utilize various
data sources, including periodic financial datehsag property occupancy, tenant profile, rent@sabperating expenses, and the borrower's
exit plan, among other factors.

In addition, we evaluate the entire poitfab determine whether the portfolio has any impaints that require a general valuation
allowance on the remainder of the loan portfolibe Bmount of each element of the allowance wouldgbermined separately; however, the
entire allowance for loan losses would be availablabsorb losses in the loan portfolio. If impa@mhis indicated, a valuation write-down or
write-off would be measured based upon the excefeaecorded investment amount over the netfine of the collateral, as reduced by
selling costs. Any deficiency between the carrnyangount of an asset and the net sales price ofsepssd collateral
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would be charged to the allowance for loan losaesof December 31, 2012, there are no impairmemtsuw loan portfolio.

Significant judgment will be required intdamining impairment, including making assumptioegarding the value of a loan or loan
pool, the value of the underlying collateral anldestprovisions such as guarantees.

Valuation of Financial I nstruments

We determine the estimated fair value wérficial assets and liabilities using the threeftigrvalue hierarchy established by GAAP,
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring ¥ailue. GAAP establishes market-based or obsenmpigs as the preferred source of
values, followed by valuation models using managerassumptions in the absence of market inputs.ofhefinancial instrument recorded
at fair value on a recurring basis in our constéddinancial statements is the derivative liapifissociated with our 2015 Convertible Notes
(defined below). We have not elected the fair valpton for the remaining financial instruments;limding loans held for investment and
secured funding agreements. Such financial instntisnare carried at cost. For loans held for investmvhich are evaluated for impairmen
least quarterly, we estimate the fair value offthencial instrument. If an impairment is determdneve record an expense for the difference
between fair value and the carrying cost of tharfirial instrument. As of December 31, 2012, theviaiue of our financial instruments
approximates cost.

The three levels of inputs that may be ueadeasure fair value are as follows:
Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for idegdtmssets or liabilities.

Level 2—Prices are determined using other signiticdservable inputs. Observable inputs are intatisother market participants
would use in pricing a security. These may inclgdeted prices for similar securities, interestsafFepayment speeds, credit risk
others.

Level 3—Prices are determined using significanthsgovable inputs. In situations where quoted priceshservable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment at the endhef period), unobservable inputs may
be used.

Unobservable inputs reflect our own assimngtabout the factors that market participantsld/ase in pricing an asset or liability, and
would be based on the best information available.anticipate that a significant portion of our asseill fall in Level 3 in the valuation
hierarchy.

Any changes to the valuation methodology Ivé reviewed by management to ensure the chaargeappropriate. As markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslb@comes more transparent, we will continue fine@ur valuation methodologies. The
methods used by us may produce a fair value cdionlthat may not be indicative of net realizabdédue or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while we anticipate that our valuatioethods will be appropriate and consistent witteotmarket participants, the use of
different methodologies, or assumptions, to deteentie fair value of certain financial instrumecasild result in a different estimate of fair
value at the reporting date. We will use inputg #re current as of the measurement date, whichinciyde periods of market dislocation,
during which price transparency may be reduced.

Derivative Financial | nstruments

We do not hold or issue derivative instratsdor trading purposes. We recognize derivatoresur balance sheet, measure them at theil
estimated fair value and recognize changes in #stimated fair value in our results of operatifsrghe period in which the change occurs.
On December 19, 2012, we issued $69.0 million agggeeprincipal amount of unsecured 7.000% Conver8enior Notes due 2015, or the
"2015 Convertible Notes." The conversion featurfethe 2015 Convertible
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Notes are deemed to be an embedded derivativeardgance Accounting Standards Codification, or "ASKbpic 815, Derivatives an
Hedging, or "ASC 815." In accordance with ASC 8i/B,are required to bifurcate the embedded derigatiated to the conversion features
of the 2015 Convertible Notes. We will recognize #mbedded derivative as a liability on our balasiezet, measure it at its estimated fair
value and recognize changes in its estimated &irevin our results of operations for the periog/hich the change occurs.

Income Taxes

Under our current structure, our financédults are generally not expected to reflect [miows for current or deferred income taxes. We
believe that we will operate in a manner that alilbw us to qualify for taxation as a REIT. As auk of our expected REIT qualification and
distribution policy, we do not generally expecpty U.S. federal corporate level income taxes. Mzrthe REIT requirements, however, are
highly technical and complex. To qualify as a RENE, must meet a number of organizational and ojppaatrequirements, including a
requirement to distribute annually at least 90%wfREIT taxable income to our stockholders. Ifveee previously qualified as a REIT and
fail to qualify as a REIT in any subsequent taxaf@ar and do not qualify for certain statutoryetprovisions, we will be subject to U.S.
federal and state income taxes at regular corpoagas (including any applicable alternative minimtax) and may be precluded from
qualifying as a REIT for four subsequent taxablargeEven if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, may be subject to certain U.S. federal,
state, local and foreign taxes on our income anggnty and to U.S. federal income and excise taresur undistributed REIT taxable
income.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our resultsopferations highlights our performance for the yeradted December 31, 2012. We do not
believe that a comparison of our results of opensatifor the period from September 1, 2011 (Inceptio December 31, 2011 is meaningful
because we commenced investment operations on ec&n2011 and had less than one month of opasatay all of calendar year 2011.
Because we had no operations prior to Decembddld,,2here is no prior period with which to compaue results of operations for the
period from September 1, 2011 (Inception) to Decan®i, 2011.

We completed our IPO on May 1, 2012. Thecpeds of our IPO were used in part to fully replhpf the outstanding balances on our
various secured funding arrangements as of theaddbe IPO, including all accrued interest dued gmfully redeem all of our issued and
outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Prefe®teck, par value $0.01 per share, or the "Sérieseferred Stock," including payment of
all dividends due and applicable redemption premsiufurther, we completed an offering of our 2015w&otible Notes on December 19,
2012, resulting in net proceeds of $66.2 milliohjet was used to repay outstanding amounts undesemured funding facilities and for
other general corporate purposes. As a resulteae@ber 31, 2012, we had no issued and outstaBirigs A Preferred Stock and
$23.4 million in unrestricted cash and cash eqeivisl. Results for the year ended December 31, 2@l@ot indicative of the results we
expect when our investment strategy has beenifulyemented for a full fiscal year.
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The following table sets forth certain infation regarding our net income for the year eridedember 31, 2012 and for the period from
September 1, 2011 (Inception) to December 31, Zidlthousands):

For the Period from

September 1, 2011
For the Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Net interest margin:

Interest incomt $ 9,27¢ $ 3
Interest expense (from secured fundin
facilities) (2,347) (39
Net interest margin (los: $ 6,93¢ $ (3€)
Expenses:
Other interest expen: $ 31z $ —
Management fees to affilia 1,66t —
Professional fee 1,19¢ 58
General and administrative expen 1,28¢ 69
General and administrative expenses
reimbursed to affiliat 1,61¢ —
Total expense $ 6,07¢ $ 127
Net income (loss $ 86C $ (163)

Net Interest Margin

For the year ended December 31, 2012 anithéoperiod from September 1, 2011 (Inceptioripéeember 31, 2011, we earned
approximately $6.9 million and $(36) thousand ihinéerest margin (loss), respectively. For theryaaled December 31, 2012 and for the
period from September 1, 2011 (Inception) to Decan®i, 2011, interest income of $9.3 million andi$®usand, respectively, was gener.
by average earning assets of $123.4 million andtBddsand, respectively, offset by $1.6 million &@d respectively, of interest expense
from secured funding facilities and unused fees®#@D thousand and $39 thousand, respectivelytefdast expense from the amortizatiol
deferred loan costs. The average borrowings unaiesexcured funding facilities were $42.6 milliorde$0 for the year ended December 31,
2012 and for the period from September 1, 201lefition) to December 31, 2011, respectively.

Operating Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2012 anithéoperiod from September 1, 2011 (Inceptiorpézember 31, 2011, we incurred
operating expenses of $6.1 million and $127 thodiseespectively. Related party expenses for the geded December 31, 2012 included
$1.7 million in management fees due to our Manager$1.6 million for our share of allocable genaradl administrative expenses for which
we are required to reimburse our Manager purswstfiet management agreement, dated April 25, 2Gt®#/den us and our Manager. We did
not reimburse our Manger for any such related paxpenses for the period from September 1, 20kEfion) to December 31, 2011. Also
included in general and administrative expenseshaised to our Manager for the year ended DeceBthe2012 are $17 thousand of
servicing fees. Servicing fees were charged to Aammercial Real Estate Services LLC, or "ACRES, affiliate of our Manager, through
May 1, 2012. Effective May 1, 2012, ACRES agreedt tio servicing fees will be charged pursuant ésé¢hservicing agreements for so long
as the management agreement remains in effech&®u_ACRES will continue
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to receive reimbursement for overhead relatednd@eg and operational activities pursuant to timens of the management agreement.

Other expenses for the year ended Dece8iher012 include an interest expense of $313 thwliszlated to the 2015 Convertible Notes
(including $97 thousand unrealized loss on denveaj, professional fees of $1.2 million and genaral administrative expenses of
$1.3 million. Other expenses for the period frompt8mber 1, 2011 (Inception) to December 31, 20idude professional fees of
$58 thousand and general and administrative exparfsk69 thousand.

During the year ended December 31, 201 aie $102 thousand and $1.6 million in divideral¢hie holders of Series A Preferred
Stock and the holders of our common stock, respelgtiThe Series A Preferred Stock was redeemddaynl, 2012 using the proceeds of
our IPO resulting in the payment of a $572 thousaad@mption premium to the holders of the Seriéxréferred Stock.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth changesasttand cash equivalents for the year ended Deceé8hp2012 and for the period from
September 1, 2011 (Inception) to December 31, Zidlthousands):

For the Period from
September 1, 2011

For the Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Net income (loss $ 86C $ (169
Adjustments to reconcile net income
(loss) to cash provided by operating
activities 1,092 581
Net cash provided by Operati
Activities 1,952 41¢
Net cash used in Investing Activiti (348,15) (4,945
Net cash provided by Financil
Activities 368,54¢ 5,76
Change in cash and cash equival $ 22,15( $ 1,24(

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $@ilion and $1.2 million, respectively, duringetlyear ended December 31, 2012 and di
the period from September 1, 2011 (Inception) toddeber 31, 2011. Net cash provided by operatingities totaled $2.0 million and
$418 thousand, respectively, during the year efmemEmber 31, 2012 and for the period from Septerhp2011 (Inception) to December
2011. This net cash was primarily related to irdeead fee income collected offset by interest agspeThe adjustments for non-cash charges
for the year ended December 31, 2012, includekdiased compensation of $338 thousand, accretidefefred loan origination fees and
costs of $400 thousand and amortization of deféirethcing costs of $698 thousand and $97 thouséndrealized loss on derivatives
(included in other interest expense). The adjustenfem non-cash charges for the period from Sepézrib2011 (Inception) to December 31,
2011 included amortization of deferred financingtsmf $39 thousand.

Net cash used in investing activities far year ended December 31, 2012 and for the pfdodSeptember 1, 2011 (Inception) to
December 31, 2011 totaled $(348.2) million and $H(#illion, respectively, and related primarilyttee origination of new loans held-for-
investment.

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2012 totaled $368i6n and related primarily to proceeds
from our IPO, proceeds from the offering of the 2@onvertible Notes, and proceeds from our secfuneding facilities. Net cash provided
by financing activities for the period from Septeamii, 2011 (Inception) to December 31, 2011 tot&&8 million and related primarily to
the issuance of our common stock to Ares Investsnidotdings LLC, or "Ares Investments."”
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Changes in Stockholders' Equity Resulting From Opeations per Common Share

Changes in stockholders' equity resulthognf operations per common share for the year eBéegmber 31, 2012 and for the period
from September 1, 2011 (Inception) to Decembe2811 was approximately $0.03 per share and $(p&63hare, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to etg@otential cash requirements, including ongoimmmmitments to repay borrowings, fund and
maintain our assets and operations, make distobsitio our stockholders and other general busimesds. We will use significant cash to
purchase our target investments, repay principdliaterest on our borrowings, make distributionstio stockholders and fund our
operations. Our primary sources of cash will gelhecdnsist of unused borrowing capacity under fingincing sources, the net proceeds of
future offerings, payments of principal and inténge receive on our portfolio of assets and castegged from our operating results. We
expect that our primary sources of financing wé| to the extent available to us, through (a) ¢redicured funding and other lending
facilities, (b) securitizations, (c) other sourcégrivate financing, including warehouse and repase facilities, and (d) offerings of our
equity or debt securities. In the future, we malizat other sources of financing to the extent kalde to us.

Secured Funding Arrangements

The sources of financing for our targeteisivnents are described below. For a more deta@iscrightion of the Wells Fargo Facility, the
Citibank Facility and the Capital One Facility, sSeeOur Financing Strategy."

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Outstanding Total Outstanding Total
$ in thousands Balance Commitment Balance Commitment
Wells Fargo Facility $ 98,19¢ $ 172,50( $ — $  75,00(
Citibank Facility 13,90( 86,22t — 50,00(
Capital One Facility 32,16( 50,00( — —
Total $ 144,25t $ 308,72! $ — $ 125,00

The secured funding arrangements are gineddlateralized by assignments of specific lotwesd for investment originated by us. We
guarantee the secured funding arrangements. Ghnevalpartially offset interest rate risk by matapthe interest index of loans held for
investments with the secured funding agreement tesdhd them.

WEells Fargo Facility

On December 14, 2011, we entered into ad0bTillion secured revolving funding facility arged by Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, or the "Wells Fargo Facility,” pursugmwhich we borrow funds to finance qualifyinghé® commercial mortgage loans and A-
Notes, subject to available collateral. On May 2212, the agreements governing the Wells Fargdifyagiere amended to, among ott
things, increase the total commitment under theld\Fergo Facility from $75.0 million to $172.5 niolh. Advances under the Wells Fargo
Facility accrue interest at a per annum rate eggutile sum of (i) 30 day LIBOR plus (ii) a pricingargin range of 2.50% - 2.75%. On
May 15, 2012, we started to incur a non-utilizatiea of 25 basis points on the average availadnba of the Wells Fargo Facility. The
initial maturity date of the Wells Fargo Facility December 14, 2014 and, provided that certainitond are met and applicable extension
fees are paid, is subject to two 12-month extensjiions. As of December 31 2012, the outstandaigrize on the Wells Fargo Facility was
$98.2 million.
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The Wells Fargo Facility contains variotfdmative and negative covenants applicable tamnd certain of our subsidiaries, including
the following: (a) limitations on the incurrenceartditional indebtedness or liens, (b) limitatimmshow borrowed funds may be used,
(c) limitations on certain distributions and dividkepayments, (d) maintenance of adequate camddingitations on change of control,
(f) maintaining a ratio of total debt to total assef not more than 75%, (g) maintaining liquidityan amount not less than the greater of
(1) 5% of our tangible net worth or (2) $20.0 naitli (h) maintaining a fixed charge coverage ratip(essed as the ratio of EBITDA to fixed
charges) of at least 1.5 to 1, and (i) maintair@rigngible net worth of at least the sum of (1)3&3nillion, plus (2) 80% of the net proceeds
raised in all future equity issuances by us. Efeciune 29, 2012, the agreements governing thés\Watgo Facility were further amended to
provide that the required minimum fixed charge cage ratio with respect to us as guarantor wilttstabe tested upon the earlier to occur of
(a) the calendar quarter ending on June 30, 20d3@rthe first full calendar quarter following thalendar quarter in which we report "Lo:
held for investment" in excess of $200.0 millionaur quarterly consolidated balance sheet. Sincd Becember 31, 2012 we reported
"Loans held for investment” in excess of $200.diom| we will be required to test the minimum fixedarge coverage ratio beginning with
the quarter ended March 31, 2013.

Citibank Facility

On December 8, 2011, we entered into adb&lllion secured revolving funding facility arraed by Citibank, N.A., or the "Citibank
Facility," pursuant to which we borrow funds todirce qualifying senior commercial mortgage loardsAaNotes, subject to available
collateral. On April 16, 2012 and May 1, 2012, #yreements governing the Citibank Facility were izoheel to, among other things, increase
the total commitment under the Citibank Facilityrfr $50.0 million to $86.2 million. Under the CitildaFacility, we borrow funds on a
revolving basis in the form of individual loans.dBandividual loan is secured by an underlying logiginated by us. Advances under the
Citibank Facility accrue interest at a per annutae kased on LIBOR. The margin can vary betweend2.80d 3.50% over the greater of
LIBOR and 0.5%, based on the debt yield of thetaggmtributed into ACRC Lender C LLC, one of ourolly owned subsidiaries and the
borrower under the Citibank Facility. On March B12, we started to incur a non-utilization fee bflfasis points on the average available
balance of the Citibank Facility. The maturity dafesach individual loan is the same as the matdate of the underlying loan that secures
such individual loan. The end of the funding pelim®ecember 8, 2013, and may be extended for diti@uhl 12 months upon the payment
of the applicable extension fee and provided tloagwent of default is then occurring. As of Decentifs 2012, the outstanding balance on
the Citibank Facility was $13.9 million.

The Citibank Facility contains various affative and negative covenants applicable to uscantdin of our subsidiaries, including the
following: (a) maintaining tangible net worth oflafist the sum of (1) 80% of our tangible net waghof May 1, 2012, plus (2) 80% of the
total net capital raised in all future equity issces by us, (b) maintaining liquidity in an amounaot less than the greater of (1) $20.0 million
or (2) 5% of our tangible net worth, (c) a cap om distributions of the greater of (1) 100% of ¢taxable net income, or (2) such amount as is
necessary to maintain our status as a REIT, andl ¢dy average debt yield across the portfoli@s$ets that are financed with the Citibank
Facility falls below certain thresholds, we mayrbquired to repay certain amounts under the Cikilfgacility. The Citibank Facility also
prohibits us from amending our management agreeimeninaterial respect without the prior consertheflender.

Capital One Facility

On May 18, 2012, we entered into a $50 Manisecured funding facility with Capital One, tial Association, or the "Capital One
Facility," pursuant to which we borrow funds todirce qualifying senior commercial mortgage loanbject to available collateral. Under !
Capital One Facility, we borrow funds on a revotylmasis in the form of individual loans evidencedrdividual
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notes. Each individual loan is secured by an ugdeglloan originated by us. Amounts outstandingarmehch individual loan accrue interest
at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus a sprergimg between 2.50% and 4.00%. We may requestithéiVloans under the Capital One
Facility through and including May 18, 2014, subjecsuccessive 12-month extension options atahedr's discretion. The maturity date of
each individual loan is the same as the maturitg dathe underlying loan that secures such indigidoan. As of December 31, 2012, the
outstanding balance on the Capital One Facility $2&2 million.

The Capital One Facility contains varioffgmative and negative covenants applicable tamd certain of our subsidiaries, including
following: (a) maintaining a ratio of debt to tabt@ net worth of not more than 3.0 to 1, (b) mamitay a tangible net worth of at least the ¢
of (1) 80% of our tangible net worth as of May 012, plus (2) 80% of the net proceeds received fbruture equity issuances by us,

(c) maintaining a total liquidity in excess of theeater of (1) 5% of our tangible net worth or$2).0 million, and (d) maintaining a fixed
charge coverage ratio (expressed as the ratio bF[EB to fixed charges) of at least 1.5 to 1. EffeetSeptember 27, 2012, the agreements
governing the Capital One Facility were amendeprtwide that the required minimum fixed charge cage ratio with respect to us as
guarantor will start to be tested upon the eatbavccur of (a) the calendar quarter ending on Ah&013 and (b) the first full calendar
quarter following the calendar quarter in whichngport "Loans held for investment" in excess of(bRmillion on our quarterly consolidal
balance sheet. Since as of December 31, 2012 wetedgd'Loans held for investment" in excess of $Q0aillion, we will be required to test
the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio beginniriigp whe quarter ended March 31, 2013.

2015 Convertible Notes

On December 19, 2012, we issued $69.0anikiggregate principal amount of the 2015 ConMertitotes. Of this aggregate principal
amount, $60.5 million aggregate principal amourthef2015 Convertible Notes was sold to the infaizichasers (including $9.0 million
pursuant to the initial purchasers' exercise ihdtitheir overallotment option) and $8.5 millioggregate principal amount of the 2015
Convertible Notes was sold directly to certain ciioes, officers and other affiliates of the Compamw private placement. The 2015
Convertible Notes were issued pursuant to an Inolentlated December 19, 2012, or the "Indentuetéen us and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee. The sale of the 2015 QtibleNotes generated net proceeds of approxim&@b.2 million. Aggregate offering
expenses in connection with the transaction, inathe initial purchasers' discount of approxirha&?.1 million, were approximately
$2.8 million. As of December 31, 2012, the carryuadue of the 2015 Convertible Notes was $67.3iomll

The 2015 Convertible Notes bear interest raite of 7.000% per year, payable semiannuallyriears on June 15 and December 15 of
each year, beginning on June 15, 2013. The effeatierest rate of the 2015 Convertible Notes, Wigcequal to the stated rate of 7.000%
plus the accretion of the original issue discountt associated costs, was approximately 9.4% foyehe ended December 31, 2012. As of
December 31, 2012, the interest incurred on tlisltedness was $216 thousand. The 2015 Convedaiés will mature on December 15,
2015, or the "Maturity Date," unless previously eeried or repurchased in accordance with theirgefithe 2015 Convertible Notes are our
senior unsecured obligations and rank senior int 1id payment to our existing and future indebtedrnbat is expressly subordinated in right
of payment to the 2015 Convertible Notes; equaight of payment to our existing and future unsedundebtedness that is not so
subordinated; effectively junior in right of paymea any of our secured indebtedness (includingtag unsecured indebtedness that the
Company later secures) to the extent of the vafllleeoassets securing such indebtedness; andwstailgtunior to all existing and future
indebtedness (including trade payables) incurredurysubsidiaries, financing vehicles or similasilities.
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Prior to the close of business on the lssirday immediately preceding June 15, 2015 hotdaysconvert their 2015 Convertible Notes
only under certain circumstances as set forthénldenture. On or after June 15, 2015 until tlhselof business on the scheduled tradinc
immediately preceding the Maturity Date, holders/roanvert their 2015 Convertible Notes at any tikdpon conversion, we will pay or
deliver, as the case may be, at our election, chelres of our common stock or a combination df easl shares of our common stock,
provided that we will not elect to use a settlenmarthod that results in us issuing more than 14&83shares of common stock prior to
obtaining stockholder approval in accordance wittain New York Stock Exchange, or "NYSE," requisans. The conversion rate is
initially 53.6107 shares of common stock per $1,pficipal amount of 2015 Convertible Notes (eglémato an initial conversion price of
approximately $18.65 per share of common stockg ddnversion rate will be subject to adjustmergdme events, including for regular
quarterly dividends in excess of $0.35 per shawewll not be adjusted for any accrued and unjatierest. In addition, if certain corporate
events occur prior to the Maturity Date, the cosia@r rate will be increased but will in no eventeed 61.6523 shares of common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of 2015 Convertible Notes.

We may not elect to issue shares of comshock upon conversion of the 2015 Convertible Ntoebe extent such election would re:
in the issuance of 20% or more of the common statktanding immediately prior to the issuance ef2815 Convertible Notes until we
receive stockholder approval for issuances abasgehheshold. Until such stockholder approval isagted, we may not share-settle the full
conversion option. As a result, the embedded canweption does not qualify for equity classifioatand instead is separately valued and
accounted for as a derivative liability. The initialue allocated to the derivative liability wa%.$ million, which represents a discount to the
debt to be amortized through other interest expassg the effective interest method through théumitg of the 2015 Convertible Notes. T
effective interest rate used to amortize the dedstodint on the 2015 Convertible Notes is 9.4%. Byigach reporting period, the derivative
liability is marked to fair value through earnings of December 31, 2012, the derivative liabiligd a fair value of $1.8 million. If the
Company obtains stockholder approval for the isseari 20% or more of the common stock outstandimgédiately prior to the issuance of
the 2015 Convertible Notes so the conversion optaambe sharsettled in full at the Company's option, the cosiar option may qualify fc
equity classification and the bifurcated derivatiability would no longer need to be accounteddera derivative on a prospective basis from
the date of reassessment. Any remaining debt digdbat arose at the date of debt issuance fromorigsal bifurcation will continue to be
amortized through other interest expense.

We do not have the right to redeem the ZDdsvertible Notes prior to the Maturity Date, epct the extent necessary to preserve our
qualification as a REIT for U.S. federal income paxposes. No sinking fund is provided for the 2CHHvertible Notes. In addition, if we
undergo certain corporate events that constitiferalamental change," the holders of the 2015 Cuilble Notes may require us to
repurchase for cash all or part of their 2015 Catitvle Notes at a repurchase price equal to 100%eprincipal amount of the 2015
Convertible Notes to be repurchased, plus accroddiapaid interest to, but excluding, the fundaralecttange repurchase date.

Other Credit Facilities, Warehouse Facilities and Rpurchase Agreements

In the future, we may also use other sauotdinancing to fund the origination or acquisitiof our target investments, including other
credit facilities, warehouse facilities, repurchéalities, convertible debt, retail notes andestecured and unsecured forms of borrowing.
These financings may be collateralized or non-tafidized and may involve one or more lenders. Weeet that these facilities will typically
have maturities ranging from two to five years amaly accrue interest at either fixed or floatingesat
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Equity Issuances

The following summarizes the total sharfesuw common stock issued and proceeds we recéivedvate and underwritten public
offerings of our common stock net of offering castisyear ended December 31, 2012:

On January 25, 2012, we entered into acsigtion agreement with Ares Investments, wherebgsAnvestments agreed to purchase
400,000 shares of our common stock for a totallpase price of $8.0 million, after giving effectttee reverse stock split on February 22,
2012.

On February 6, 2012, we entered into agyfifon agreement with Ares Investments, wherebgsAnvestments agreed to purchase
770,000 shares of our common stock for a totallpse price of $15.4 million, after giving effectth® reverse stock split on February 22,
2012,

On February 8, 2012, our charter was anetade restated to increase the number of authosizarks of our common stock and
preferred stock to 95,000,000 and 5,000,000 sheesgectively. The par value remained at $0.01spare.

On February 22, 2012, our board of directord Ares Investments approved a one-for-two sevetiock split whereby every two shares
of common stock that were issued and outstandimgediately prior to this date were changed intoiseeed and outstanding share of our
common stock.

On April 23, 2012, our charter was amendled restated to increase the number of authorizaets of our common stock and preferred
stock to 450,000,000 and 50,000,000 shares, régplgctThe par value remained at $0.01 per share.

On May 1, 2012, we completed our IPO 00®,000 shares of our common stock at a price of8Riger share, raising $142.5 million in
gross proceeds. Underwriting commissions of $5I8aniare reflected as a reduction of additionatipa capital on the consolidated
statement of stockholders' equity. Under the undéng agreement, our Manager was responsibleridraid directly the underwriting
commissions. Because the Manager is a related, phetypayment of underwriting commissions of $5iBiom by our Manager is reflected as
a contribution of additional paid-in capital on ttensolidated statement of stockholders' equigcitordance with GAAP. We incurred
approximately $3.5 million of expenses in connettiath the IPO, which is reflected as a reductioadditional paid-in capital. The net
proceeds to us totaled approximately $139.0 millidte used approximately $47.3 million of the netqareds of the IPO to repay outstanding
amounts under the Wells Fargo Facility and theb@itk Facility and $6.3 million to redeem all of assued shares of Series A Preferred
Stock. The balance was used for general corporatking capital purposes and to make investmentaiirtarget investments. As of
December 31, 2012, we have deployed substantihibf the net proceeds from the IPO with the exmepbdf $20.0 million of cash reserves
that we are required to maintain pursuant to thedeof the agreements governing our secured furfditifities.

Capital Markets

In addition to borrowings, we will needgeriodically raise additional capital to fund neweéstments. We intend to elect and qualify to
be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax gsep. Among other things, in order to qualify araintain our status as a REIT, we must
annually distribute to our stockholders at lea$t3ff our REIT taxable income (which does not eaqulincome, as calculated in accordance
with GAAP), determined without regard to the dedhrctfor dividends paid and excluding net capitahgand, as a result, such distributions
will not be available to fund investments. We mispaeek to enhance the returns on our senior coomhenortgage loan investments,
especially loan originations, through securitizasioif available. To the extent available, we igkém securitize the senior portion of some of
our loans, while retaining the subordinate seasitn our investment portfolio. The securitizatadrthis senior portion will be accounted for
as either a
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"sale" and the loans will be removed from our batasheet or as a "financing" and will be classifisd'securitized loans" on our balance
sheet, depending upon the structure of the sezatiitin.

Leverage Policies

We intend to use prudent amounts of levetagncrease potential returns to our stockholdesshat end, subject to maintaining our
qualification as a REIT and our exemption from ségition under the 1940 Act, we intend to use lwimgs to fund the origination or
acquisition of our target investments. Given curraarket conditions and our focus on first or senortgages, we currently expect that such
leverage would not exceed, on a debt-to-equityshas#-to-1 ratio. Our charter and bylaws do nstriet the amount of leverage that we may
use. The amount of leverage we will deploy for igatar investments in our target investments walpend upon our Manager's assessment of
a variety of factors, which may include, among ashéhe anticipated liquidity and price volatility the assets in our investment portfolio, the
potential for losses and extension risk in ourfolid, the gap between the duration of our assetkliabilities, including hedges, the
availability and cost of financing the assets, gpinion of the creditworthiness of our financingioterparties, the health of the U.S. economy
and commercial mortgage markets, our outlook ferlétvel and volatility of interest rates, the slae¢he yield curve, the credit quality of our
assets, the collateral underlying our assets, andutlook for asset spreads relative to the LIB&iR/e.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

Contractual obligations as of December2BiL2:

Less than More than
$ in millions Total 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years
Wells Fargo Facility $ 98z $ — 3 98.2 $ — 3 —
Citibank Facility 13.€ — 13.¢ — —
Capital One Facility 32.2 — 14.4 17.¢ —
2015 Convertible Note 69.C — 69.C — —
Future Loan Funding Commitmer 48.¢ — 37.2 11 —
Total $ 2621 $ — 3 232.¢ % 29.2 $ —

We may enter into certain contracts thay g@ntain a variety of indemnification obligatiomsincipally with underwriters and
counterparties to repurchase agreements. The maxjpotential future payment amount we could be megito pay under these
indemnification obligations may be unlimited.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have any relationships with ustdidated entities or financial partnerships, saskentities often referred to as structured
investment vehicles, special purpose entities @sykstablished to facilitate off-balance sheeatrayements or other contractually narrow or
limited purposes. Further, we have not guarantegdhligations of unconsolidated entities or erddrego any commitment or intend to
provide additional funding to any such entities.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Core Earnings is a measure not preparaddardance with GAAP and is defined as GAAP natiime (loss) excluding non-cash equity
compensation expense, the incentive fee, depregiatid amortization (related to targeted investsérdt are structured as debt to the extent
that we foreclose on any properties underlyingtatget investments), any unrealized gains, lossether non-cash items that are included in
net income (loss) for the applicable reporting paérregardless of whether such items are includedhier comprehensive income or loss, or
in net income (loss). The amount
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will be adjusted to exclude one-time events purst@ohanges in GAAP and certain other non-cashgesaafter discussions between our
Manager and our independent directors and aftawoappby a majority of our independent directors.

We believe that Core Earnings providesditenal measure of our core operating performdnceliminating the impact of certain non-
cash expenses and facilitating a comparison ofinancial results to those of other comparable canmgs with fewer or no non-cash charges
and comparison of our own operating results fromogleto period. Our management uses Core Earnmgfss way, and also uses Core
Earnings to compute the incentive fee due undeMamagement Agreement. We believe that our investtso use Core Earnings or a
comparable supplemental performance measure taaeahnd compare our performance and our peergasasiach, we believe that the
disclosure of Core Earnings is useful to our ineest

However, we caution that Core Earnings duesepresent cash generated from operating iesivih accordance with GAAP and sho
not be considered as an alternative to net incdéoss)((determined in accordance with GAAP), orratidation of our cash flow from
operating activities (determined in accordance WHAP), a measure of our liquidity, or an indicatiof funds available to fund our cash
needs, including our ability to make cash distiitmg. In addition, our methodology for calculati@gre Earnings may differ from the
methodologies employed by other companies to caledhe same or similar supplemental performana@suares, and accordingly, our
reported Core Earnings may not be comparable t€tie Earnings reported by other companies.

Our Core Earnings (loss) for the year eridedember 31, 2012 and for the period from Septerhpb2011 (Inception) to December 31,
2011 was approximately $621 thousand and $(163)stud, respectively, and $0.09 and $(8.56), relspdgtper weighted average share,
diluted. The table below provides a reconciliatidmet income (loss) to Core Earnings (loss) festhperiods:

For the Period from
September 1, 2011

For the Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
$ in thousands, except per share amoun Amount Per Share Amount Per Share
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 18 $ 0.0 $ (169 $ (8.5¢)
Add back: no-cash stoc-based compensatic 33¢ 0.0t — —
Add back: unrealized (gain) loss on derival 97 0.01 — —
Core Earnings (los¢ $ 621 $§ 0.0¢ $ (163 $ (8.5¢

DIVIDENDS

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock. U.S. federedme tax law generally requires that a
REIT annually distribute at least 90% of its RE#ikdble income, determined without regard to theudeon for dividends paid and excludi
net capital gains, and to the extent that it anpuhstributes less than 100% of its net taxabt@mme in any taxable year, and that it pay tax at
regular corporate rates on that undistributed portiWe intend to make regular quarterly distribagi¢o our stockholders in an amount equal
to or greater than our net taxable income, if antthé extent authorized by our board of directBefore we make any distributions, whether
for U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwisemust first meet both our operating requiremants debt service on our secured funding
facilities, other lending facilities, repurchaseements and other debt payable. If our cash dbaifar distribution is less than our net
taxable income, we could be required to sell aszet®rrow funds to make cash distributions or vayyrmake a portion of the required
distribution in the form of a taxable stock distrilon or distribution of debt securities.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We seek to manage our risks related tatdeéit quality of our assets, interest rates, gyj prepayment speeds and market value while,
at the same time, seeking to provide an opportuoigtockholders to realize attractive risk-adjdgteturns through ownership of our capital
stock. While we do not seek to avoid risk compigtele believe the risks can be quantified fromdristl experience and seek to actively
manage those risks, to earn sufficient compens#igustify taking those risks and to maintain ¢apievels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We expect to be subject to varying degodesedit risk in connection with holding a porifiobf our target investments. We will have
exposure to credit risk on our CRE loans and dirget investments. Our Manager will seek to martagdit risk by performing credit
fundamental analysis of potential collateral assetsdit risk will also be addressed through ounbtger's on-going review. Our investment
guidelines do not limit the amount of our equitgttimay be invested in any type of our target inwestts. Our investment decisions will
depend on prevailing market conditions and may ghaver time in response to opportunities avail@blifferent interest rate, economic
and credit environments. As a result, we canndipt¢he percentage of our equity that will be istesl in any individual target investment at
any given time.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rates are highly sensitive to miaeyors, including fiscal and monetary policiesl @omestic and international economic and
political considerations, as well as other factmegond our control. We will be subject to intenege risk in connection with our assets and
our related financing obligations. In general, wpext to finance the origination or acquisitioroof target investments through financings in
the form of borrowings under warehouse facilitiesnk credit facilities (including term loans anélakving facilities), resecuritizations,
securitizations and repurchase agreements. We nimata interest rate risk through utilization afdging instruments, primarily interest rate
swap agreements. Interest rate swap agreemeriteemded to serve as a hedge against future interesincreases on our borrowings. For
many of our investments, we may also seek to kind@texposure of our borrowers and sponsors todtftuctuations of interest rates through
their use of interest-rate caps and other intesgsthedging instruments.

We regularly measure our exposure to istae risk. We assess interest rate risk and geaoar interest rate exposure on an ongoing
basis by comparing our interest rate sensitivetass@ur interest rate sensitive liabilities. Bhsa that review, we determine whether or not
any hedging transactions are necessary to miteggiesure to changes in interest rates.

While hedging activities may mitigate oupesure to adverse fluctuations in interest ratedain hedging transactions that we may ¢
into in the future, such as interest rate swapeagests, may also limit our ability to participatetihe benefits of lower interest rates with
respect to our portfolio investments. In additittrere can be no assurance that we will be abl&dotvely hedge our interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Margin

Our operating results will depend in lapget on differences between the income earned pagsets and our cost of borrowing and
hedging activities. The cost of our borrowings gatig will be based on prevailing market interestiess. During a period of rising interest
rates, our borrowing costs generally will incre@@ewhile the yields earned on our leveraged fixa#-mortgage assets will remain static and
(b) in some cases, at a faster pace than the ygalaged on our leveraged floating rate mortgagetssshich could result in a decline in our
net interest spread and net interest margin.
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The severity of any such decline would aeben our asset/liability composition at the tinseagell as the magnitude and duration of the
interest rate increase and any applicable floodscaps. Further, an increase in short-term inteed¢ss could also have a negative impact on
the market value of our target investments. If ahthese events happen, we could experience aakecie net income or incur a net loss
during these periods, which could adversely affeetliquidity and results of operations.

Hedging techniques are partly based onnasduevels of prepayments of our target investméhfsepayments are slower or faster than
assumed, the life of the investment will be longeshorter, which would reduce the effectivenesanyf hedging strategies we may use and
may cause losses on such transactions. Hedgirtggitra involving the use of derivative securities lighly complex and may produce
volatile returns.

Interest Rate Cap and Floor Risk

We may originate or acquire floating ratertpage assets. These are assets in which theageggnay be subject to periodic and lifet
interest rate caps and floors, which limit the antday which the asset's interest yield may changiad any given period. However, our
borrowing costs pursuant to our financing agreesaray not be subject to similar restrictions or rhaye different floors and caps.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratgerest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseawithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our floating rate mortgagsets could effectively be limited by various capsddition, floating rate mortgage assets
may be subject to periodic payment caps that r@ssibme portion of the interest being deferred addied to the principal outstanding. This
could result in our receipt of less cash incomauch assets than we would need to pay the intevesbn our related borrowings. In additi
in the period of decreasing interest rates, ther@st rate yields on our floating rate mortgagetassould decrease, while the interest rate «
on our borrowings could be fixed at a higher flobinese factors could lower our net interest incomeause a net loss during periods of ri:
interest rates, which would harm our financial déod, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We may fund a portion of our originationamquisition of mortgage loans with borrowings tha based on LIBOR, while the interest
rates on these assets may be indexed to LIBORathanindex rate, such as the one-year Constaniriaf reasury, or "CMT", index, the
Monthly Treasury Average, or "MTA", index or thethDistrict Cost of Funds Index, or "COFL." Accandly, any increase in LIBOR
relative to one-year CMT rates, MTA or COFI willrggally result in an increase in our borrowing sdbit may not be matched by a
corresponding increase in the interest earningbese assets. Any such interest rate index misntateld adversely affect our profitability,
which may negatively impact distributions to owdtholders. To mitigate interest rate mismatchesmay utilize the hedging strategies
discussed above.

Our analysis of risks is based on our Managexperience, estimates, models and assumplibase analyses rely on models which
utilize estimates of fair value and interest raesitivity. Actual economic conditions or implematibn of decisions by our management may
produce results that differ significantly from thstimates and assumptions used in our models asttbas in this annual report.

Extension Risk

Our Manager will compute the projected wdgl-average life of our assets based on assurspggarding the rate at which the
borrowers will prepay the mortgages. If prepaynrates decrease in a rising interest rate environntienlife of the fixed-rate assets could
extend beyond the term of the interest swap agreearether hedging instrument. This could havegative impact on our results from
operations, as borrowing costs would no longerxedfafter the end of the hedging instrument
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while the income earned on the fixed-rate assetdduemain fixed. In extreme situations, we maydyeed to sell assets to maintain
adequate liquidity, which could cause us to inogseEs.

Market Risk

Available-forsale investments will be reflected at their esteddgir value, with the difference between amodizest and estimated f:
value reflected in accumulated other compreheriss@me. The estimated fair value of these investmftuctuates primarily due to changes
in interest rates and other factors. Generally iising interest rate environment, the estimasédvialue of the fixed-rate securities would be
expected to decrease; conversely, in a decreasi@gest rate environment, the estimated fair vafube fixed-rate securities would be
expected to increase. As market volatility increaseliquidity decreases, the fair value of ourdstiments may be adversely impacted. If we
are unable to readily obtain independent pricingatiidate our estimated fair value of any availdolesale investment in our portfolio, the
fair value gains or losses recorded in other colmgmisive income may be adversely affected.

Real Estate Risk

Commercial mortgage assets are subjeatltdility and may be affected adversely by a nundfdactors, including, but not limited to,
national, regional and local economic conditionki@li may be adversely affected by industry slowdewand other factors); local real estate
conditions; changes or continued weakness in gpécdustry segments; construction quality, age design; demographic factors; and
retroactive changes to building or similar codesadidition, decreases in property values reducgahe of the collateral and the potential
proceeds available to a borrower to repay the Uyidgrioan or loans, as the case may be, whichccaldo cause us to suffer losses.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilitiasll be sensitive to interest rates. As a resatgrest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamg@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. In each case, in general, our activitieshatahce sheet are measured with reference taib@toost and/or fair market value without
considering inflation.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining BEIT qualification, we will seek to manage riskposure by closely monitoring our
portfolio and actively managing the financing, net& rate, credit, prepayment and convexity (a omeasf the sensitivity of the duration of a
debt investment to changes in interest rates) asksciated with holding a portfolio of our targetestments. Generally, with the guidance
and experience of our Manager:

. we will manage our portfolio through an interactpm@cess with Ares Management and service oursggfnated investments
through our Manager's servicer, which is a Stan&aRbor's ranked commercial primary servicer anchieeercial special
servicer that is included on Standard & Poor's @&ervicer List;

. we intend to engage in a variety of interest rminagement techniques that seek, on the onethamtigate the economic
effect of interest rate changes on the valuesraf,raturns on, some of our assets, and on the b#met help us achieve our ri
management objectives, including utilizing derivatfinancial instruments, such as puts and callsemurities or indices of
securities, interest rate swaps, interest rate, eequhange-traded derivatives, U.S. Treasury siesiroptions on U.S. Treasury
securities and interest rate floors to hedge adl portion of the interest rate risk associatedh Wit financing of our portfolio;
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. we intend to actively employ portfolio-wide and etsspecific risk measurement and management preséssur daily
operations, including utilizing our Manager's risknagement tools such as software and servicesédeor purchased from
third parties and proprietary analytical methodeetigped by Ares Management; and

. we will seek to manage credit risk through oue dliligence process prior to origination or actjs and through the use of
non-recourse financing, when and where availabieagpropriate. In addition, with respect to anytipatar target investment,
our Manager's investment team evaluates, among thtings, relative valuation, comparable analysigply and demand
trends, shape of yield curves, delinquency andultefates, recovery of various sectors and vintafgellateral.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia
See the Index to Consolidated Financiale®tants.

Item 9. Changes In And Disagreements With Accoudants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls And Procedures

The Company's management, with the pasgtimp of the Company's Chief Executive Officer &tdef Financial Officer, has evaluated
the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure otsnéind procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15@)L&d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of
the end of the period covered by this report. Bageth such evaluation, the Company's Chief Exeeuifficer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and proesiurere effective, as of December 31, 2012, toigeoassurance that information that is
required to be disclosed by the Company in thertsgbat it files or submits under the Exchange i8eecorded, processed, summarized, and
reported, within the time periods specified by 8C's rules and forms. Disclosure controls andgmfores include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure ttaniattion required to be disclosed by the Compartiigérreports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and commigida the Company's management, including itsf@hiecutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, or persons performing similanétions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioggarding required disclosure.

There have been no changes in our inteoratol over financial reporting (as defined in 8ull3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange
Act) during our most recently completed fiscal dagrthat have materially affected, or are reashridtely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include a repbmanagement's assessment regarding internabtoner financial reporting or an
attestation report of the Company's registeredipagicounting firm due to a transition period eBshied by the rules of the SEC for newly
public companies.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this item vl contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eétegnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item vl contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eétegnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information required by this item vl contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eéStegnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this item vl contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eéStegnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item vk contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eéStegnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.
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Iltem 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as pdirthis annual report:

1.

2.

Financial Statements—See the Index to Consolidaiteghcial Statements on Page F-1.

Financial Statement Schedules—None. We have onfittadcial statement schedules because they aneqoired or are not
applicable, or the required information is showrha financial statements or notes to the finarst@lements.

Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
3.1* Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Ares CorciakeReal Estate Corporation(

3.2" Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ares Commercial Rstlte Corporation(:

4.1" Indenture dated as of December 19, 2012, betwees Bommercial Real Estate
Corporation and U.S. Bank National AssociationT asstee(2]

4.2° Form of 7.000% Convertible Senior Note Due 2016l(ided as part of Exhibit 4.1)(

10.7* Master Loan and Security Agreement, dated as oédéer 8, 2011, between ACRC
Lender C LLC, as borrower, and Citibank, N.A., @sder(3)

10.2° Custodial Agreement, dated as of December 8, Afdityeen ACRC Lender C LLC, as
borrower, Citibank, N.A., as lender, and U.S. Balgtional Association, as custodian

10.2" Deposit Account Control Agreement, dated as of Drewer 8, 2011, between ACRC
Lender C LLC, Citibank, N.A., as lender, and Baffldmerica, N.A., as bank(:

*

10.£" Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of Dece&)t2011, by ACRC Lender LLC,

as pledgor, for the benefit of Citibank, N.A., aader(3)

10.5* First Amendment to Master Loan and Security Agresnated as of April 16, 2012,
between ACRC Lender C LLC, as borrower, and Citip@hA., as lender(4

10.€* Amended and Restated Note, dated as of April 162 20etween ACRC Lender C LLC,
as borrower, for the benefit of Citibank, N.A.,lesder(4)

10.7° Substitute Guaranty Agreement, dated as of Map122by Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation, as guarantor, in favor of @itikh N.A., as lender(t

*

10.8 Master Repurchase and Securities Contract, datefilscember 14, 2011, between
ACRC Lender W LLC, as seller, and Wells Fargo Baxitional Association, as buyer

(3)

10.¢" Custodial Agreement, dated as of December 14, 28tiyeen ACRC Lender W LLC,
seller, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatembuyer and custodian(

10.1¢"* Controlled Account Agreement (Waterfall Accountited as of December 14, 2011,
between ACRC Lender W LLC, as debtor, and Wellggg&8ank, National Association,
as secured party and depository ban

10.17° Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 14, 201ACIRC Lender LLC, as pledgor,
favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationsasured party(z
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.12*

10.15

10.14

10.1%*

10.1€°

10.17

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2¢

10.27
10.27"
10.27

10.24

14.1
21.1°
23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

Amendment No. 1 to the Master Repurchase and Siesutiontract, dated as of May .
2012, among ACRC Lender W LLC, as seller, ACRC litald LLC, as original
guarantor, Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatismew guarantor and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as buyer

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2012,rbg S8ommercial Real Estate
Corporation, as guarantor, in favor of Wells FaBgamk, National Association, as bank

(8)
Amendment No. 1 to Guarantee Agreement dated eféeas of June 29, 2012, between

Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporation, as guaramd Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as beneficiary, and acknowledged bR&Q ender W LLC, as seller(!

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 25, 20dd&tween Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation and Ares Investments Holding€(3)

Management Agreement, dated April 25, 2012, betwees Commercial Real Estate
Management LLC and Ares Commercial Real Estate @atpn(5)

Trademark License Agreement, dated April 25, 2@E2ween Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation and Ares Management LL(

Master Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, datedyM8, 2012, among ACRC Lender
One LLC, as borrower, Ares Commercial Real Estatgp@ration, as guarantor, and
Capital One, National Association, as lende

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2012, msAZommercial Real Estate
Corporation, as guarantor, for the benefit of Gdfitne, National Association, as lender

(8)

First Amendment to Master Revolving Line of Crdditan Agreement, dated
September 27, 2012, between and among ACRC LendetOC, as borrower, Ares
Commercial Real Estate Corporation, as guaranbor Gapital One, National
Association, as lender(!

2012 Equity Incentive Plan(:
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement
Form of Indemnification Agreement with directorslarertain officers(5

Form of Indemnification Agreement with memberstod tnvestment Committee and/or
Underwriting Committee of Ares Commercial Real Esfddlanagement LLC(E

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of Ares ComialdReal Estate Corporatic
Subsidiaries of Ares Commercial Real Estate Cotjporél0)
Consent of Ernst & Young LL

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a),
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 18d{a), a
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seefiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002



101.INS

XBRL Instance Documet
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

101.SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Previously filed

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3.1,&@ 10.1, as applicable, to the Company's Forn{Bl8No. 333181077),
filed on May 1, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and ds2applicable to the Company's Form 8-K (File N31-85517), filed
on December 19, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.8, 10110112, 10.15, 10.18, 10.21, 10.22 and 10.25, akcapfe, to the
Company's Registration Statement on Amendment NoFbrm S-11 (File No. 333-176841), filed on Agdrit, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.9 40d .7, as applicable, to the Company's Registr&tatement on
Amendment No. 5 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-1768{ile¢d on April 20, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1, 10®3,110.4, 10.5 and 10.6, as applicable to the Gmyip Form 8-K
(File No. 001-35517), filed on May 4, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to tleenPany's Form 10-Q for the period ending June B02ZFile
No. 001-35517), filed on August 14, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.4h® Company's Registration Statement on Amendmen8ib Form S-11
(File No. 333-176841), filed on April 12, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1, 10@®3knd 10.4 as applicable to the Company's Fokh{Bie No. 001-
35517), filed on May 24, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 10-Q for the period ending Septembe312 (File
No. 001-35517), filed on November 7, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.the Company's Registration Statement on Amendmen2ib Form S-11
(File No. 33:-176841), filed on March 21, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ACesnmercial Real Estate Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Ares Commercial Real Estaigo@adion as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, and the related consolidated stateménfseoations, stockholders' equity, and cash fltavéhe year ended December 31, 2012
the period from September 1, 2011 (Inception) toddeber 31, 2011. These financial statements anefiponsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dmdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. We were not engaged tfiope an audit of the Company's internal contratiofinancial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control overafiicial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Companyésnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the acaayptinciples used and significant estimates mad@&nagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the consolidated financial
position of Ares Commercial Real Estate CorporatibDecember 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consadlideseilts of its operations and its
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2012tengeriod from September 1, 2011 (Inception) éa@nber 31, 2011, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 1, 2013
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ARES COMMERICAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel $ 23,39( $ 1,24(
Restricted cas 3,21( —
Loans held for investmel 353,50( 4,94¢
Accrued interest receivab 1,74¢ 3
Deferred financing costs, n 5,16¢ 1,19¢
Other asset 84kt 20&

Total asset $ 387,85¢ $ 7,581

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Secured financing agreeme! $ 144,25¢ $ —
Convertible note 67,28¢ —
Derivative liability 1,82t —
Accounts payable and accrued expet 1,78¢ 328
Due to affiliate 1,32( 827
Dividends payabli 2,31¢ —
Other liabilities 3,62 —

Total liabilities 222,42: 1,15(

Commitments and contingencies (Note

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 50000Ganc
no shares authorized at December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively, no shares issugc
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and December :
2011 — —
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 450,000,0
and 100,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2(
and December 31, 2011, respectively, 9,267,16al
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 20

and December 31, 2011, respectiv 92 —
Additional paid in capita 169,20( 6,60(
Accumulated defici (3,859 (163)
Total stockholders' equit 165,43t 6,43
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 387,85¢ $ 7,587

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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ARES COMMERICAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES

Net interest margin:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the Period from

September 1, 2011
For the Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Interest incom $ 9,27¢ $ 3
Interest expense (from secured funding facilit (2,347) (39
Net interest margin (los: 6,93¢ (3€)
Expenses:
Other interest expen: 313 —
Management fees to affilia 1,66t —
Professional fee 1,19¢ 58
General and administrative expen 1,28t 69
General and administrative expenses reimbursed to
affiliate 1,61¢ —
Total expense 6,07¢ 127
Net income (loss 86C (163)
Less income (loss) attributable to Series A Corilvlert
Preferred Stock
Preferred dividend (102) —
Accretion of redemption premiu (572) —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholds ~ $ 18¢ $ (169
Net income (loss) per common shar¢
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common s $ 0.0: $ (8.5¢)
Weighted average number of common share
outstanding:
Basic weighted average shares of common stock
outstandinc¢ 6,532,701 19,05:
Diluted weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding 6,567,30! 19,05:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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ARES COMMERICAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Common Stock A(Ii(illit;ﬁir;al Accumulated StocL(r)\t(')alllders'
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity

Balance at September 1, 2011

(Inception) — $ — 3 — 9 — 3 —
Private issuance of common

stock — — 6,60( — 6,60(
Net loss — — — (169) (169
Balance at December 31, 20 — — 6,60( (163) 6,43
Authorized increase in shares

common stocl 330,00t 3 (©) — —
Private issuance of common

stock 1,170,001 12 23,38¢ — 23,40(
Proceeds from public offering «

common stocl 7,700,001 77 142,37: — 142,45(
Stoclk-based compensatic 67,16: — 33¢ — 33¢
Offering costs — — (3,49¢) — (3,496
Net income (loss) attributable

common stockholdel — — — 18¢€ 18€
Dividends declared ($0.67 per

share)(1 — — — (3,877) (3,877)

Balance at December 31, 20 9,267,16; $ 92 $ 169,20 $ (3,854 $ 165,43

(1) See Note 11
See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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ARES COMMERICAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

For the Period
From September 1,
For the Year Ended 2011 (Inception) to
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Operating activities
Net income (loss $ 86C $ (163)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash
provided by operating activitie

Amortization of deferred financing cos 69¢ 3¢9
Accretion of deferred loan origination fees andts (400 —
Stock based compensati 33¢ —
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivativ 97 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Interest receivabl (1,749 (©)]
Other asset (615) (9
Due to affiliate 1,08¢ 231
Refundable deposi (150 20C
Accounts payable and accrued expet 1,77¢ 12¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 1,952 41¢
Investing activities
Issuance of and fundings on loans held for investi (351,87Y (5,055
Principal repayment of loans held for investm 18C —
Receipt of origination fee 3,54( 11C
Net cash used in investing activiti (348,15) (4,94
Financing activities
Proceeds from secured funding arrangem 278,35: —
Repayments of secured funding arrangem (134,09) —
Secured funding cos (2,329 (839)
Proceeds from unsecured convertible 69,00( —
Convertible notes issuance ca (2,749 —
Series A preferred divider (102 —
Proceeds from issuance of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock 5,72 —
Redemption of Series A Convertible Preferred S (6,295 —
Proceeds from issuance of common st 165,85( 6,60(
Payment of offering cos (3,449 —
Common dividend paymel (1,560 —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 368,35: 5,76
Change in cash and cash equival 22,15( 1,24(
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 1,24( —
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 23,39( $ 1,24(
Supplemental Informatior
Interest paid during the peric $ 1,25¢ $ —
Supplemental disclosure of honcash financing diivi
Dividends payabli $ 2,31¢ $ —
Accrued offering cost $ 244 % 59¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2012
(in thousands, except share and per share data, pemtages and as otherwise indicated)

1. ORGANIZATION

Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatiogdtber with our consolidated subsidiaries, the "Gany," "ACRE," "we," "us" and "our") i
a Maryland corporation that was incorporated ont&aper 1, 2011, and was initially funded and comredrinvestment operations on
December 9, 2011. The Company is focused primarilgriginating, investing in and managing middlerked commercial real estate
("CRE") loans and other CRE-related investmentsRE@ompleted the initial public offering (the "IP3f its common stock on May 1,
2012. The Company is externally managed by Aresr@ernial Real Estate Management LLC ("ACREM" or tdanager"), a Securities a
Exchange Commission registered investment advisgaavholly owned subsidiary of Ares Management La@lobal alternative asset
manager and also a Securities and Exchange Coromissiistered investment adviser.

The Company's target investments incluttansitional senior" mortgage loans, "stretch seémuwortgage loans, subordinate debt
mortgage loans such as B-notes and mezzanine doahsther select CRE debt and preferred equitysinvents. "Transitional senior"
mortgage loans provide strategic, flexible, shertrt financing solutions on transitional CRE middiarket assets that are the subject of a
business plan that is expected to enhance the vhlhe property. They are usually funded over tasehe borrower's business plan for the
property is executed, and have a lower initial l@value ratio as compared to "stretch senior"tgage loans, with the loan-to-value ratios
increasing as the loan is further funded over titBéretch senior" mortgage loans provide flexitbaé stop” financing on quality CRE
middle-market assets that are typically stabiliaedear-stabilized properties with healthy balasiteets and steady cash flows, with the
mortgage loans having higher leverage (and thusehifpan-tovalue ratios) than conventional mortgage loansaardypically fully funded ¢
closing and non-recourse to the borrower (as coetbtir conventional mortgage loans, which are ugdalll recourse to the borrower).

The Company intends to elect and qualifpédaxed as a real estate investment trust ("REiider the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the "Code"), commencing with the Copipaaxable year ended December 31, 2012. The Quyrgenerally will not be subje
to U.S. federal income taxes on the Company's R&téble income, determined without regard to theud#on for dividends paid and
excluding net capital gains, to the extent that@boenpany annually distributes all of its REIT talealmcome to stockholders and complies
with various other requirements as a REIT.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents have been prepared on the accrual baatxofinting in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAARTd includes the accounts of the Company and itdlyvbwned subsidiaries. The
consolidated financial statements reflect all amjiesnts and reclassifications that, in the opinibmanagement, are necessary for the fair
presentation of the Company's results of its operatand financial condition as of and for the pési presented. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include fundeposit with financial institutions.
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Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes escrow depositgafes, insurance, leasing outlays, capital exiperes, tenant security deposits, and payments
required under certain loan agreements. Thesewsiposits are held on behalf of the respectiveobmrs and are offset by escrow
liabilities included in other liabilities on the solidated balance sheets.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjus to concentrations of credit risk consigtarily of cash and cash equivalents and loans
held for investment. The Company places its cashcash equivalents with financial institutions aattimes, cash held may exceed the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or "FDI@Suired limit. The Company has exposure to creshton its CRE loans and other target
investments. The Company's Manager will seek toagarcredit risk by performing credit fundamentallgsis of potential collateral assets.

LoansHeld for | nvestment

The Company originates CRE debt and reletstiuments generally to be held for investmert @nmaturity. Loans that are held for
investment are carried at cost, net of unamortiaad fees and origination costs, unless the loemsl@emed impaired.

Impairment occurs when it is deemed probdiht the Company will not be able to collectaatiounts due according to the contractual
terms of the loan. If a loan is considered to bpdired, the Company will record an allowance taioedthe carrying value of the loan to the
present value of expected future cash flows distamliat the loan's contractual effective rate.

Each loan classified as held for investnigetvaluated for impairment on a periodic bas@ans are collateralized by real estate and as ¢
result, the extent and impact of any credit detation associated with the performance and/or vafuke underlying collateral property, as
well as the financial and operating capabilitylo# borrower could impact the expected amountsvedeind are therefore regularly
evaluated. The Company monitors performance afutsstment portfolio under the following methodojdd) borrower review, which
analyzes the borrower's ability to execute oniitgioal business plan, reviews its financial coiudit assesses pending litigation and consi
its general level of responsiveness and cooperda@reconomic review, which considers underlyingateral, (i.e. leasing performance, unit
sales and cash flow of the collateral and its hiti cover debt service as well as the residuah loalance at maturity); (3) property review,
which considers current environmental risks, chanigensurance costs or coverage, current sitbilitgi capital expenditures and market
perception; and (4) market review, which analybesdollateral from a supply and demand perspectiwimilar property types, as well as
from a capital markets perspective. Such impairnaeatyses are completed and reviewed by asset mareag and finance personnel who
utilize various data sources, including periodi@ficial data such as property occupancy, tenafitgpn@ntal rates, operating expenses, and
the borrower's exit plan, among other factors.

In addition, we evaluate the entire poitfadb determine whether the portfolio has any impaints that require a general valuation
allowance on the remainder of the loan portfolis.gk December 31, 2012, there are no impairmente@@ompany's loan portfolio.

Underwriting Commissions and Offering Costs

Underwriting commissions and offering castaurred in connection with common stock offerirage reflected as a reduction of
additional paid-in capital. Costs incurred that moé directly associated with the completion obanenon stock offering are expensed.
Underwriting commissions that are the
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responsibility of and paid by a related party, sastour Company's Manager, are reflected as ailootiom of additional paid in capital from
sponsor in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Interest income is accrued based on thetanding principal amount and the contractual tesheach loan. Origination fees, contractual
exit fees and direct loan origination costs are atsognized in interest income over the initi@riderm as a yield adjustment using the
effective interest method.

Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs are capitalized amortized over the terms of the respective deditument.
Fair Value Measurements

The Company determines the estimated &direvof financial assets and liabilities using tifvee-tier fair value hierarchy established by
GAAP, which prioritizes the inputs used in measgifiair value. GAAP establishes market-based orwasde inputs as the preferred source
of values, followed by valuation models using maagnt assumptions in the absence of market inphésonly financial instruments
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis inGbenpany's consolidated financial statements aligatare instruments. The Company has not
elected the fair value option for the remainingfinial instruments, including loans held for invesit, secured funding agreements and ¢
debt instruments. Such financial instruments argazhat cost. Fair value is separately discloseg (Note 9). The three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value are as follows:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active marketsifi@ntical assets or liabilities.

Level 2—Prices are determined using otiggriicant observable inputs. Observable inputsiapats that other market
participants would use in pricing a security. Thesgy include quoted prices for similar securitiatgrest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk and others.

Level 3—Prices are determined using sigaift unobservable inputs. In situations where gupt&es or observable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment at the endhef period), unobservable inputs may
be used.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company recognizes the cost of stoskd@ompensation and payment transactions usirgathe expense category as would be
charged for payments in cash. The fair value ofd#istricted stock or restricted stock units granse@corded to expense on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period for the award, witlofisetting increase in stockholders' equity. §i@nts to directors and officers, the fair ve
is determined based upon the market price of thekgin the grant date.

Earnings per Share

The Company calculates basic earnings)(feessshare by dividing net income (loss) allocableommon stockholders for the period by
the weighted-average shares of common stock odisigufor that period after consideration of thensiags (loss) allocated to the Company's
restricted stock and restricted stock units, whaidh participating securities as defined in GAAHuf2d earnings (loss) per share takes into
effect any dilutive instruments, such as restrictiedtk and restricted stock units and convertileletdexcept when doing so would be anti-
dilutive.
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Derivative Financial | nstruments

The Company does not hold or issue dexigdtistruments for trading purposes. The Compaoggeizes derivatives on its balance
sheet, measures them at their estimated fair weding Level 11l inputs under an option pricing mbeded recognizes changes in their
estimated fair value in the Company's results @frations for the period in which the change occOrsDecember 19, 2012, the Company
issued $69.0 million aggregate principal amouniregecured 7.000% Convertible Senior Notes due RB#5'2015 Convertible Notes"). The
conversion features of the 2015 Convertible Notesdaemed to be an embedded derivative under Aticgudtandards Codification ("ASC
Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815")aktcordance with ASC 815, the Company is requirdaftocate the embedded derivative
related to the conversion features of the 2015 €dilte Notes. The Company will recognize the endegbderivative as a liability on its
balance sheet, measure it at its estimated failevahd recognize changes in its estimated fairvialthe Company's results of operations for
the period in which the change occurs.

Income Taxes

The Company intends to elect and qualifitéaxation as a REIT. As a result of the Compaayfsected REIT qualification and its
distribution policy, the Company does not generalipect to pay U.S. federal corporate level inceamxes. Many of the REIT requirements,
however, are highly technical and complex. To duals a REIT, the Company must meet a number afrorgtional and operational
requirements, including a requirement that the Camgpdistribute annually at least 90% of the Com[{mR¥EIT taxable income to the
Company's stockholders. If the Company has prelyausalified as a REIT and fails to qualify as alREh any subsequent taxable year and
does not qualify for certain statutory relief prmions, the Company will be subject to U.S. fedaral state income taxes at regular corporate
rates (including any applicable alternative minimiax) and may be precluded from qualifying as aRier the Company's four subsequent
taxable years. Even if the Company qualifies faatimn as a REIT, the Company may be subject tmitet).S. federal, state, local and
foreign taxes on the Company's income and progertiyto U.S. federal income and excise taxes o€tmpany's undistributed REIT taxa
income.

ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threslaold measurement attribute for the financial statgmexognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmetASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognititassification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and fiteors The Company has analyzed its various fedandl state filing positions and believes
that its income tax filing positions and deductians well documented and supported. As of Dece®be?012, the Company has not
recorded a reserve for any uncertain income taiipos; therefore, there has been no interest nalpies incurred to date.

Use of Estimatesin the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with GAAP requires management to makéresges and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actwsailtcould differ from those estimates. Significestimates include the valuation of
derivatives.

Segment Reporting

For the year ended December 31, 2012, tmep@ny operated in one business segment. The Conigpprimarily engaged in
originating, investing in and managing commerciakigage loans and other CRE related debt invessnent
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3. LOANS HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As of December 31, 2012, the Company hgnated or coariginated 15 loans secured by CRE middle markapenties. The aggregi
originated commitment under these loans at clogiag approximately $405.7 million, of which $356n7atal principal remained outstandi

as of December 31,

2012. For the year ended Deaediih@012, the Company had funded approximatebi $Bmillion and received

repayments of $180 thousand on its net $405.7anilhf commitments at closing as described in metaiblin the tables below. Such
investments are referred to herein as the Compagstment portfolio. The following tables presantoverview of the Company's current
investment portfolio, based on information avaiéaht of December 31, 2012. References to LIBORoaB8-day LIBOR (unless otherwise

specifically stated).

(amountsin millions, except percentages)

Total Carrying Unleveragec Paymeni
Commitment  Outstanding LIBOR
Amount Interest Effective Maturity Terms
Loan Type Location (at closing) Principal (1) Rate Floor Yield(2) Date(3) (4)
Transitional
Senior
Mortgage
Loans
Apartment  Brandon, $ 49¢€ $ 432§  42.45) L+4.80% 0.£% 5.€% Jan 201 110
FL
Office Austin, TX 38.C 30.¢ 30.t L+5.75%: 1.(% 7.5% Mar 201¢ 110
L+5.25%(6)
Apartment  New York, 36.1 30.¢ 30.5 L+5.00% 0.6% 6.1% Oct 201" 1/10
NY
Office Cincinnati, 35.t 26.¢ 26.7 L+5.35%(7) 0.2% 6.C% Nov 201*¢ 1/0
OH
Apartment  New York, 26.2 22.7 22.F L+5.75%: 0.2% 6.5% Dec 201! 1/10
NY L+5.00%(8)
Apartment  New York, 21.¢ 18.2 18.¢ L+5.75%: 0.2% 6.5% Dec 201! 1/10
NY L+5.00%(8)
Apartment  New York, 21.€ 18.€ 18.¢ L+5.75%: 0.2% 6.5% Dec 201! 110
NY L+5.00%(8)
Apartment  Avondale, 22.1 20.€ 20.4 L+4.25% 1.C% 5.8% Sep 201 110
AZ
Office Denver, 11.C 8.2 8.2 L+5.50% 1.(% 7.2% Jan 201 110
Cco
Stretch Senior
Mortgage
Loans
Office Miami, FL 47.C 47.C 46.€(5) L+5.25% 1.(% 6.€% Oct 201! 110
Office Boston, 35.C 34.¢ 34.¢ L+5.65% 0.7% 6.€% Mar 201t P&l
MA
Apartment  Arlington, 13.£ 13.£ 13.2 L+5.15% 0.2% 6.1% Dec 201 110
VA
Subordinated
Debt
Investments
Apartment  Rocklin, 18.7 18.7(9) 18.t L+6.40%(10) 1.(% 10.(% Dec 201 110
CA
Office Fort 15.((11) 8.C 7.6  L+10.75% 0.6% 12.1% Feb 201 110
Lauderdale (12)
FL L+8.18%
Office Atlanta, 142 142 14.2 10.50%(13) — 11.C% Aug 2017 110
GA
Total/Averag: $ 405.7 $ 356.1 $ 353t 7.4%
(1) The difference between the carrying amount andthstanding principal face amount of the loans f@ldnvestment consists of unamortized purchase
discount, deferred loan fees and loan originatiost
(2) Unleveraged Effective Yield is the compounded éiffecrate of return that would be earned over iieedf the investment based on the contractuatésterate
(adjusted for any deferred loan fees, costs, prenuudiscount) and assumes no dispositions, eaelygyments or defaults.
?3) The Boston and Arlington loans are subject to denbnth extension option. The Miami, Austin, Avoted@randon, Cincinnati, New York (the loans with a
Maturity Date of December 2015) and Fort Lauderdizd@s are subject to two 12-month extension opti@he Rocklin loan is subject to one 6-month
extension option.
4) P&I = principal and interest; I/O = interest only.
(5) The Carrying Amount of this loan is above 10%, leas than 20%, of total assets of the Company.
(6) The initial interest rate for this loan of L+5.7%¥&ps down based on performance hurdles to L+5.25%.
(7 The initial interest rate for this loan of L+5.3%ps down based on performance hurdles to L+5.00%.
(8) The initial rate for this loan of L+5.75% steps dobased on performance hurdles to L+5.00%.
9) This loan was cariginated with a third party using an A/B stru&uwith a cumulative interest rate of L + 4.10% arldBOR minimum rate ("LIBOR Floor"

of 1.00%. The fully funded -Note (held by a third party) has an interest réte ® 2.75% with no LIBOR Floor and the Company-Note receives the fu



(10

(11)

(12)

(13)

benefit of the LIBOR Floor on the full $50.5 millidoalance of the loan, which would result in artiest rate on the Company'd\®te of 9.10% if LIBOR wa
equal to 0.0% and 7.40% if LIBOR was equal to 1.04th the interest rate on the B-Note equal to 6.40% if LIBOR is greater than 1.0%.

The B-Note has an initial interest rate of L + 8#6ubject to a 1.00% LIBOR floor (with the benefitany difference between actual LIBOR and the LBBO
floor on the A-Note and B-Note accruing to the Bt&)o

The total commitment the Company co-originated av&87.0 million first mortgage, of which a $22.0limh A-Note was fully funded by Citibank, N.A. The
Company funded a $15.0 million B-Note.

This loan was co-originated with a third party gsan A/B structure, with a cumulative interest raté + 5.25% and a LIBOR floor of 0.75%. The fully
funded A-Note (held by a third party) has an inserate of L + 3.25% with the LIBOR Floor, resugfim an initial interest rate on the Company's BieNaf
L + 10.75% with the LIBOR Floor. As the Company disradditional proceeds on the B-Note, the inteestwill decrease and the fully funded B-Note
($15.0 million) will have an interest rate of LIBOR8.18% with the LIBOR Floor.

The interest rate for this loan increases to 1100%eptember 1, 2014.
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The Company's investments in mortgagedaants held for investment are accounted for at &imeat cost. The following tables
summarize the Company's loans held for investmeof ®ecember 31, 2012 and 2011

December 31, 201,

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Average Unleveraged Remaining
Carrying Outstanding Interest Effective Life*
$ in thousands Amount Principal Rate Yield (Years)
Senior mortgage loar $ 312,88 $ 315,75l 5.8% 6.8% 2.8
Subordinated and mezzanine
loans 40,61 41,00( 9.% 11.2% 2.4
Total $ 353,50( $ 356,75l 6.4% 7.4% 2.8
December 31, 201
Unleveraged Remaining
Carrying Outstanding Interest Effective Life*
Amount Principal Rate Yield (Years)
Senior mortgage loar $ 494t $ 5,05¢ 6.5% 6.6% 3.C
* Remaining life is calculated based on the renmginerm of the loan from the reporting date mdikig by the weighted

average loan balance divided by the total weightamtage loan balance for each type of loan heléthf@stment

For the year ended December 31, 2012,dtréitst in the Company's loan portfolio was as delis ($ in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 4,94t
Initial funding 347,77¢
Receipt of origination fee, net of co: (3,540
Additional funding 4,09¢
Amortizing payment: (180)
Origination fee accretio 40C
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 353,50!

No impairment charges have been recogrageaf December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
4, DEBT

Secured Funding Agreements

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201
Outstanding Total Outstanding Total
$ in thousands Balances Commitment Balances Commitment
Wells Fargo Facility $ 98,19¢ $ 172,50( $ — $  75,00(
Citibank Facility 13,90( 86,22t — 50,00(
Capital One Facility 32,16( 50,00( — —
Total $ 14425¢ $ 308,72! $ — $ 125,00(

The secured funding arrangements are giéneddlateralized by assignments of specific lo&esd for investment originated by the
Company. The secured funding arrangements are peachby the Company.
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Generally, the Company partially offseteemast rate risk by matching the interest indeloahs held for investments with the secured
funding agreement used to fund them.

Wells Fargo Facility

On December 14, 2011, the Company entertechi $75.0 million secured revolving funding fagikrranged by Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association (the "Wells Fargo Facilitypyrsuant to which the Company borrows funds torfieaqualifying senior commerci
mortgage loans and A-Notes, subject to availabllatesal. On May 22, 2012, the agreements goverttieg/Vells Fargo Facility were
amended to, among other things, increase thedotamitment under the Wells Fargo Facility from $78illion to $172.5 million. Advances
under the Wells Fargo Facility accrue interest p¢mannum rate equal to the sum of (i) 30 day LRB&us (ii) a pricing margin range of
2.50%-2.75%. On May 15, 2012, the Company stadeéddur a non-utilization fee of 25 basis pointstba average available balance of the
Wells Fargo Facility. For the year ended Decemiei2812, the Company incurred a natilization fee of $222 thousand. The initial matiy
date of the Wells Fargo Facility is December 14,£28nd, provided that certain conditions are mdtapplicable extension fees are paid, is
subject to two 12-month extension options. As of@&eber 31, 2012, the outstanding balance on thés\Watgo Facility was $98.2 million.

The Wells Fargo Facility contains varioffgrmative and negative covenants applicable toGoenpany and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries, including the following: (a) limitatis on the incurrence of additional indebtednedi®ios, (b) limitations on how borrowed
funds may be used, (c) limitations on certain dhstions and dividend payments, (d) maintenancadeiquate capital, (e) limitations on
change of control, (f) maintaining a ratio of tadalbt to total assets of not more than 75%, (ghtaaiing liquidity in an amount not less than
the greater of (1) 5% of the Company's tangiblewath or (2) $20.0 million, (h) maintaining a fikeharge coverage ratio (expressed as the
ratio of EBITDA to fixed charges) of at least 1661, and (i) maintaining a tangible net worth ofeast the sum of (1) $135.5 million, plus
(2) 80% of the net proceeds raised in all futureitygssuances by us. Effective June 29, 2012atireements governing the Wells Fargo
Facility were further amended to provide that thguired minimum fixed charge coverage ratio witspeet to the Company as guarantor will
start to be tested upon the earlier to occur off@)calendar quarter ending on June 30, 2013@riti€ first full calendar quarter following
the calendar quarter in which the Company repantsfis held for investment" in excess of $200.0ianilbon its quarterly consolidated
balance sheet. Since as of December 31, 2012 tmp&uvy reported "Loans held for investment" in ezaas$200.0 million, the Company
will be required to test the minimum fixed chargeerage ratio beginning with the quarter ended M&t, 2013. As of December 31, 2012,
the Company was in compliance in all material respwith the terms of the Wells Fargo Facility.

Citibank Facility

On December 8, 2011, the Company entettedhi$50.0 million secured revolving funding fagilarranged by Citibank, N.A. (the
"Citibank Facility") pursuant to which the Compalgrrows funds to finance qualifying senior commaranortgage loans and A-Notes,
subject to available collateral. On April 16, 2Crid May 1, 2012, the agreements governing thed@iki-acility were amended to, among
other things, increase the total commitment unlkeiQitibank Facility from $50.0 million to $86.2 lffon. Under the Citibank Facility, the
Company borrows funds on a revolving basis in trenfof individual loans. Each individual loan ieeed by an underlying loan originated
by the Company. Advances under the Citibank Fgdlitcrue interest at a per annum rate based on RIBGe margin can vary between
2.50% and 3.50% over the greater of LIBOR and 0a88ed on the debt yield of the assets contribntedACRC Lender C LLC, one of the
Company's wholly owned subsidiaries and the borraweer the Citibank Facility. On March 3, 2012 thompany started to incur a non-
utilization fee of 25 basis points on the averaggilable balance of the Citibank Facility. For the
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year ended December 31, 2012, the Company incarrexd-utilization fee of $133 thousand. The maturityedaf each individual loan is the
same as the maturity date of the underlying loah skcures such individual loan. The end of théeifugnperiod is December 8, 2013, and 1
be extended for an additional 12 months upon tlyenpat of the applicable extension fee and provittedl no event of default is then
occurring. As of December 31, 2012, the outstanBignce on the Citibank Facility was $13.9 million

The Citibank Facility contains various affative and negative covenants applicable to thegamy and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries, including the following: (a) maintiaig tangible net worth of at least the sum of (A%Bof the Company's tangible net worth as
of May 1, 2012, plus (2) 80% of the total net calpiised in all future equity issuances by the @any, (b) maintaining liquidity in an
amount not less than the greater of (1) $20.0 onilbr (2) 5% of the Company's tangible net wontha(cap on the Company's distribution
the greater of (1) 100% of the Company's taxabtémeeme, or (2) such amount as is necessary tataiaithe Company's status as a REIT,
and (d) if the Company's average debt yield adtesgortfolio of assets that are financed with@ibank Facility falls below certain
thresholds, the Company may be required to repagineamounts under the Citibank Facility. The I@itik Facility also prohibits the
Company from amending the management agreementtsithanager in a material respect without the peimnsent of the lender. As of
December 31, 2012, the Company was in complianedl material respects with the terms of the Citlb&acility.

Capital One Facility

On May 18, 2012, the Company entered irf8@0 million secured revolving funding facilityittv Capital One, National Association
(the "Capital One Facility"), pursuant to which tiempany borrows funds to finance qualifying semi@mmmercial mortgage loans, subject to
available collateral.

Under the Capital One Facility, the Comphnoyrows funds on a revolving basis in the fornindfividual loans evidenced by individual
notes. Each individual loan is secured by an ugteglloan originated by us. Amounts outstandingarrehch individual loan accrue interest
at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus a spregimg between 2.50% and 4.00%. The Company mayestdudividual loans under the
Capital One Facility through and including May 28,14, subject to successive 12-month extensiooptt the lender's discretion. The
maturity date of each individual loan is the saméh@ maturity date of the underlying loan thauses such individual loan. As of
December 31, 2012, the outstanding balance on &p&al One Facility was $32.2 million. The Compatoes not incur a non-utilization fee
under the terms of the Capital One Facility.

The Capital One Facility contains varioffgmative and negative covenants applicable toGloenpany and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries, including the following: (a) maintiaig a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of notrmthan 3.0 to 1, (b) maintaining a tangible
net worth of at least the sum of (1) 80% of the @any's tangible net worth as of May 1, 2012, pR)B0% of the net proceeds received f
all future equity issuances by the Company, (c)ntagiing a total liquidity in excess of the great&(1) 5% of the Company's tangible net
worth or (2) $20.0 million, and (d) maintainingiaefd charge coverage ratio (expressed as theobE®ITDA to fixed charges) of at least :
to 1. Effective September 27, 2012, the agreengmisrning the Capital One Facility were amendepravide that the required minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio with respect to the @amy as guarantor will start to be tested uporetiréer to occur of (a) the calendar quarter
ending on June 30, 2013 and (b) the first full cebr quarter following the calendar quarter in viattttee Company reports "Loans held for
investment" in excess of $200.0 million on the Camys quarterly consolidated balance sheet. Simcé Becember 31, 2012 the Company
reported "Loans held for investment” in excess2@G0 million, the Company will be required to tds minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio beginning with the quarter ended March 31,2®s of December 31,
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2012, the Company was in compliance in all mateaspects with the terms of the Capital One Facilit
2015 Convertible Notes

On December 19, 2012, the Company issu8d3$8illion aggregate principal amount of the 2@dnvertible Notes. Of this aggregate
principal amount, $60.5 million aggregate princigaiount of the 2015 Convertible Notes was soldhéoinitial purchasers (including
$9.0 million pursuant to the initial purchasersmexse in full of their overallotment option) an8.$ million aggregate principal amount of the
2015 Convertible Notes was sold directly to certdinectors, officers and other affiliates of then@many in a private placement. The 2015
Convertible Notes were issued pursuant to an Inolentlated December 19, 2012 (the "Indenture"yyéen the Company and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee. The sale of B62Convertible Notes generated net proceeds agbajppately $66.2 million. Aggregai
estimated offering expenses in connection withtthesaction, including the initial purchasers' disat of approximately $2.1 million, were
approximately $2.8 million. As of December 31, 20t carrying value of the 2015 Convertible Notes $67.3 million.

The 2015 Convertible Notes bear interest raite of 7.000% per year, payable semiannuallyrears on June 15 and December 15 of
each year, beginning on June 15, 2013. The estihedtective interest rate of the 2015 Convertibletdé$, which is equal to the stated rate of
7.000% plus the accretion of the original issueaisit and associated costs, was approximately thd¥%e year ended December 31, 2012.
As of December 31, 2012, the interest charged isrinHebtedness was $216 thousand. The 2015 Cdvleedotes will mature on
December 15, 2015 (the "Maturity Date"), unlessr/janesly converted or repurchased in accordance thilr terms. The 2015 Convertible
Notes are the Company's senior unsecured obligatind rank senior in right of payment to the Comgsaexisting and future indebtedn:
that is expressly subordinated in right of paynterthe 2015 Convertible Notes; equal in right ofmpant to the Company's existing and
future unsecured indebtedness that is not so sintaded; effectively junior in right of payment tayaof the Company's secured indebtedness
(including existing unsecured indebtedness thaCivapany later secures) to the extent of the valdke assets securing such indebtedness;
and structurally junior to all existing and futunelebtedness (including trade payables) incurrethbyCompany's subsidiaries, financing
vehicles or similar facilities.

Prior to the close of business on the lssirday immediately preceding June 15, 2015 hotdaysconvert their 2015 Convertible Notes
only under certain circumstances as set forthénldenture. On or after June 15, 2015 until tlhselof business on the scheduled tradinc
immediately preceding the Maturity Date, holdersyroanvert their 2015 Convertible Notes at any tikdpon conversion, the Company will
pay or deliver, as the case may be, at its electiash, shares of its common stock or a combinati@mash and shares of its common stock,
provided that the Company will not elect to usetlement method that results in it issuing moentth,853,432 shares of common stock |
to obtaining stockholder approval in accordancé wértain New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") requisstts. The conversion rate is
initially 53.6107 shares of common stock per $1,pfificipal amount of 2015 Convertible Notes (eglémato an initial conversion price of
approximately $18.65 per share of common stockg ddnversion rate will be subject to adjustmergdme events, including for regular
quarterly dividends in excess of $0.35 per sharewill not be adjusted for any accrued and unjatierest. In addition, if certain corporate
events occur prior to the Maturity Date, the cosia@r rate will be increased but will in no eventesd 61.6523 shares of common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of 2015 Convertible Notes.

The Company may not elect to issue sharesramon stock upon conversion of the 2015 ConblertNotes to the extent such election
would result in the issuance of 20% or more ofdbemon stock outstanding immediately prior to gmiance of the 2015 Convertible Notes
until the Company receives stockholder approvalssunances above this threshold. Until such stddieno
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approval is obtained, the Company may not shat&egbe full conversion option. As a result, thebemided conversion option does not
qualify for equity classification and instead ipamtely valued and accounted for as a derivaitiadlity. The initial value allocated to the
derivative liability was $1.7 million, which reprersts a discount to the debt to be amortized thrautlgér interest expense using the effective
interest method through the maturity of the 2015veotible Notes. The effective interest rate usedmortize the debt discount on the 2015
Convertible Notes is 9.4%. During each reportingqak the derivative liability is marked to fair ha@ through earnings. As of December 31,
2012, the derivative liability had a fair value®t.8 million. If the Company obtains stockholdepagval for the issuance of 20% or more of
the common stock outstanding immediately priohissuance of the 2015 Convertible Notes so thearsion option can be shasettled ir
full at the Company's option, the conversion optiway qualify for equity classification and the bifated derivative liability would no longer
need to be accounted for as a derivative on a pobise basis from the date of reassessment. Angiréng debt discount that arose at the
date of debt issuance from the original bifurcatioth continue to be amortized through other intgrexpense.

The Company does not have the right toeadihe 2015 Convertible Notes prior to the Matubite, except to the extent necessary to
preserve its qualification as a REIT for U.S. fedémcome tax purposes. No sinking fund is provifledhe 2015 Convertible Notes. In
addition, if the Company undergoes certain coroeaents that constitute a "fundamental change, htiders of the 2015 Convertible Notes
may require the Company to repurchase for casbr alart of their 2015 Convertible Notes at a repase price equal to 100% of the princ
amount of the 2015 Convertible Notes to be repusetiaplus accrued and unpaid interest to, but diad the fundamental change
repurchase date.

At December 31, 2012, approximate principaturities of the Company's secured funding agessnand the 2015 Convertible Notes
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Wells Fargo Citibank Capital One 2015 Convertible

Facility Facility Facility Notes

2013 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 =
2014 98,19¢ 9,49( — —
2015 — 4,41(C 14,42 69,00(
2016 — — — —
2017 — — 17,74 —
Thereafte! — — — —

$ 98,19 $ 13,90C $ 32,16( $ 69,00(
Weighted average effective re 2.8% 3.4% 3.1% 9.4%

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company has various commitments to famdstments in its portfolio as described below.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 311 2the Company had the following commitments tadfuarious stretch senior and
transitional senior mortgage loans, as well as slibated and mezzanine debt investments:

As of
$ in thousands December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Total commitment: $ 405,69 $ 11,00(
Less: funded commitmen (356,93() (5,055
Total unfunded commitmen $ 48,76 $ 5,94¢
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The Company from time to time may be péatiitigation relating to claims arising in the maal course of business. As of December 31,
2012, the Company is not aware of any legal claims.

6. SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On February 8, 2012, the Company's boadirettors adopted resolutions classifying andglesting 600 shares of authorized preferred
stock as shares of Series A Convertible PrefertedkSpar value $0.01 per share ("Series A PrefleBteck"). Holders of shares of Series A
Preferred Stock were entitled to receive, whenamduthorized by the Company's board of directotdsdeclared by us out of funds legally
available for that purpose, dividends at the PiangaDividend Rate, compounded quarterly. The "Rifvg Dividend Rate" means
(a) beginning on the issue date through and incty@iecember 31, 2012, 10% per annum, (b) beginminganuary 1, 2013 through and
including December 31, 2013, 11% per annum, (c)nmégg on January 1, 2014 through and includingddelger 31, 2014, 12% per annum,
and (d) beginning on January 1, 2015 and theredf88% per annum; provided, however, that the PliegaDividend Rate may decrease by
certain specified amounts if the Company achievesrtain coverage ratio.

Shares of Series A Preferred Stock wereaetble by the Company at any time, in whole gairt, beginning on September 30, 2012,
at the applicable redemption price. Additionallyases of Series A Preferred Stock were redeemaltiie aption of the holder upon an IPC
the applicable redemption price. Holders of shafdhe Series A Preferred Stock exercised thismgdion in connection with the IPO.

During the year ended December 31, 20B2Cimpany issued 114.4578 shares of Series A RrdfStock for an aggregate subscrip
price of approximately $5.7 million, paid a cashidénd of $102 thousand, and recognized the aotrefi $572 thousand for the redemption
premium for a total balance of approximately $6iBiom. The redemption price for redeemed shareSeafes A Preferred Stock was equal to
(i) the sum of (a) the subscription price, (b) a@inidends per share added thereto pursuant tethestof the Series A Preferred Stock and
(c) any accrued and unpaid dividends per share(j)u amount equal to a percentage of the sijtgmn price of the Series A Preferred
Stock and 10%.

7. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

In December 2011, Ares Investments HoldingS ("Ares Investments"), an affiliate of ACREMotributed $6.6 million to the
Company in exchange for the Company's agreemesitdotively issue 330,000 shares of the Compamyisncon stock upon an increase in
the authorized number of shares of the Companysman stock. Although there were no shares of thegamy's common stock issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2011, the accompg@myinsolidated financial statements assume thesesof common stock were issued
to Ares Investments during the period ended Decedibe2011 for the purposes of additional paidapital, accumulated deficit, total
stockholders' equity and earnings per share.

On January 25, 2012, the Company entettedaisubscription agreement with Ares Investmenit®reby Ares Investments agreed to
purchase 400,000 shares of the Company's commok fstioa total purchase price of $8.0 million, afiéving effect to the reverse stock split
on February 22, 2012.

On February 6, 2012, the Company enteredarsubscription agreement with Ares Investmemlgereby Ares Investments agreed to
purchase 770,000 shares of the Company's commok fstoa total purchase price of $15.4 millioneafgiving effect to the reverse stock
split on February 22, 2012.

On February 8, 2012, the charter of the gamy was amended and restated to increase the nofrdagthorized shares of the Compai
common stock and preferred stock to 95,000,000650@0,000 shares, respectively. The par value redaat $0.01 per share.

F-17




Table of Contents

On February 22, 2012, the Company's bohdirectors and Ares Investments approved a onéworreverse stock split whereby every
two shares of common stock that were issued arefanding immediately prior to this date were chahnigéo one issued and outstanding
share of the Company's common stock.

On April 23, 2012, the charter of the Comparas amended to increase the number of authostzats of common stock and preferred
stock of the Company to 450,000,000 and 50,000sb@@es, respectively. The par value remained atlg8er share.

On May 1, 2012, the Company completedRtd bf 7,700,000 shares of its common stock at@mi $18.50 per share, raising
approximately $142.5 million in gross proceeds. Tihderwriting commissions of approximately $5.3limil are reflected as a reduction of
additional paid-in capital on the consolidatedestant of stockholders' equity. Under the undemgitigreement, the Company's Manager
was responsible for and paid directly the undemgitommissions. Because the Manager is a relagdy, the payment of underwriting
commission of approximately $5.3 million by the Quamy's Manager is reflected as a contribution dftazhal paid-in capital on the
consolidated statement of stockholders' equityceoedance with GAAP. The Company incurred approxéiye$3.5 million of expenses in
connection with the IPO, which is reflected asdudion in additional paiih capital. The net proceeds to the Company totafgmoximately
$139.0 million. The Company used approximately $4idillion of the net proceeds of the IPO to repagstanding amounts under the Wells
Fargo Facility and the Citibank Facility and approately $6.3 million to redeem all of its issuedsts of Series A Preferred Stock. The
balance was used for general corporate workingagmirposes and to make investments in the Compéanget investments.

Equity Incentive Plan

On April 23, 2012, the Company adopted guitg incentive plan (the "2012 Equity IncentiveaRl). Pursuant to the 2012 Equity
Incentive Plan, the Company may grant awards ctingisf restricted shares of the Company's comntocks restricted stock units and/or
other equity-based awards to the Company's outkidetors, the Company's Chief Financial OfficeGREM and other eligible awardees
under the plan, subject to an aggregate limitadifo®0,000 shares of common stock (7.5% of theeidsand outstanding shares of the
Company's common stock immediately after givin@etfto the issuance of the shares sold in the IR@).restricted shares of the Compal
common stock and restricted stock units will becacted for under ASC 718, Stock Compensation, tieguin share-based compensation
expense equal to the grant date fair value of titerlying restricted shares of common stock orritst] stock units.

On May 1, 2012, in connection with the IR Company granted 5,000 restricted shares ofrmmstock to each of the Company's
independent directors. In addition, on June 182204r. Rosen, an outside director, was granted(r86tricted shares of common stock a
award granted pursuant to the 2012 Equity Inceriie@. These awards of 5,000 restricted sharegatdtly on a quarterly basis over a three
year period beginning on July 1, 2012. In additmmMay 1, 2012, each of the Company's five inddpahdirectors were grant:
approximately 2,027 restricted shares of commocksas 2012 annual compensation awards grantedgnirsuthe 2012 Equity Incentive
Plan. On June 18, 2012, Mr. Rosen was also grah@ay restricted shares of common stock as a 20d@ah compensation award granted
pursuant to the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. Thesards of 2,027 restricted shares in respect of andivectors' fees vest ratably on a
quarterly basis over a one year period beginninguy 1, 2012. As of December 31, 2012, 4,998 shaf¢he total 30,000 restricted share
common stock granted to Mr. Rosen and the Compéing'sndependent directors, as initial grantsamigection with the IPO have vested.
of December 31, 2012, 6,084 shares of the totdleP2restricted shares of common stock granted tdRdsen and the Company's five
independent directors in respect of 2012 annuabpemsation have vested.
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On July 9, 2012, in connection with his @ijppment as Chief Financial Officer of the Compahge-Sik Yoon was granted 25,000
restricted shares of the Company's common stoek @svard granted pursuant to the 2012 Equity Imeemlan. These shares of restricted
stock vest ratably on a quarterly basis over a-f@ar period that began on October 1, 2012, subjentrtain conditions. As of December 31,
2012, 1,564 shares of the total 25,000 restridbagles of the Company's common stock granted torlBlon have vested.

Schedule of Non-Vested Share and Share Equivalents

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Grants—Directors Grants—Officer Total
Balance as of December 31, 2I — — —
Grantec 42,16: 25,00( 67,16
Vested (11,08:) (1,569 (12,64
Forfeited — — —
Balance as of December 31, 2! 31,08( 23,43t 54,51¢
Vesting Schedule
Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Grants—Directors Grants—Officer Total
2012 11,08: 1,56¢ 12,64¢
2013 16,08( 6,25 22,33(
2014 10,00z 6,25(  16,25:
2015 4,99¢ 6,25( 11,24¢
2016 — 4,68¢ 4,68¢
Total 42,16: 25,000 67,16:

The following table summarizes the comp&oraexpense included in general and administraimenses, the total fair value of shares
vested and the aggregate grant date fair valueeofestricted stock granted to the directors afidest of the Company (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 201

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Grants—Directors Grants—Officer Total
Compensation expense included
general and administrative
expense. $ 28t % 53 $ 33¢
Total fair value of shares vested 182 26 20¢
Aggregate grant date fair val 75€ 427

(1) Based on the closing price of the Company's comstack on the NYSE on each vesting d

As of December 31, 2012, the total compgmsa&ost related to non-vested awards not yetgeieed totaled $20 thousand and the
weighted-average period over which the non-vestettds are expected to be recognized is 2.57 years.
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8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following information sets forth thensputations of basic and diluted earnings (loss)cpaemmon share for the year ended
December 31, 2012 and for the period from Septerhp2011 (Inception) to December 31, 2011:

For the Period From
September 1, 2011

For the Year Ended (Inception) to

$ in thousands (except share and per share dat December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhac $ 18¢ $ (169)
Divided by:
Basic weighted average shares of common stock

outstanding 6,532,701 19,05:
Diluted weighted average shares of common stock

outstanding 6,567,30! 19,05:
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common sl $ 0.0 $ (8.5¢)

The Company has considered the impacteof@15 Convertible Notes and the restricted shawmediluted earnings per common share.
The number of shares of common stock that the Zidrvertible Notes are convertible into were notuded in the computation of diluted
net income per common share because the inclusithho®e shares would have been anti-dilutive ferygar ended December 31, 2012.

9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company follows ASC 820-10, which exgmthe application of fair value accounting. AS©®-82 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in accordancthwvBAAP and expands disclosure of fair value mearsents. ASC 8200 determines fa
value to be the price that would be received fomaestment in a current sale, which assumes agrlgrttansaction between market
participants on the measurement date. The onindimhinstruments recorded at fair value on a néegrasis in the Company's consolidated
financial statements are derivative instrument& Thmpany has not elected the fair value optiotHeremaining financial instruments,
including loans held for investment, secured fugdigreements and other debt instruments. Suchdi@anstruments are carried at cost.
ASC 820-10 specifies a hierarchy of valuation téghes based on the inputs used in measuring faievin accordance with ASC 820-10,
these inputs are summarized in the three broadslésted below:

The three levels of inputs that may be ueadeasure fair value are as follows:
Level —Quoted prices in active marketsittentical assets or liabilities.

Level [I—Prices are determined using osiignificant observable inputs. Observable inpugsiaputs that other market participants
would use in pricing a security. These may inclgdeted prices for similar securities, interestsafgepayment speeds, credit risk and others

Level lll—Prices are determined using sfigant unobservable inputs. In situations wheretgdigrices or observable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment at the endhef period), unobservable inputs may be
used.

GAAP requires disclosure of fair value imf@mtion about financial instruments, whether ormegbgnized in the financial statements, for
which it is practical to estimate the value. Inesawhere quoted market prices are not availahlteydbues are based upon the application of
discount rates to estimated future cash flows usiagket yields, or other valuation methodologiesy Ahanges to the valuation methodology
will be reviewed by the Company's management torenthe changes are appropriate. The methods uag@mduce a fair value calculation
that is not indicative of net realizable value eflective of future fair values. Furthermore, white Company anticipates that the
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valuation methods are appropriate and consistehtather market participants, the use of diffemethodologies, or assumptions, to
determine the fair value of certain financial instents could result in a different estimate of failue at the reporting date. The Company
uses inputs that are current as of the measuratagntwhich may fall within periods of market disition, during which price transparency
may be reduced.

Financial Instruments reported at fair value

The Company has certain assets and liglsilihat are required to be recorded at fair vatlua recurring basis in accordance with GA
including derivative instruments. The Company did Imave any other financial instruments at Decemdtie2012 or December 31, 2011 that
were required to be carried at fair value. Theytag values of cash and cash equivalents, redfricish, interest receivable and accrued
expenses approximate their fair values due to #fwirt-term nature.

The following table summarizes the levelshie fair value hierarchy into which the Compatiiyiancial instruments were categorized as
of December 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Fair Value as of December 31, 201
Level | Level Il Level Il Total

Derivative instrument $ — 3 — $ 1,82t $ 1,82

The valuation of derivative instruments de¢ermined using widely accepted valuation tealesg including market yield analysis and
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected fasis of each derivative. This analysis reflects dontractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdevatarketbased inputs to the extent available, includingriegt rate curves, spot and ma
forward points.

The following table summarizes the sigmifit unobservable inputs the Company used to vhkiddrivative liability categorized within
Level 3 as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands).t@blke is not intended to be all-inclusive, but@&asl captures the significant unobservable
inputs relevant to the Company's determinatioraofffalues (in thousands).

Unobservable Input

Fair Primary Weighted
Asset Category Value Valuation Technique Input Range Average
Derivative liability $ 1,82F Option Pricing Mode Volatility 16.4%- 17.4% 16.42%

Changes in market yields, discount rateSBITDA multiples, each in isolation, may change fthir value of the derivative liability.
Generally, an increase in market yields or discoatgs or decrease in EBITDA multiples may resuli idecrease in the fair value of the
derivative liability.

Due to the inherent uncertainty of deteimarthe fair value of derivative liabilities thab chot have a readily available market value, the
fair value of the Company's derivative liability ynuctuate from period to period. Additionally gliair value of the Company's derivative
liability may differ significantly from the valuakat would have been used had a ready market dXistesuch derivative liability.
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The changes in derivative instruments diassas Level Il are as follows for the year edd@ecember 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Derivative

Instruments
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ —
Written option sold specific to the convertible teffering (1,729
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivativ (97)
Ending balance, as of December 31, 2 $ (1,82

The following table presents the carryiues and fair values of the Company's financis¢tssand liabilities recorded at cost as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011. Changes in marketsyietddit quality and other variables may changefdir value of the Company's assets
and liabilities. All financial assets and liabidi recorded at cost are considered Level lll fir@mmestruments (in thousands).

As of As of
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
Financial Instruments not recorded at fair va
Loans held for investmel $ 353,50( $ 353,500 $ 4,945 $ 4,94¢
Financial Liabilities:
Secured financing agreeme 144,25t 144,25t — —
Convertible note 67,28¢ 67,28¢ — —

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreements

The Company was party to an interim managgragreement with ACREM prior to the IPO. Pursdarihe interim management
agreement, ACREM provided investment advisory aadagement services to the Company on an interiis basl the IPO. For providing
these services, ACREM received only reimbursemfeots the Company for any third party costs that AZBRincurred on behalf of the
Company.

On April 25, 2012, in connection with ther@pany's IPO, the Company entered into a managesges¢ment (the "Management
Agreement") with ACREM under which ACREM, subjeatthe supervision and oversight of the Companysdof directors, will be
responsible for, among other duties, (a) perfornaithgf the Company's day-to-day functions, (b)etetining the Company's investment
strategy and guidelines in conjunction with the @amy's board of directors, (c) sourcing, analyznd executing investments, asset sales
and financing and (d) performing portfolio managatrduties.

In addition, ACREM will have an Investmédmmittee that will oversee compliance with the @amy's investment strategy and
guidelines, investment portfolio holdings and finengy strategy.

Effective May 1, 2012, in exchange forsésvices, ACREM is entitled to receive a base mamant fee, an incentive fee, expense
reimbursements, grants of equity-based awards potsa the Company's 2012 Equity Incentive Planatermination fee, if applicable, as
set forth below.

The base management fee is equal to 1.8#edfompany's stockholders' equity per annum ataliated and payable quarterly in
arrears in cash. For purposes of calculating theagement fee, stockholders' equity means: (a)uhreds (i) the net proceeds from all
issuances of the Company's equity securities $imoption (allocated on a pro rata daily basissioeh issuances during the fiscal
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guarter of any such issuance), plus (ii) the Comjsaretained earnings at the end of the most rceninpleted fiscal quarter determined in
accordance with GAAP (without taking into accouny @on-cash equity compensation expense incurredritent or prior periods); less

(b) (x) any amount that the Company has paid tanemse the Company's common stock since incegtipany unrealized gains and losses
and other non-cash items that have impacted stdaéisd equity as reported in the Company's findrsté&ements prepared in accordance
with GAAP, and (z) one-time events pursuant to gearin GAAP, and certain non-cash items not ottewiescribed above, in each case
after discussions between ACREM and the Compangpiendent directors and approval by a majorith@fCompany's independent
directors. As a result, the Company's stockholaepsity, for purposes of calculating the managerfemtcould be greater or less than the
amount of stockholders' equity shown on the Comisdimancial statements.

The incentive fee is equal to the differebetween: (a) the product of (i) 20% and (ii) difference between (A) the Company's Core
Earnings (as defined below) for the previous 12-tingeriod, and (B) the product of (1) the weighéwerage of the issue price per share of
the Company's common stock of all of the Compapytdic offerings multiplied by the weighted averagenber of all shares of common
stock outstanding (including any restricted shafdhe Company's common stock, restricted unitnyrshares of the Company's common
stock not yet issued, but underlying other awardsitgd under the Company's 2012 Equity Incentia@ Pbee Note 7)) in the previous 12-
month period, and (2) 8%; and (b) the sum of acgimive fees earned by ACREM with respect to that three fiscal quarters of such
previous 12-month periogrovided , however , that no incentive fee is payable with respectry fiscal quarter unless cumulative Core
Earnings for the 12 most recently completed fisgalrters is greater than zero. "Core Earnings'nsraGAAP measure and is defined as
GAAP net income (loss) computed in accordance B##AP, excluding non-cash equity compensation expethe incentive fee,
depreciation and amortization (to the extent timgtaf the Company's target investments are stredtas debt and the Company foreclose
any properties underlying such debt), any unredlgans, losses or other non-cash items recordedtimcome (loss) for the period,
regardless of whether such items are includedtiaratomprehensive income or loss, or in net incfio®s), and one-time events pursuant to
changes in GAAP and certain non-cash chargesdifteussions between ACREM and the Company's indkgmeirectors and after
approval by a majority of the Company's independimeictors. For purposes of calculating the inaentee prior to the completion of a 12-
month period following the IPO, Core Earnings Wi calculated on the basis of the number of dagtstie Management Agreement has t
in effect on an annualized basis. No incentive feee earned for the year ended December 31, 20ftR the period from September 1, 2(
(Inception) to December 31, 2011.

The Company reimburses ACREM at cost faraping expenses that ACREM incurs on the Compdmgfialf, including expenses
relating to legal, financial, accounting, servigidge diligence and other services. The Compaaifishursement obligation is not subject to
any dollar limitation.

The Company will not reimburse ACREM foetkalaries and other compensation of its persoeregpt for the allocable share of the
salaries and other compensation of the CompanyGhif Financial Officer, based on the percentaigais time spent on the Company's
affairs and (b) other corporate finance, tax, aotiog, internal audit, legal, risk management, aiens, compliance and other non-
investment professional personnel of ACREM or ffgiates who spend all or a portion of their timanaging the Company's affairs basei
the percentage of their time spent on the Compaffdgs. The Company is also required to pay litsrata portion of rent, telephone, utiliti
office furniture, equipment, machinery and othdicef, internal and overhead expenses of ACREM tndffiliates that are required for the
Company's operations. The initial term of the Maragnt Agreement will end May 1, 2015, with automatie-year renewal terms. Except
under limited circumstances, upon a terminatiothefManagement Agreement, the Company will pay AMREermination fee equal to
three times the average annual base managemeariddéacentive
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fee received by ACREM during the 24 month periodhiediately preceding the most recently completezhfiguarter prior to the date of
termination, each as described above.

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries, g@hith the Company's lenders under the Wells Fé&aplity and the Citibank Facility have
entered into various servicing agreements with AQ@REsubsidiary servicer, Ares Commercial Real Esgsdrvicer LLC ("ACRES"), a
Standard & Poor's ranked commercial primary andiapservicer that is included on Standard & Po8etect Servicer List. Effective May 1,
2012, ACRES agreed that no servicing fees purgoahese servicing agreements would be chargesbftsng as the Management
Agreement remains in effect, but that ACRES wilhtioue to receive reimbursement for overhead réladeservicing and operational
activities pursuant to the terms of the Managemgneement.

Summarized below are the related-partyscosturred by the Company and amounts payablect®diémager:

Incurred

For the Period From Payable as o
Year ended September 1, 2011
December 31, (Inception) to
$ in thousands 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Affiliate Payments
Management fee $ 1,66¢ — 9 621 —
Servicing fee: 17 — — —
General and
administrative
expense: 1,602 — 66€ —
Direct third party cost 643 827 31 827
$ 3,927 $ 827 $ 1,32( 827

Ares | nvestments

On February 8, 2012, the Company enteredarpromissory note with Ares Investments, whemi®s Investments loaned the Comp
$2.0 million. The note was repaid with $4 thousanihterest due under the note on March 1, 2018 thie proceeds from the sale of the
Series A Preferred Stock.

As of December 31, 2012, Ares Investmentsenl approximately 2,000,000 shares of the Comparmyhmon stock representing
approximately 21.6% of the total shares outstandimgddition, as of December 31, 2012, Ares Inwesits owned $1,150,000 aggregate
principal amount of the 2015 Convertible Notes.

11. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The following table summarizes the Compsudywidends declared during the year ended DeceBthe2012 (amounts in thousands,
except per share data):

Per share
Date declared Record date Payment date amount Total amount
March 30, 201: March 31, 201 April 02,201 $ 0.3C $ 45((1)
June 19, 201 June 29, 201 July 12,201 $ 0.0¢ $ 55¢E
September 21, 201 October 02, 201  October 11,201 $ 0.0€ $ 55€
November 7, 201 December 31, 20: January 10,20 $ 0.2t $ 2,31¢
Total cash dividends
declared for 201 $ 067 $ 3,87

(1)  The dividend of $450 was based on 1,500,000 shutstanding as of March 31, 20:
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12. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes the Compsuayarterly financial results for each quarterhaf year ended December 31, 2012 (amc
in thousands, except per share data):

For the Three-Month Period Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31

2012:
Net interest margi $ 61C $ 1,20¢ $ 1,491 $ 3,62¢
Net income (loss $ 508 $ (175 $ (559 $ 1,081
Net income (loss) attributable to comrr

stockholder: $
Net income (loss) per common sk—Basic

and dilutec $

(116) $ (225 $ (5540 $ 1,081
(0.11) $ (0.09 $ (0.06) $ 0.1z

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company's management has evaluatedguist events through the date of issuance ofahsotidated financial statements
included herein. There have been no subsequentsetiext occurred during such period that would ireqdisclosure in this Form 10-K or
would be required to be recognized in the Constdili&inancial Statements as of and for the yeag@mbcember 31, 2012, except as
disclosed below.

On March 8, 2013, the Company enteredantman assumption transaction with a new sponsarmto facilitate the purchase of a
Class B office building in Miami, FL that was cdlaalized by the Company's existing $47.0 millioatfmortgage loan. The interest rate on
the Company's existing loan did not change. The mettwurity date of the loan is April 2014 and isjsabto a one 12aonth extension optiol

On March 14, 2013, the Company declareasa dividend of $0.25 per common share for thé dusirter of 2013. The first quarter 2(
dividend is payable on April 18, 2013 to commorcktwlders of record as of April 8, 2013.

On March 28, 2013 the Company co-originaedpproximately $107.1 million transitional fimbrtgage loan on three properties
located in Atlanta, GA. At closing the outstandprincipal was approximately $94.7 million. As paftthe transaction, the Company funded
an approximately $26.7 million B-Note, while thepapximately $68.1 million A-Note was funded by armoercial bank. The B-Note has an
initial interest rate of L + 10.75% subject to &Wo LIBOR floor (with the benefit of any differenbetween actual LIBOR and the LIBOR
floor on the A-Note and B-Note accruing to the Bt&as the B-Note funds additional loan procedusjrterest rate on the B-Note may
decrease) and an initial term of 3 years.

On March 29, 2013 the Company originatedgproximately $25.5 million transitional first ntgage loan on a property located in
Overland Park, KS. At closing the outstanding ppatwas approximately $24.4 million. The loan laasinterest rate of L + 5.00% subject to
a 0.25% LIBOR floor and term of 3 years.
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SIGNATURES

signed on its behalf by the undersignigyeunto duly authorized.

Dated: April 1, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report t
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Exhibit 14.1
ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
(adopted on April 5, 2012)
Introduction
This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (this &€ embodies the commitment of Ares Commercial Resthte Corporation
(the “ Corporatiorf) to conduct our business in accordance with gili@able governmental rules and regulations aratrémote honest and
ethical conduct. This Code applies to all officensl employees of the Corporation and memberseo€tirporation’s Board of Directors (the

“ Board”) (such persons, the_* Covered Perstngach of whom is expected to adhere to the jplas and procedures set forth in this Code
that apply to them.

Failure to comply with this Code, or to report alation, may result in disciplinary actions, indlgl warnings, suspensions,
termination of employment or such other actionsay be appropriate under the circumstances.

This Code is intended to meet the standards ofla cbethics under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 268823mended, and the standards
of a code of business conduct and ethics unddistiteg standards of The New York Stock Exchange.

Conflicts of Interest

A “conflict of interest” occurs when a Covered Rer's private interest interferes or appears tarfate with the interests of the
Corporation as a whole. A conflict situation cais@when a Covered Person takes actions or haeats that make it difficult for the
individual to perform his or her work objectivelpdeffectively. The receipt of any improper betsefiy the Covered Person or their family
members due to the Covered Person’s position WehCorporation, such as loans or guarantees afdabigations, should be avoided at all
costs. A particular activity or situation may leeifid to involve a conflict of interest even tholgtioes not result in any financial loss to the
Corporation, and irrespective of the motivationshaf Covered Person involved.

Personal conflicts of interest are prohibited asadter of Corporation policy, unless they have bagoroved by the Corporation.
Each Covered Person should engage in and promnogstand ethical conduct, including in their hamgllof actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between personal and professional relstlips. Each Covered Person should promptly reporisituation or transaction involving
actual or potential conflict of interest to the Goration’s Legal Department (the “ Legal Departnig¢ntThe Legal Department’s
determination as to whether a conflict exists drasmful will be conclusive.

Some of the Covered Persons may also be employedfioers of the Corporation’s external manageooe of its affiliates
(collectively, the “ Managel), who manages the Corporation pursuant to a mamagt agreement (the “* Management Agreerfjent




Although typically not presenting an opportunity fmproper personal benefit, conflicts may ariseir or as a result of, the
relationship between the Corporation and the Manage/or Covered Persons that are officers, empkogad/or directors of more than one
of such entities. As a result, this Code recognthat the Covered Persons will, in the normal sewf their duties (whether for the
Corporation or the Manager), be involved in essdtitig policies and implementing decisions that hélle different effects on the
Corporation and the Manager. The participatiothefCovered Persons in such activities is inharettite relationship between the
Corporation and the Manager and is consistent thiperformance by the Covered Persons of theieslas officers, employees and/or
directors of the Corporation. Thus, if performadonformity with the provisions of applicable lasuch activities will be deemed to have
been handled ethically and to not constitute a fladrof interest” for purposes of this Code.

Nothing in this Code shall be construed to resthetright of the Manager to engage in any actigitpusiness that it is permitted to
engage in under the Management Agreement or reatycCovered Person, who is also a member, pastremployee of the Manager, from
taking any action in connection therewith.

Corporate Opportunities

Covered Persons owe a duty to the Corporationvarazk its legitimate interests when the opportututgio so arises. Covered
Persons may not take for themselves personallyrtyogities that are discovered through the use op@mtion property, information or
position, or use Corporation property, informatarposition for their personal gain. Nor may tleeynpete with the Corporation.

Sometimes the line between personal and Corporhgagfits is difficult to draw, and sometimes bpérsonal and Corporation
benefits may be derived from certain activitiese Pnudent course of conduct is to make sure thatiaa of Corporation property or services
that is not solely for the benefit of the Corparatis approved beforehand by the Legal Department.

Confidentiality

In carrying out the Corporation’s business, CovdPedsons often learn confidential or proprietafgiimation about the Corporation,
its customers, prospective customers or other frarties. Covered Persons must maintain the comtiality of all information so entrusted
them except when disclosure is authorized or lggalindated. Confidential or proprietary informatiacludes, among other things, any non-
public information concerning the Corporation, imdihg its businesses, financial performance, resrlprospects, and any non-public
information provided by a third party with the exfeion that the information will be kept confidethtand used solely for the business
purpose for which it was conveyed. The obligatmprotect confidential information does not endewla Covered Person leaves the
Corporation.

Fair Dealing
The Corporation is committed to maintaining thehlaist legal and ethical standards in the conduit$ tfusiness. Meeting this

commitment is the responsibility of the Corporatard each and every one of our Covered Persoreh Gavered Person should endeavor to
deal




fairly with the Corporation’s customers, suppliessrvice providers, competitors and employees.officer, director or employee should take
unfair advantage of anyone through manipulationcealment, abuse of privileged information, misespntation of material facts, or any
unfair dealing practice.

Protection and Proper Use of Corporation Assets

All Covered Persons should seek to protect the @atjpn’s assets and ensure their efficient useftTbarelessness and waste have
a direct impact on the Corporation’s financial pemiance. Officers, directors and employees musthes€orporation’s assets and services
solely for legitimate business purposes of the G@on and not for any personal benefit or thespeal benefit of anyone else.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Obeying the law, both in letter and in spirit,he foundation on which the Corporation’s ethicahstards are built. All Covered
Persons must respect and obey the laws of the cétiates and countries in which we operate. Atjhmot all employees are expected to
know the details of these laws, it is importankmow enough to determine when to seek advice frgpervisors, managers or other
appropriate personnel.

Covered Persons should strive to identify and na@ential issues before they lead to problems,stuodild ask about the application
of this Code whenever in doubt. Any questionstiredeto how these policies should be interpretedpplied should be addressed to the Legal
Department.

Insider Trading

You are prohibited by Corporation policy and by fwam buying or selling publicly traded securities any purpose at a time when
you are in possession “material nonpublic information.” This conduct iadwn as “insider trading.'If you have any question about whet
a particular transaction may constitute insideditrg and what you need to do in such case, youldlwmnsult the Corporation’s Insider
Trading Policy, which has been provided to you (enavailable upon request to the Legal Department)

Public Disclosure

It is the Corporation’s policy to make full, faa¢ccurate, timely and understandable disclosurermptiance with all applicable laws
and regulations in all reports and documentsasfilith, or submits to, the Securities and Exch@g@amission and all other governmental,
guasi-governmental and self-regulatory bodies aralliother public communications made the CorponatAs a Covered Person, you are
required to promote compliance with this Code IbyCalvered Persons and to abide by the Corporat&taisdards, policies and procedures
designed to promote compliance with this Code.

Amendments and Waivers of Code of Conduct

The Board has designated the Audit Committee thigoaity to waive certain provisions of this Codadamay from time to time
designate another committee comprised of indepénden




directors to serve such function. Any Covered Bemgho believes that a waiver may be called foukhdiscuss the matter with the Legal
Department or the Chairman of the Board, or if@mairman of the Board is unavailable, the Chairmiathe Audit Committee. In addition,
this Code may be amended from time to time by tbar8. Amendments to and waivers of this Code lvélpublicly disclosed as required by
applicable law and regulations. In particular, weas for executive officers or directors may be madly by the Board, and must be prom|
disclosed in a Form 8-K or on the Corporation’s srebwithin four business days.

Compliance with Code

If you know of or suspect a violation of applicakdevs, rules or regulations or this Code, you nimshediately report that
information to the Legal Department or any membie¢he Board No one will be subject to retaliation because of a good faith report of a
suspected violation.

Violations of this Code may result in disciplinagtion, up to and including discharge. The Boaallstetermine, or shall designate
appropriate persons to determine, appropriateragtioesponse to violations of this Code.

No Rights Created

This Code is a statement of certain fundamentakjpies and policies and procedures that goveriCthered Persons in the cond
of the Corporation’s business. Itis not intenttednd does not create any rights in any CoveresbResupplier, borrower, competitor,
stockholder or any other person or entity.

Publication of this Code

The Corporation shall make the most current vereidahis Code publicly available by placing it dretCorporation’s website at
www.arescre.com. This Code is also available intgd any stockholder who requests it.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeecimcthe Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 38B077) pertaining to the Ares Commet
Real Estate Corporation 2012 Equity Incentive Riaour report dated April 1, 2013, with respectite consolidated financial statements of
Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporation, includkethis Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year enfletember 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, California
April 1, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and &We 15d-14(a)
[, John B. Bartling, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K of Ares Commercial Real Estate Corponat

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltich this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprarugdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) [Omitted pursuant to Exchange Actd®ul3a-14(a) and 15d-15(a)];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggsteant's disclosure controls and procedures aesepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changthie registrant's internal control over financegorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the rgant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temauation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of @lezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: April 1, 2013

/s/ JOHN B. BARTLING, JR.

John B. Bartling, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and &We 15d-14(a)
I, Tae Sik Yoon, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K of Ares Commercial Real Estate Corponat

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltich this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprarugdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) [Omitted pursuant to Exchange Actd®ul3a-14(a) and 15d-15(a)];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggsteant's disclosure controls and procedures aesepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changthie registrant's internal control over financegorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the rgant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temauation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of @lezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: April 1, 2013

/sl TAE-SIK YOON

Tae-Sik Yoon
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKAces Commercial Real Estate Corporation (the "@any") for the year ended
December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securitiesixcthange Commission on the date hereof (the "R8pdahn B. Bartling, Jr., as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Tae Sik Yaas Chief Financial Officer of the Company, eactebg certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9¢&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the bekis knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: April 1, 2013

/s/ JOHN B. BARTLING, JR.

John B. Bartling, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ TAE-SIK YOON

Tae-Sik Yoon
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopting
the signature that appears in typed form withingleetronic version of this written statement regdiby Section 906, has been provided to
Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporation and wiltdtained by Ares Commercial Real Estate Corpanatind furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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